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CONFIDENTIAL 

Irving Weiser 

Chairman and CEO 

Royal Bank of Canada 

P.O. Box 1 
Royal Bank Plaza 

Toronto, ON M5J 2J5 

 

RE: US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY, INC. 

 

Dear Mr. Weiser, 

 

 I am writing to inform you Medical Supply Chain, Inc. (MSCI) has a current legal action against US 

BANCORP NA and its subsidiary US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY INC. To date, the court records and documents 

show damages at more than $900 million for injury inflicted by US BANK and US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY in 

antitrust violations and MSCI is seeking, injunctive relief restricting Piper Jaffray’s advertising, treble damages and 
attorney’s fees as provided by statute. This case is in Kansas Federal District Court 02-2539-CM and is currently in an 

interlocutory appeal before the Tenth Circuit Court of Appeals relating to preliminary injunctive relief. 

 While we are in the early stages of prosecuting US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY INC, we believe we have 

made a prima facie case on 18 counts concerning US Bank’s failure to perform services it had contracted to provide 

MSCI. We have alleged Piper Jaffray and US BANCORP NA caused this breach once they had misappropriated our 

business plan and perceived MSCI as a competitive threat to Piper Jaffray’s healthcare technology and supplier 

investments. We also allege Piper Jaffray concentrated 70% of its venture funds in these businesses that depended on 

anticompetitive contracts with healthcare group purchasing organizations under federal antitrust investigation and in 

which Piper Jaffray had interlocking directorates.  

 In the record, US BANCORP NA et al through their counsel have conceded the refusal to deal. The record 

contains transcripts of tape-recorded conversations that prove the basis for US BANK’s attempt to exclude MSCI from 

the hospital market, which is not based upon the required efficiency justification.1 Piper Jaffray’s Deputy general 
Counsel and Managing Director, Mark S. Reed provided an affidavit stating US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY INC is a 

“market maker” clarifying that Piper Jaffray sets prices in corporate capitalization markets, the relevant and related 

markets to MSCI antitrust claims.  

We believe we will prevail in our antitrust and contract related claims. The portion of liability for these 

staggering damages that will be apportioned to US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY INC causes us great concern for your 

company should it acquire Piper Jaffray. RBC has responsible corporate governance standards in place and has long 

served its customers without reproach. I will be happy to work with you and your counsel to resolve Piper Jaffray’s 

involvement in these anticompetitive acts. Medical Supply Chain, Inc. will be entering the market for hospitals and 

provide radically improved efficiencies that are required to restore the competition in our nation’s healthcare 

infrastructure. I hope that RBC will work with us to prevent similar conflicts of interest from ever occurring and to 

ensure healthcare company securities are not marketed on the basis of illicit anticompetitive contracting advantages. 
Thank you for your attention to this matter. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Samuel Lipari 
Chairman & CEO 

 

cc: Gordon M. Nixon 

                                                
1 Aspen Sking Co. v. Aspen Highlands Skiing Corp., 472 U.S. 585 (1985) pgs. 609-11 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE DISTRICT OF KANSAS 

KANSAS CITY KANSAS DIVISION 

 

CASE NO.:  02-2539-CM 

____________________________________________ 

 

MEDICAL SUPPLY CHAIN, INC., 

 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

 

US BANCORP, NA.  

US BANK 

PRIVATE CLIENT GROUP, CORPORATE TRUST,  

     INSTITUTIONAL TRUST AND CUSTODY,      

     AND MUTUAL FUND SERVICES, LLC. 

US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY 

JERRY A. GRUNDHOFER 

ANDREW CESERE 

SUSAN PAINE 

LARS ANDERSON 

BRIAN KABBES 

UNKNOWN HEALTHCARE SUPPLIER 

 

Defendants. 

________________________________________________ 
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April 21, 2003 
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REPORT OF PARTIES' PLANNING MEETING 

 

1. Rule 26(f) Meeting. 
2. Preliminary Matters 

a. Appearances 
b. Contact information 
c. Parties’ summary of the case 
 

(1) The asserted basis for the court's subject matter jurisdiction 
(2) The facts, claims, and theories of recovery by plaintiff 
(3) The facts, claims, and theories of defense 
(4) The statutes, if any, upon which the claims and defenses are based 
(5) Under controlling jury instructions or precedents, the essential elements of 

each claim or affirmative defense in the view of the party asserting such 
claim or defense 

(6) The most important or key factual issues and legal issues that are believed 
to be involved in the case in light of the above-referenced essential 
elements 

(7) A breakdown of damages sought 
 

3. Plan for Pre-Discovery Disclosures 
4. Plan for ADR 
5. Plan for Discovery 
 

THE ELECTRONIC DATA DISCOVERY PLAN 

 

Map Out 

 

Rule 16 Conferences 

 

Discovery Requests And Review 

 

Trial Issues 

 

THE DEPOSITION PLAN  

 

THE THIRD PARTY PRACTICE PLAN 

 

THE PLAN FOR PRIVILGE DETERMINATIONS AND REDACTIONS 

 
Trial Preparation Materials 

 

6. Deadlines for Amendments and Potentially Dispositive Motions 
7. Follow on Preliminary Injunctive Relief and Debtor Injunctive Relief requests 

8. Pre-Trial scheduling and Trial 
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Appendix 

 

I. Proposed Order for Protection Against Inadvertent Waiver  

 

II. Plaintiff Proposed Spoliation Prevention Stipulation 

 

III. Proposed Expert Discovery Stipulation 

 

IV. Disclosure of preliminary designated experts 

 

 

REPORT OF PARTIES' PLANNING MEETING 

 

1. Rule 26(f) Meeting. 

Pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 26(f), a discovery and case management meeting was held on 
April 21, 2003, and was attended by:  
 
Counsel for Medical Supply Chain, Inc.: Bret D. Landrith 
Counsel for the Defendants:    
 

2. Preliminary Matters 

d. Appearances 

 
Counsel for Medical Supply Chain, Inc.: 
 
 Bret D. Landrith, Esq. 

Telephone: 620-231-7636 
 
Counsel for defendant: 

 

e. Contact information 

 

Counsel for plaintiff: 
 
 Bret Landrith 

605 W. Kansas 
Pittsburg, KS 66672 
Kansas Supreme Court Number: 20380 

 Fax: 734-549-6495 
 Email: landrithlaw@yahoo.com 
 Home Telephone: 620-231-7636 
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Name and residence addresses of plaintiff: 
 
 Medical Supply Chain, Inc. 
 1300 NW Jefferson Court 
 Blue Springs, MO 64015 
 816-220-4128 
 Fax 816-220-4199 
 
Counsel for defendants: 
 
Name and residence addresses of defendants; 
 

f. Parties’ summary of the case 

(1) The asserted basis for the court's subject matter jurisdiction 

 
This court has jurisdiction of this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 1343 and 1331 and over 
pendant state law based claims. 
 
These proceedings are instituted under the provisions of the Sherman Act and the Clayton 
Act. 
 
This Court has jurisdiction over complaints based on Hobbs Act, The USA 
PATRIOT Act. 
 
Jurisdiction for Medical Supply Chain, Inc. to commence this action for injunctive relief 
is conferred by the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 4, 13 and 26 and K.S.A. 60-3321.    
Misappropriation of trade secret; injunctive or other protective relief 
Kansas substantive law permits an injured party to have civil remedies for criminal acts 
Smith v. Welch 265 Kan. 868. 
 
Acts of private individuals may support an action for liability under 42 U.S.C. § 1983 if 
the individuals are "willing participant[s] in a joint action with the state or its agents."  
Brinkman, 793 F. 2d at 112; Dennis v. Sparks, 449 U.S. 24, 101 S. Ct. 183, 66 L. Ed. 2d 
185 (1980). 

 

(2) The facts, claims, and theories of recovery by plaintiff 

 

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS 

 

Medical Supply Chain, Inc. is a Missouri corporation in good standing with the Secretary 
of State. Medical Supply was formed in October of 2000, by Sam Lipari to 
commercialize over three years of research and development spent creating an 
information technology infrastructure standard that allowed hospitals to manage their 
own procurement including bidding, logistics, and purchasing documentation. A Dun & 
Bradstreet report dated October 31st stated the company had a clear credit history and a 
strong financial condition. Mr. Lipari’s innovation is an electronic marketplace that 
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generates profound savings over existing industry offerings. This service innovation 
works via the Internet so every hospital and supplier can utilize an open market. These 
automated services increase competitiveness by managing hundreds of thousands of 
products and thousands of suppliers, allowing hospital-purchasing officers to easily 
exploit the competitive effect on prices. Medical Supply has shown that this innovation 
guarantees 20% savings in cost to hospitals, which equals at least a 5% increase in each 
hospital’s bottom line. 
 
Sam Lipari put great effort into selecting an appropriate national bank with a full range of 
services, including nation wide checking, escrow services, short and long term credit 
facilities, receivables financing and international clearing of transactions between 
thousands of hospitals and their suppliers world wide. Several national banks were 
evaluated and on April 15, 2002 US BANCORP NA subsidiary, US BANK was selected 
because it also had an investment arm called US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY that 
targeted healthcare and participated as underwriter and funds manager for pre public 
offering healthcare manufacturers and service providers in addition to acting as 
underwriter for corporate bonds of healthcare companies. Mr. Lipari also established a 
personal checking account with US BANK following an investigation by Chex Systems, 
Inc.  
 
On June 5th, 2002 Sam Lipari contacted US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY’S to speak 
with Heath Lukatch, managing director of the US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY 
healthcare venture fund about Medical Supply being considered for venture capital and 
other financial services. Medical Supply was instructed to send an executive summary of 
its business plan via email. Sam Lipari sent the summary and financial projections for 
Medical Supply with a restriction on disclosure notice. US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY 
made no response to the receipt of the executive summary and financial projections from 
Medical Supply. Again, Sam Lipari contacted US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY and his 
calls were not taken and not returned. Sam Lipari also attempted to speak to a US 
BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY venture fund manger at their San Francisco office but 
again, his calls were not taken or returned. 
 
Leading healthcare strategists advised Sam Lipari on the need to quickly enter the market 
and take advantage of the opportunity created by the healthcare industry’s sudden 
willingness to reject the existing supply distribution channels, which are primarily 
maintained by Group Purchasing Organizations. The New York Times began uncovering 
corruption performed by Group Purchasing Organization including price rigging and the 
elimination of access to innovative medical devices and supplies. The New York Times 
articles showed the lack of a competitive market imperiled the lives of patients. During 
these advisory meetings the first news of WorldCom’s debacle was breaking. Medical 
Supply’s management felt that with the exception of US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY, 
which concentrated its investments in healthcare; much of the assets venture funds 
reported were in fact overvalued equities in telecom technology companies further 
depressing the venture capital markets. 
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Medical Supply resolved to develop a way to internally capitalize a roll out of its supply 
chain empowerment program and management technology. Instead of seeking venture 
capital funds from US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY Medical Supply created its own 
capitalization plan that would utilize the intellectual assets of its healthcare supply chain 
property by offering a comprehensive 12 month education and healthcare supply chain 
certification program. 
 
Medical Supply’s plan put representatives in the field nationwide that possessed the 
knowledge and skills to communicate with all levels of hospital management and assist in 
the adoption of Medical Supply’s health system empowerment program. The 
representatives would pay for their certification and be responsible for their marketing 
and sales operations, consistent with organizations that rely on independent 
manufacturer’s representatives. Since Medical Supply’s services were new to the market, 
Sam Lipari and his advisors decided that it would be critical for the certification fee to be 
held in escrow until the candidates had a chance to meet Medical Supply’s certification 
team and evaluate their abilities in mastering healthcare supply chain empowerment 
knowledge. After a weeklong orientation, the candidates would decide whether or not to 
commit to the certification program and Medical Supply reserved the opportunity to 
reject any candidates it felt would not succeed in the program. 
 
Medical Supply developed a curriculum and contracted with the industry’s foremost 
logistics and supply chain experts to provide instruction during the weeklong orientation 
and advise candidates throughout the certification process that included the 12-month 
practicum. Medical Supply made arrangements to include information and presenters 
from companies with expertise in healthcare supply chain fundamentals and financial 
analysis of healthcare purchasing in addition to human resource evaluations. Medical 
Supply representatives would then be able to assist with products, services, and 
technologies outside of those offered through Medical Supply’s capabilities that would 
complement Medical Supply’s supply chain empowerment program in allowing a health 
system/hospital to break free of its Group Purchasing Organization supplier. 
 
Beginning August 1st, 2002, Medical Supply advertised nationwide to recruit experienced 
account executives and sales professionals. Medical Supply processed hundreds of 
applicants with details of resumes, job history, and financial disclosure. For the first of 
what were to be quarterly classes, Medical Supply selected 15 candidates that had the 
potential to succeed as independent representatives for its services. After numerous 
telephone interviews ten applicants had committed to becoming certification candidates 
and attend the certification classes beginning the first week of December 2002. During 
this same time, Medical Supply was preparing the escrow account system that the 
candidates would utilize when making payment. 
 
The US BANK representative Becky Hainje offered to provide escrow account services 
and on October 3, 2002 put Sam Lipari in contact with, PRIVATE CLIENT GROUP in 
St. Louis, Missouri. Sam Lipari described Medical Supply’s need for escrow accounts to 
vice president BRIAN KABBES, and emailed him an escrow contract that Medical 
Supply counsel had prepared for its candidates. BRIAN KABBES asked questions about 
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the candidates, the certification program and how many candidates had been selected so 
far. Sam Lipari negotiated with BRIAN KABBES to reduce the escrow fee per account 
since all escrow accounts would be identical, and US BANK had refused to have the 
funds in a single account. BRIAN KABBES agreed to lower the fee for US BANKS 
escrow agent services from the normal of $1,500 to $600 per account.  
 
After reviewing the escrow contract, on October 5th, BRIAN KABBES communicated to 
Sam Lipari that the language of paragraph 10 “Security Interests” should be changed so 
that a security interest for US BANK could be created in the $5,000 portion of the escrow 
that became Medical Supply’s property the moment a candidate submitted their 
certification funds into escrow. Medical Supply altered its escrow contract to conform to 
BRIAN KABBES’ s suggestion and on or about October 7th emailed the changes to 
BRIAN KABBES. BRIAN KABBES and US Bank were identified as the escrow agent 
in the escrow agreement and BRIAN KABBES’ address was included in the body of the 
agreement. 
 
On October 8th, US BANK’s Kansas City manager told Sam Lipari that there would be no 
problems with the escrow accounts and that BRIAN KABBES had told her that they were 
a “slam dunk.” They arranged for Sam Lipari to meet with Doug Lewis, the commercial 
loan officer for a line of credit based on the portion of the escrow accounts Medical 
Supply was guaranteed. 
 
On October 9th, BRIAN KABBES called to request an additional change in the escrow 
contract. He supplied a specified US Treasury fund investment language for the funds 
while the funds were in the custody of US BANK TRUST DEPARTMENT. Medical 
Supply agreed to the additional change and modified the investment instructions exactly 
as BRIAN KABBES instructed. Medical Supply was told there were no more changes to 
be included so the certification and escrow agreements were sent out so candidates would 
have a chance to review the material before their November 1st deadline, which required 
their funds to be in the US BANK escrow accounts.  
 
On October 10th, Sam Lipari delivered the Medical Supply business plan and associate 
program with all contracts and supporting documents to Douglas Lewis, at the US 
BANK, Independence, Missouri to make application for a line of credit utilizing escrow 
accounts as collateral. The business plan and associate program booklets each had cover 
pages giving notice of restricted use and that Medical Supply protected the confidential 
business trade secret and intellectual property contained in them. A letter of introduction 
also stated the contents were protected with restricted disclosure and possession of the 
materials.  
 
On October 15th, BRIAN KABBES called Sam Lipari and informed him that they had 
turned down the escrow accounts because of the USA Patriot Act. When asked to clarify, 
he said the know your customer requirements had changed and US Bank could not set up 
the escrow accounts for MEDICAL SUPPLY Sam Lipari was shocked and stunned and 
handed away the phone, where BRIAN KABBES repeated again The Patriot Act as the 
reason the accounts were denied. Medical Supply researched the act and discovered it did 
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not apply to Medical Supply, already an established customer of US Bancorp for personal 
and corporate banking services; or the independent representatives, for each of whom 
Medical Supply has a fourteen-page background and financial history. Medical Supply 
contacted all levels of US Bancorp management explaining the reliance Medical Supply 
had on US Bancorp fulfilling its agreement to provide escrow accounts, the inability to 
replace these services on such a short notice and the staggering damages Medical Supply 
would suffer. US Bancorp’s highest corporate officers still maintained the refusal to 
provide the escrow accounts based on the USA PATRIOT Act. Each of these 
conversations was recorded and excerpts from the transcripts appear in Medical Supply’s 
pleadings. US Bank’s Kansas City manager was told by BRIAN KABBES that;” no more 
time would be spent,” by US Bancorp on Medical Supply’s escrow accounts, the bank 
would not change its decision. She relayed this conversation on a taped answering 
machine, which was also transcribed for the pleadings. 
 
Sam Lipari had asked US Bancorp officers after the refusal if a conflict of interest with 
US Bancorp’s affiliated healthcare technology and supplier companies had caused the 
interruption in the pattern and activity of providing the escrow accounts. He explained the 
negotiations, the alterations and final approval process they had gone through with 
BRIAN KABBES. Sam Lipari also explained that much of US Bancorp’s investments 
were in Medical Supply’s relevant market and the interruption in US Bancorp’s 
performance did not happen until US Bank’s Independence office had obtained Medical 
Supply’s business plan, revealing Medical Supply’s potential to provide efficiency and 
reduce healthcare supply prices. US Bancorp’s PRIVATE CLIENT trust officers denied a 
conflict of interest by strangely stating they had not given out Medical Supply’s business 
plan, a question that had not been asked. It was especially alarming since the St. Louis 
PRIVATE CLIENT GROUP had not been given the plan and could not have obtained it 
from US BANK in Independence under the nondisclosure instructions he had given Doug 
Lewis and which were stated on the documents. This caused Sam Lipari to fear his trade 
secret information might become compromised. In 1995, two small Group Purchasing 
Organizations exploited a confidential relationship with Sam Lipari to misappropriate an 
innovative services pricing business model utilizing trade secret information. Mr. Lipari 
was unable to protect his trade secrets or obtain compensation. As Group Purchasing 
Organizations merged; Mr. Lipari’s innovation became the model used by most of the 1.3 
trillion dollar healthcare industry. 
 
On November 6th, Sam Lipari obtained the documents he had entrusted with Doug Lewis 
at US BANK in Independence. Upon returning to Medical Supply’s office Sam Lipari 
inspected the documents and found that the binders had been separated and copies or 
faxes had been made of the associate program and the business plan documents. There 
are tractor marks from a copy or fax machine on the back of all the pages. The documents 
relating to the escrow agreement associate program application, and certification contract 
were not faxed or copied. There were no marks on the back of these documents.The 
documents that were copied or faxed contain all confidential details to the business, 
business model, management team, investors, industry experts, advisors, business 
practices, market strategies, revenue model, service structure, formula, algorithms, and 
financials including 5 year details, 5 year condensed, and break even analysis. Sam Lipari 
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is fearful this information will fall into the wrong hands further blocking or eliminating 
entry to market. 
 

Medical Supply approached the law firm Shook, Hardy, & Bacon to provide escrow 
agency services at US BANK to try to mitigate the injury caused by US Bancorp’s 
interruption and refusal to deal. The firm declined because of concerns over the USA 
PATRIOT Act issue raised by US Bancorp. Medical Supply approached other candidates 
to provide escrow agency services but they also declined. Medical Supply found one 
other national bank in its region with the capability of providing the unique financing 
instrument it had created with US Bancorp but not in time for the November 1st funds 
Medical Supply depended on. Medical Supply also investigated US Bancorp’s conduct in 
trying to control the capitalization of healthcare technology firms and suppliers and 
realized there were strong reasons to fear US Bancorp would continue to misuse the USA 
PATRIOT Act and make a “Suspicious Activity Report” against Medical Supply that 
would destroy the company’s chances of ever obtaining the high level banking services it 
would need to provide the nation’s hospitals with lower prices and competitive markets 
for medical devices and supplies.    
 
US BANCORP NA, in combination with its wholly owned subsidiaries US BANCORP 
PIPER JAFFRAY, PRIVATE CLIENT GROUP and US BANK, along with their affiliate 
UNKOWN HEALTHCARE SUPPLIER (herein, collectively; ”US Bancorp”) is the 
dominant venture fund and investment banking underwriter for capitalizing healthcare 
technology and healthcare supplier firms through seed capital, venture capital, bonds, 
initial public offerings of healthcare technology and healthcare supplier firms’ securities 
and the marketing of healthcare technology and healthcare supplier firms’ stock issues. 
US Bancorp devotes 70% of its venture funds to healthcare technology and supplier 
companies. US Bancorp is the largest venture fund investor of pre public offering 
healthcare technology and supplier companies. 
 
US Bancorp on its healthcare venture fund web site states that it closely supervises the 
management of the healthcare companies it invests in. The healthcare venture fund also 
states it places US Bancorp officers on the boards of these healthcare technology and 
supplier companies when US Bancorp decides it is needed. US Bancorp leverages its 
monopoly power in the capitalization of healthcare technology and supplier companies 
through the acquisition and exercise of monopoly power in investment analysis for 
stimulating market interest and demand (increasing prices) for healthcare technology and 
healthcare supplier firms’ securities including private placements, bonds, and stocks. US 
Bancorp uses this monopoly power to increase demand and price for equities including 
venture funds and securities in healthcare technology and healthcare supplier firms it 
controls or has ownership interest in.  
 
US Bancorp determined that twenty three billion dollars could be saved in the cost of 
healthcare supplies with the development of electronic marketplaces to efficiently handle 
the eighty three billion dollar hospital supply procurement market. US Bancorp used this 
information to acquire interests in fledgling healthcare electronic marketplaces. In 
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partnership with other underwriters, US Bancorp aggressively promoted these companies 
and profited from the increase in securities prices obtained. 
 
At the same time, US Bancorp developed strong affiliations with the dominant healthcare 
supply distribution channels called Group Purchasing Organizations or “GPO’s.” The 
GPO’s are the beneficiaries of the distribution system’s inefficiencies. US Bancorp 
convinced the two dominant GPO’s; the publicly traded company Novation and the 
privately held company Premier that together control over one half of the national 
healthcare supply market, to acquire the fledgling electronic market places to prevent 
eliminating the inefficiency that was the source of the GPO’s profit. The electronic 
marketplace technology that had the potential to remove inefficiencies from healthcare 
supply procurement was diverted to create mere web page store fronts for supplies sold 
through the same old inefficient but profitable GPO distribution channel. 
 
US Bancorp assisted in underwriting their securities and debt to accomplish the mergers, 
acquiring ownership interests in the new conglomerates and exchanging directors. US 
Bancorp then used its influence over the dominant GPO’s including the director it placed 
on the board of Premier to negotiate anticompetitive sole source contracts with healthcare 
technology and supplier firms US Bancorp provided venture funding and public 
underwriting for. US Bancorp then used its monopoly power in healthcare technology 
stock analysis to provide coverage in the media, advertising the marketplace advantages 
of the companies that had secured these exclusive and anticompetitive contracts. US 
Bancorp then profited from manipulating the publicly traded prices of the securities 
because it retained significant equity in the healthcare technology companies it provided 
venture funding and underwriting for. These anticompetitive contracts and the kickbacks 
of equity and revenue to Premier, Novation, and their corporate officers along with the 
high healthcare supply prices they caused became the subject of a New York Times 
investigative series and United States Senate, Federal Trade Commission and General 
Accounting Office investigations in 2002.  
 

Plaintiff’s Claims 

 

(3) The facts, claims, and theories of defense 

(4) The statutes, if any, upon which the claims and defenses are based 

 
15 U.S.C. § 1 
15 U.S.C. § 2 
15 U.S.C. § 4 
15 U.S.C. § 13 (b) and (e) 
15 U.S.C. § 15 
15 U.S.C. § 26 
USA Patriot Act 
The Kansas Trade Secret Misappropriation Act K.S.A. 60-3321 
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(5) under controlling jury instructions or precedents, the essential 

elements of each claim or affirmative defense in the view of the party 

asserting such claim or defense 

 
Essential elements of Plaintiff’s Claims: Per Se Sherman 1 Violations, Generally 

 

Are an exception to the Rule of Reason analysis where the act complained of is a naked 
restraint. No justifications are permitted. Anticompetitive effects do not have to be shown 
by the plaintiff. There are no defenses to a per se naked restraint of trade. 
 

Sherman 1 Conspiracy 

As the Supreme Court has stated "agreements whose nature and necessary effect are so 
plainly anticompetitive . . . no elaborate study of the industry is needed to establish their 
illegality-they are 'illegal per se.'" National Society of Professional Engineers v. United 

States, 435 U.S. 679, 692, 98 S. Ct.1355, 1365, 55 L. Ed. 2d 637 (1978).  
To establish a civil cause of action under Section 1 [of the Sherman Anti-TrustAct], a 
plaintiff must prove four elements: (1) that the defendants contracted, combined or 
conspired among each other; (2)that the combination or conspiracy produced adverse, 
anti-competitive effects within the relevant product and geographic markets; (3) that the 
objects of and the conduct pursuant to that contract or conspiracy were illegal; and (4) 
that the plaintiffs were injured as a proximate result of that conspiracy. 
  Arnold Pontiac-GMC, Inc. v. General Motors Corp., 786 F.2d 564, 572 (3d Cir. 
 1986) (citations omitted). 
 

Sherman 1 Boycott (Concerted Refusal to Deal) Horizontal Restraint antitrust claim 
A refusal to deal is a per se restraint of trade in violation of the Sherman Act when done 
in concert with others as part of a conspiracy (as in Klor's Inc. v. Broadway-Hale Stores, 
359 U.S. 207, 79 S.Ct. 705, 3 L.Ed.2d 741 (1959)) or the unwillingness to deal was in 
furtherance of a monopoly. See e.g., Eastman Kodak Co. v. Southern Photo Materials 

Co., 273 U.S. 359, 375, 47 S.Ct. 400, 71 L.Ed. 684 (1927). MSCI’s pleadings accuse the 
defendants of refusal to deal in concert with Unknown Healthcare Suppliers in 
furtherance of a monopoly and as attempted monopolization. 
 
In Sherman Act Section1 cases where the Court has applied the per se approach to 
invalidity to concerted refusals to deal, "the boycott often cut off access to a supply, 
facility or market necessary to enable the boycotted firm to compete, . . . and frequently 
the boycotting firms possessed a dominant position in the relevant market." Northwest 

Wholesale Stationers, Inc. v. Pacific Stationery & Printing Co., ante, at 294. 
 

Sherman 1 “Sham Petition” Horizontal Restraint antitrust claim. A “sham petition” 
to cause government action or to use an official act falsely to provide a barrier to 
competition is itself actionable “monopolization” behavior. Elements of 
Sham/Harassment 1) Purposeful interference not protected when a gov’t process (rather 
than the outcome of the process) is used as a competitive weapon 2) That is a) 
Objectively baseless and b) Improperly Motivated. Sham/Harrassment is an exception to 
Noerr-Pennington immunity.  Here the defendants 1) knew the USA Patriot Act did not 
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apply to MSCI 2) had no reasonable belief that MSCI would be found to be in violation 
of the act 3) acted with the improper motive of using the gov’t process as a pretext for 
breaching their contract to provide escrow account and thereby prevent competition in 
hospital supply market. Eastern R.R. Pres. Conf. v. Noerr Motor Freight, 365 U.S. 127 
(1961) and California Motor Transport v. Trucking Unlimited, 404 U.S. 508,512(1972) 
 
Sherman 1 Refusal To Deal/Denial of Unique Financial Instrument Per Se Naked 
restraint against MSCI’s entry into US Bancorp’s affiliate healthcare technology 
company markets/ no pro competitive justification. Elements 1) denial of escrow 
accounts, provided to other businesses, required as partial security for line of credit-
unique, novel or custom financial instrument 2) could not be replicated in the market in 
the time between repudiation and market entry date 3) by US Bancorp NA, a dominant 
healthcare industry financer and its affiliate healthcare suppliers United States Steel 

Corporation v. Fortner Enterprises, Inc., 429 U.S. 610, 51 L. Ed. 2d 80, 97 S. Ct. 861 
(1977). 
 
Sherman 2 Monopoly 
There are two basic elements of a §2 Sherman Act violation.  The first is the "possession 
of monopoly power in the relevant market" and the second is the "willful acquisition or 
maintenance of that power as distinguished from growth or development as a 
consequence of a superior product,  business acumen, or historic accident." United States 

v. Grinnell Corp., 384 U.S. 563, 570-71, 16 L. Ed. 2d 778, 86 S. Ct. 1698 (1966). 
 U.S. 563, 570-71, 16 L. Ed. 2d 778, 86 S. Ct. 1698 (1966). 
 
To state a monopolization claim under Sherman Act § 2, Medical Supply plead: (1) US 
Bancorp posses monopoly power in the relevant markets of healthcare technology and 
supplier capitalization, healthcare technology stock analysis and hospital supplies, where 
US Bancorp is able to set prices and keep out competitors; and (2) US Bancorp’s willful 
acquisition and maintenance of that power is distinguished from growth or development 
as a consequence of a superior product, business acumen, or historic accident, but instead 
US Bancorp acquires and maintains that power through fraud, manipulation, leverage of 
monopoly power in one relevant market to obtain power in another relevant market, 
through the “sham” use of official government duties and theft of customer information. 
See TV Communications, 964 F.2d at 1025 (quotations and citations omitted).  
 
To demonstrate market power by circumstantial evidence, a plaintiff must: "(1) define the 
relevant market, (2) show that the defendant owns a dominant share of that market, and 
(3) show that there are significant barriers to entry and show that existing competitors 
lack the capacity to increase their output in the short run." Rebel Oil Co., Inc. v. Atlantic 

Richfield, Co. at 1434 (citations omitted). 
 
Sherman 2 Attempted Monopolization 
To state a claim for attempted monopolization under Sherman Act § 2, Medical Supply 
plead: (1) US Bancorp attempted to monopolize the relevant market nationwide for 
capitalizing healthcare technology and supplier companies;(2) US Bancorp has a 
dangerous probability of success in monopolizing the healthcare technology and supplier 
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capitalization where it was already the largest venture fund investor and is concentrating 
70% of its venture fund investments in this relevant market, where US Bancorp is able to 
set prices and keep out competitors; (3) US Bancorp has a specific intent to monopolize 
healthcare technology and supplier capitalization and had been fined this year for 
attempting to coerce another healthcare technology company into using US Bancorp’s 
services through extortion; and (4) that US Bancorp interrupted the provision of escrow 
account services to Medical Supply once it realized Medical Supply had obtained 
capitalization from a competing source in furtherance of US Bancorp’s attempt to 
monopolize healthcare technology and supplier capitalization. See TV Communications 

Network, Inc. v. Turner Network Television, Inc., 964 F.2d at 1025. 
 
Sherman 2 Refusal to Deal 

A lawful monopolist could properly be held liable under Section 2 for a refusal to deal 
only if it had monopoly power and if its refusal to deal sacrificed profit available from 
exercising that monopoly power in order to exclude competition and thereby to create 
additional market power-only if, in other words, it sought to enlarge its monopoly by 
"attempting to exclude rivals on some basis other than efficiency." Aspen Skiing Co. v. 

Aspen Highlands Skiing Corp., 472 U.S. 585, 605 (1985) (internal quotation marks 
omitted). 
 

Sherman 2 Refusal to Deal “change of pattern” Horizontal Restraint antitrust claim 
Defendant-monopolist's election "to make an important change in a pattern of distribution 
that had originated in a competitive market and had persisted for several years." Id. at 
603, 105 S.Ct. at 2858. The elements are 1) escrow accounts are furnished to US Bank 
corporate customers on their secretary of state good standing and the conformity of the 
escrow contract, a pattern of US Bank business for many years, 2) US Bank interrupts 
this practice for Medical Supply Chain, Inc,, 3) Interruption must be shown not to be for 
a valid business reason 4) Valid reason must be valid in pro-competitive efficiency terms. 
Distinguish "between practices which tend to exclude or restrict competition on the one 
hand, and the success of a business which reflects only a superior product, a well-run 
business, or luck, on the other." "does not violate Section 2 if valid business reasons exist 
for that refusal." Id. at 605, 105 S.Ct. at 2858. 
 

A seller's right not to deal with a particular buyer has been limited; for if the seller, in 

order to secure adherence to policies of price maintenance, tying arrangements, or similar 

suppressions of competition, uses means that go beyond a simple announcement of policy 

and declination to sell, his conduct falls under the proscriptions of the antitrust laws. 

Osborn v. Sinclair Refining Company 324 F.2d 566 (1963) 
 
Sherman 2 Denial of Essential Facility 

In Alaska Airlines, the court defined the essential facilities doctrine, generally, as: 
imposing "liability when one firm, which controls an essential facility, denies a second 
firm reasonable access to a product or service that the second firm must obtain to 
compete with the first." 948 F.2d at 542. A facility is "essential" if it is otherwise 
unavailable and cannot be "reasonably or practically duplicated." Anaheim v. Southern 

California Edison Co., 955 F.2d 1373, 1380 (9th Cir.1992). Section 2 of the Sherman Act 
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prohibits a monopolist's unilateral action, like Kodak's refusal to deal, if that conduct 
harms the competitive process in the absence of a legitimate business justification. See 
Kodak, 504 U.S. at 483 n. 32, 112 S.Ct. at 2090 n. 32 (citing Aspen Skiing, 472 U.S. at 
602, 105 S.Ct. at 2857). Unilateral refusals to deal often concern an "essential" facility. 
See Otter Tail Power Co. v. United States, 410 U.S. 366, 93 S.Ct. 1022, 35 L.Ed.2d 359 
(1973). 
 
Clayton Act Refusal To Deal 
Clayton §3 requires either market power in the relevant market, or a significant amount 
of commerce in the relevant market.[ Times-Picayune ] 
 

Clayton Act discrimination in services or facilities 15 U.S.C. § 13 (e) per se violation 
where 1) competition exists, 2) competitors are treated with disparity by 3) dominant 
service or facility provider. FTC v. Simplicity is the first time in the Supreme Court, 
issues relating to the availability of certain defenses to a prima facie violation of § 2(e), 
(15 U.S.C. § 13) of the Clayton Act were examined. The Court held that neither 'cost-
justification' nor an absence of competitive injury may constitute 'justification' of a prima 
facie § 2(e) violation. FTC v. Simplicity Pattern Co., Inc. 79 S.Ct. 1005, 3 L.Ed.2d 1079 
(1959) 
 

Clayton Act Interlocking Directorates  

Prima Facie § 8 Case. There are four basic elements to a § 8 violation, as set forth in 
subsection (a)(1): 
1. The same person must serve as either a director or officer of two corporations (other 
than in certain regulated industries, which, as discussed below, are covered by other 
statutes) at the same time. Under § 8(a)(4), the only "officers" covered are those elected 
by the board of directors. 
2. Both corporations must be engaged, in whole or in part, in interstate commerce. 
3. The two corporations must be competitors by virtue of the nature of their business and 
the location of their operations. 
4. Each of the corporations concerned must have net worth aggregating more than 
$13,813,000.6 In calculating the aggregate net worth, only the corporate entities 
themselves are considered; the net worth of parents, subsidiaries, and other affiliates is 
not included. 
 

Hobbs Act Racketeering and Extortion (Proposed amendment to RICO) 

MSCI has standing to pursue claims asserted under the Racketeering Influenced and 

Corrupt Organizations Act ("RICO"), 18 U.S.C. § 1961 to § 1968. RICO takes aim at 

"racketeering activity," which includes acts chargeable under state criminal laws and 

punishable by imprisonment for more than one year, such as murder, kidnapping, 

robbery, bribery, extortion, or dealing in narcotics. See 19 U.S.C. § 1961(1)(A) (West 

1984 and Supp. 2000). RICO makes it unlawful for "any person" to: (1) use money 

derived from a pattern of racketeering activity to acquire or maintain control of an 

enterprise, (2) acquire or maintain control of an enterprise through a pattern of 

racketeering activity, (3) conduct an enterprise through a pattern of racketeering activity, 

or (4) conspire to do so. See id. § 1962(a)-(d). 



 15 

 

In addition to imposing criminal penalties, RICO authorizes a private suit by "any person 

injured in his business or property by reason of a violation of § 1962." Id. § 1964(c). 

Thus, if a defendant engages in a pattern of racketeering activity in a manner forbidden 

by these provisions, and the racketeering activities injure a plaintiff in his business or 

property, the plaintiff has a claim under § 1964(c). See Sedima, S.P.R.L. v. Imrex Co., 

Inc., 473 U.S. 479, 495, 87 L. Ed. 2d 346, 105 S. Ct. 3275 (1985).  

MSCI relies on § 1962(b), § 1962(c), and § 1962(d). A violation of § 1962(b) requires: 
(1) acquisition or maintenance of (2) an interest in or control of (3) any enterprise (3) 
through a pattern (4) of racketeering activity. See Medallion TV Enters., Inc. v. SelecTV 

of Cal., Inc., 627 F. Supp. 1290, 1292 (C.D. Cal. 1986). A violation of § 1962(c) 
requires: (1) participation (2) in the affairs of an enterprise (3) through a pattern (4) of 
racketeering activity. See id. A violation of § 1962(d) requires either: (1) an agreement, 
the objective of which is a substantive violation of RICO, and (2) awareness of the 
essential nature and scope of the enterprise and intent to participate in it. See Howard v. 

America Online, Inc., 208 F.3d 741, 751 (9th Cir. 2000). 
 

MSCI has standing to recover to the extent that, having been injured in business or 
property by the conduct constituting the violation. See Sedima, 473 U.S. at 496. The 
RICO statute requires no more than this. See id. at 497. 
 

Excessive Use of Force, Failure to Train under USA PATRIOT Act 

(Proposed Amendment to include 42 USC §§1983, 1985) 

 

USA PATRIOT ACT amends the Federal Deposit Insurance Act (12 U.S.C. 1828). This 
amendment contains the limitation that an institution and its agents may be civilly liable 

for any disclosure that is "made with malicious intent." 

 
Each account refused was a predicate racketeering offense along with Piper Jaffray’s 
extortion of Antigenics, Inc., a business associate of Medical Supply’s. Each act of 
racketeering and terrorism under Count VI; Violation Of Criminal Laws To Influence 
Public Policy Under Section 802 Of The USA Patriot Act described by Medical Supply 
are predicate offenses" set out in 18 U.S.C. § 1962, for which there are civil remedies 
under 18 U.S.C. § 1964 (1982) 
 
The plaintiff’s “failure to train and supervise” and “excessive use of force” claims are 
actionable under 42 § USC 1983 and allowance should be made for the pleading to be 
amended so it conforms to the defendant’s requirements. The plaintiff has shown that the 
defendants enforced the USA Patriot Act against Medical Supply, that that enforcement 
was as an agent for the Department of the Treasury and its FINCEN crimes unit. Failure 
to train and supervise is a settled cause of action under 42 § USC 1983 for improper use 
of force committed by unprepared employees of the enforcement agency. Acts of private 
individuals may support an action for liability under 42 U.S.C. § 1983 if the individuals 
are "willing participant[s] in a joint action with the state or its agents."  Brinkman, 793 F. 
2d at 112; Dennis v. Sparks, 449 U.S. 24, 101 S. Ct. 183, 66 L. Ed. 2d 185 (1980). 
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"The elements of a civil conspiracy are 1) an actual violation of a right protected under 
§1983 and 2) actions taken in concert by the defendants with specific intent to violate the 
aforementioned right."  Kerr v. Lyford, 171 F. 3d 330, 339 (5th Cir. 1999).  
 

The Defendants misappropriated MSCI’s Trade Secrets in violation of MSCI’s 

intellectual property rights (Conversion) and K.S.A. 60-3321 

 

1. In an action to enjoin unfair competition arising by reason of the unauthorized use of a 
trade secret, the plaintiff must establish (1) the existence of a trade secret used by plaintiff 
in its business or trade, (2) a confidential relationship between the parties,  
(3) disclosures made in confidence by plaintiff to defendant concerning the trade secret, 
and (4) an unauthorized use of those disclosures by the defendant. 
 
2. An exact definition of a trade secret may not be possible, but factors to be considered 
in recognizing a trade secret are: (1) the extent to which the information is known outside 
the business, (2) the extent to which it is known to those inside the business, i. e., by the 
employees, (3) the precautions taken by the holder of the trade secret to guard the secrecy 
of the information, (4) the savings effected and the value to the holder in having the 
information as against competitors, (5) the amount of effort or money expended in 
obtaining and developing the information, and (6) the amount of time and expense it 
would take for others to acquire and duplicate the information. 
 
3. A trade secret may consist of any formula, pattern, device or compilation of 
information which is used in one's business, and which gives him an opportunity to 
obtain an advantage over competitors who do not know or use it. 
KOCH ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC. v. Wayne C. FAULCONER and Faulcon 

Engineering 610 P.2d 1094, 227 Kan. 813. 
 
Breach of confidentiality.  
Many cases have held that a bank may have a duty to disclose information in its 
possession to a customer, perhaps even information about another customer. Barnett 

Bank v. Hooper, 498 So. 2d 923, 925-26 (Fla. 1986).   
 
Courts have struggled with the question of whether a bank owes a duty to its customer 
not to disclose to third parties information learned in the course of banking dealings.  For 
example, the court in Djowharzadeh v. City Nat'l Bank and Trust Co., 646 P.2d 616, 619-
20 (Okla. Ct. App. 1982) imposed tort liability on a bank for breaching a duty of 
confidentiality owed an applicant denied a condominium loan when the wives of the 
bank's senior executives purchased the bargain-priced condominium five days after the 
bank denied the regular customer's application to finance the purchase.  See also Jordan 

v. Shattuck Nat'l Bank, 868 F.2d 383, 387 (10th Cir. 1989) [under state law, bank had 
duty to keep information derived from loan application confidential, therefore questions 
of wrongful disclosure and intentional interference with contractual relationships were 
jury issues]; Rubenstein v. South Denver Nat'l Bank, 762 P.2d 755, 756 (Colo. Ct. App. 
1988) [in a case in which defendants told plaintiffs' customer that plaintiffs were having 
financial difficulty, the court summarized the general agreement of reported decisions, 
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and stated "a bank has an obligation to its customers not to disclose unnecessarily, 
promiscuously, or maliciously their financial condition"]; Steelvest, Inc. v. Scansteel 

Serv., Inc., 807 S.W.2d 476, 484 (Ky. 1991) [bank loaning money to shareholder may be 
liable if it uses shareholder's confidential financial information in financing a 
competitor].   
 

Breach of Contract Claims 
 

Breach of Written Contract to provide Small Business Banking Services 

A written agreement between two or more parties creating obligations that are 
enforceable or otherwise recognizable at law. 

 

Breach of Oral Contract to provide Escrow Accounts 

An oral agreement between two or more parties creating obligations that are enforceable 
or otherwise recognizable at law. 

 

Oral agreements are enforceable, even if some terms were somewhat indefinite, including 
the exact amount of the loan, the date of the loan, the rate of interest, or the terms of 
repayment.  National Farmers Org., Inc. v. Kingsley Bank, 731 F.2d 1464, 1469-70 (10th 
Cir. 1984); Landes Constr. Co., Inc. v. Royal Bank, 833 F.2d 1365, 1368, 1375 (9th Cir. 
1987) 

 

Breach of Written Contract to provide Escrow Accounts 

A written agreement between two or more parties creating obligations that are 
enforceable or otherwise recognizable at law. 
 

Escrow Accounts Outside Of K.S.A. 33-106 Statutes of Frauds  

The Kansas Supreme Court has found oral agreements between a customer and a bank 
relating to escrow accounts do not come under the statute of frauds: “For its sixth issue 
the Bank argues the agreement (if any) [ an oral agreement by bank to credit the proceeds 
of the future sale of the home (funds in an ESCROW ACCOUNT against the Becker loan 
] between Becker and the Bank was unenforceable as violative of the Statute of 
Frauds….The Bank argues the agreement was one ‘to answer for the debt ... of another.’ 
Clearly, that was not the agreement.” [emphasis added] BECKER v. BUMAN and ALLEN 

COUNTY BANK & TRUST, 721 P.2d 246 at Page 252, 239 Kan. 342 (1986) 
 

Escrow Accounts Outside Of K.S.A. 16-118(a) Statute of Frauds 

“Furthermore, there is evidence in the legislative record that the 1989 amendment was 
intended to make clear that lenders would not be required to sign documents, such as 
promissory notes, which traditionally only required the signature of the debtor to make 
such agreements enforceable.” Bittel v.Farm Credit Services Of Central Kansas, P.C.A. 

962 P.2d 491,at 498, 265 Kan. 651,(1998) 

 
Expectation damages including lost profits 

A party who seeks to recover his expectation interest in the contract is asking to be given 
the benefit of his bargain by being put in as good a position as he would have been in had 
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the contract been performed. Restatement (Second) of Contracts § 344(a) (1981); 
Vanderpool v. Higgs, 10 Kan.App.2d 1, 3, 690 P.2d 391 (1984). Expectation damages 
usually consist of lost profits plus any incidental or consequential losses caused by the 
breach. 22 Am.Jur.2d, Damages § 45, p. 69. 
 
In Kansas, "loss of profits resulting from a breach of contract may be recovered as 
damages when such profits are proved with reasonable certainty, and when they may 
reasonably be considered to have been within the contemplation of the parties." Vickers v. 

Wichita State University, 213 Kan. 614, 618, 518 P.2d 512 (1974); Levi Strauss & Co. v. 

Sheaffer, 8 Kan.App.2d 117, 127, 650 P.2d 738 (1982). 
 
. . . a defendant whose wrongful conduct has rendered difficult the ascertainment of 
precise damages suffered by the plaintiff is not entitled to complain that they cannot be 
measured with the same exactness and preciseness as would otherwise be possible. 
Eastman v Southern Photo, 273 US 359 at 378/79, (1926) . . . rarely is it possible to 
demonstrate to any absolute certainty what would have happened in circumstances that 
the wrongdoer did not allow to come to pass - Jeanes v Milner, 428 F2d 598 at 605, (8th 
Cir 1970) cites Hicks v US, 368 F2d 626 at 632, (4th Cir 1966) 
 
Breach of Contract Warranty  

US BANCORP NA has made an express warranty  “Five Star Service Guaranty” 

publishing that it will compensate any customer for the amount of money it takes to 

reimburse them for their loss. 1)Express warranties are created by the seller when s/he 

makes promises a/b, describes, or provides models or samples of the goods & the bargain 

is based in part on those representations.  [UCC 2-313] 2) Implied warranties arise from. 

a common factual situation or set of conditions and exist unless explicitly negated [UCC 

2-313 comment 1].  Implied warranty of merchantability [UCC 2-314] means goods are 

fit for their usual purposes, saleable, and conform to representations on the pkg (if any).  

3) Implied warranty of fitness for a particular use comes up when buyer depends on 

seller’s expertise that goods will suit buyer’s needs.  [UCC 2-315] 4) Third parties may 

be beneficiaries of express or implied warranties – see UCC 2-318. 
 

Promissory Estoppel 

Decatur Cooperative Association v. Urban, 219 Kan. 171, Syl. pp 5, 6, 7, 547 P.2d 323 
(1976), states: 
 
"The doctrine of promissory estoppel may render enforceable any promise upon which 
the promisor intended, or should have known, that the promisee would act to his 
detriment, and which is indeed acted upon in such a manner by the promisee, where 
application of the statute of frauds to that promise would thus work a fraud or gross 
injustice upon the promisee." 
 
"Before the doctrine of promissory estoppel can be invoked in a case involving the statute 
of frauds the promisee must first show by competent evidence that a valid and otherwise 
enforceable contract was entered into by the parties." Id. 
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"In order for the doctrine of promissory estoppel to be invoked the evidence must show 
that the promise was made under circumstances where the promisor intended and 
reasonably expected that the promise would be relied upon by the promisee and further 
that the promisee acted reasonably in relying upon the promise. Furthermore promissory 
estoppel should be applied only if a refusal to enforce it would be virtually to sanction the 
perpetration of fraud or would result in other injustice." Id. 
 
"A party asserting equitable estoppel must show that another party, by its acts, 
representations, admissions, or silence when it had a duty to speak, induced it to believe 
certain facts existed. It must also show that it rightly relied and acted upon such belief 
and would now be prejudiced if the other party were permitted to deny the existence of 
such facts. Iola State Bank v. Biggs, 233 Kan. 450, Syl. p 4, 662 P.2d 563 (1983). 
[265 Kan. 663] In order to recover on a theory of promissory estoppel, the Bittels must 
establish that they entered into an otherwise valid and enforceable contract with P.C.A. in 
June 1993 to renew their financing. They also must prove that P.C.A. should have known 
that the Bittels would rely upon this agreement and that the Bittels did reasonably rely 

upon P.C.A.'s promise. Bittel v.Farm Credit Services Of Central Kansas, P.C.A. 962 P.2d 

491,at 498, 265 Kan. 651,(1998). 

 

Partial Performance 

"Before partial performance can be invoked to escape the operation of the statute of 
frauds, the contract must be fully made in every respect, except for an actual writing. 
Owasso Dev. Co. v. Associated Wholesale Grocers, Inc., 19 Kan.App.2d 549, 873 P.2d 
212, rev. denied, 255 Kan. 1003 (1994). 
 
Negligent Misrepresentation 

Kansas first adopted the tort of negligent misrepresentation as defined in Restatement 
(Second) of Torts § 552 (1976) Mahler v. Keenan Real Estate, Inc., 255 Kan. 593, 605, 
876 P.2d 609 (1994). Gerhardt v. Harris, 261 Kan. 1007, 1018, 934 P.2d 976 (1997), 
stating:"The comments to § 552 show that negligent misrepresentation applies to 
suppliers of commercial information in favor of users of such information in their 
commercial transactions." The court later added: "Generally, § 552 includes negligent 
supply of commercial information to others for guidance in their business transactions." 
261 Kan. at 1019, 934 P.2d 976.To permit a claim for negligent misrepresentation, 1) 
such a misrepresentation must be an affirmative statement of fact 2) upon which MSCI 
had a right to rely. Bittel V.Farm Credit Services Of Central Kansas, P.C.A. 962 P.2d 491 
at pg. 501, 265 Kan. 651,(1998) 
 

Fraudulent Misrepresentation 

In Gerhardt, the court quoted from City of Warrensburg, Mo. v. RCA Corp., 571 F.Supp. 
743 (W.D.Mo.1983), which distinguished negligent misrepresentation from a 
misrepresentation to perform an agreement. The RCA court set forth the comment to § 
530, which said in part: " 'If the agreement is not enforceable as a contract, as when it is 
without consideration, the recipient still has, as his only remedy, the action in deceit 
under the rule stated in § 525 [Liability for Fraudulent Misrepresentation].' " 571 F.Supp. 
at 753. The RCA court went on to state:" Unlike § 530, § 552 does not, by its terms, 
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apply to misrepresentation of intention to perform an agreement. Nor do the illustrations 
to § 552 apply to other than typical cases of misrepresentation of factual, commercial 
information. The Comments to § 530 specifically state that where there is no viable 
action on the [265 Kan. 665] contract, the exclusive remedy for misrepresentation of 
intention to perform an agreement lies in the action for deceit...”. 571 F.Supp. at 753. . 
Bittel V.Farm Credit Services Of Central Kansas, P.C.A. 962 P.2d 491 at pg. 501, 265 
Kan. 651, (1998) 
 
The elements of fraudulent misrepresentation are as follows:  

 
1. a false representation is made;  
2. which is material to the transaction;  
3. which is made with knowledge of its falsity or reckless disregard as to whether 

it was true or false;  
4. with the intention by the person making the representation that the recipient 

will be induced to act or refrain from acting;  
5. which representation is justifiably relied upon by the recipient; and  
6. which reliance proximately causes the recipient to suffer damages. 
  

First, in order to be actionable, the representation need not be in the form of a positive 
assertion. It can consist of anything calculated to deceive, whether by single act or 
combination, whether by suppression of truth or a suggestion of what is false, and it 
includes direct falsehoods, innuendos, silence, gestures, etc.  
 
 
Secondly, an innocent representation is actionable where the party making the 
representation is under some duty to ascertain the truth or falsity of the statement before 
making the "representation." 
 
Lastly, a representation may be actionable by some third party if that third party's reliance 
was foreseeable. Bortz v. Noon, 698 A.2d 1311 (Pa. Super. 1997) 
 
Fiduciary Duty Jury Instruction 

Statement of a Trust Officer's fiduciary duty, if found.  
 
A typical fiduciary duty jury charge might be:  
 
A fiduciary relationship exists whenever under the circumstances trust and confidence 
reasonably may be and is reposed by one person in the integrity and fidelity of another.  
A fiduciary is bound to act in the highest good faith toward his beneficiary, and may not 
obtain any advantage therein over the latter by the slightest misrepresentation, 
concealment, threat, or adverse pressure of any kind.  A transaction by which the 
fiduciary obtains an advantage from the beneficiary is presumed to be a violation of the 
fiduciary's duties.  
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Trust Officer has the burden of proving by a preponderance of the evidence all of the 
facts necessary to establish that Trust Officer did not violate its fiduciary duties to  
 
Breach Of Duty Of Good Faith And Fair Dealing.  

Kansas courts imply a duty of good faith and fair dealing in every contract. Parties shall 
not "intentionally and purposely do anything to prevent the other party from carrying out 
his part of the agreement, or do anything which will have the effect of destroying or 
injuring the right of the other party to receive the fruits of the contract." Bonanza, Inc. v. 

McLean, 242 Kan. 209, 222, 747 P.2d 792 (1987). In dealing with good faith arguments 
against lenders by borrowers, we have stated the test of good faith is subjective and 
requires only honesty in fact. Karner v. Willis, 238 Kan. 246, 249, 710 P.2d 21 (1985). 
The traditional rule is that the lender-borrower relationship creates no special duty. 
Denison State Bank v. Madeira, 230 Kan. at 695, 640 P.2d 1235. We have followed this 
rule, imposing liability on financial institutions only in those instances involving fraud 
and conflicts of interest. See Rossi, Lender Liability in Kansas: A Paradigm of 
Competing Tort and Contract Theories, 29 Washburn L.J. 495, 503-05 (1990) 
(comprehensive review of Kansas lender liability cases). Paul v. Smith, 191 Kan. 163, 
170, 380 P.2d 421 (1963) ("agreements establishing fiduciary relationships, if not in 
writing, must be clear and convincing"). 
 
Bad Faith 

 
Litigating Defenses To Enforcement That Are Without Merit 

Commercial Cotton Co. v. United Cal. Bank, 163 Cal. App. 3d 511, 516, 209 Cal. Rptr. 
551 (1985)  [bank liable for "stonewalling" assertion of an invalid defense to customer's 
lawsuit] 
 
Tortious Interference With A Contract 

Under common law, intentional interference with contractual relations gives rise to a tort 
action if it is malicious or without justification. See Stratmore v Goodbody, 866 F2d 189, 
(6th Cir KY 1989) denied 490 US 1066 Proof of motive for wrongful conduct is not 
essential to recovery for tort. See L&N RR v Thomas, 183 SW2d 19, (KY 1944) 
 
. . . malice is imputed where wrongful act evidenced entire want of care or great 
indifference to consequences and rights of others RB Tyler v Kinser, 346 SW2d 306, (KY 
1961) 
 
. . . Justice Holmes described this form of malice as follows: "if the manifest probability 
of harm is very great, and the harm follows, we say that it is done maliciously or 
intentionally. . . . "Holmes, Privilege, Malice, and Intent, 8 Harv L Rev. 1, at 1 (1894) as 
quoted in 49 U CHI LR 61 at p. 94 . . . Malice required for intentional interference with 
prospective contractual relations may be inferred by proof of lack of justification.= NCAA 

v Hornung, 754 SW2d 855, (KY 1988) 
We conclude that tort liability exists in Kentucky for the malicious interference with 
known contractual rights of another when special damage results therefrom, at least when 
accomplished by some unlawful means such as fraud, deceit or coercion. [citation 
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omitted] We would place the breach of a fiduciary or confidential relationship on a par 
with fraud and deceit. The pleadings sufficiently charge the tort of malicious interference 
with known contractual rights of another through the use of unlawful means. Henkin v 

Berea Bank & Trust Co., 566 SW2d 420, (Ky App. 1978),NCAA v. Hornung, 754 SW2d 
855 at 858 (KY 1988). 
 

(6) The most important or key factual issues and legal issues that are 

believed to be involved in the case in light of the above-referenced 

essential elements 

 

The Plaintiff’s Key Factual and Legal Issues: 
 

The plaintiff believes there are no open factual or legal issues in this matter. The facts 
required for defendants’ liability on the above stated claims are already in the record as 
evidence at this date. The defense has not denied any fact required to find for the plaintiff 
on any of the currently stated claims. The sole defense to any of the above claims is 
legitimate “business justification” that promotes competition in the relevant market place 
and overpowers the fiduciary duty owed by the defendants to the plaintiff.  
 
The defendants have not provided any evidence that contradicts evidence proffered by the 
plaintiff that the “business justification” was 1) pre-textual and 2) a deliberate 
misrepresentation of “know your customer” costs that did not in fact exist under the USA 
PATRIOT Act (the reason repeatedly stated and clarified in recorded conversations) and 
finally, the defense never asserted a pro-competitive justification as required.  
 
After numerous motions, pleadings, briefs and affidavits by the plaintiff stating the 
absence of a pro-competitive justification and the consequent failure of any legal defense 
to the plaintiff’s antitrust claims, which were responded to by the defendants as a group 
in motions, hearings, appellate motion defenses, an appellee brief and three motions to 
dismiss the court cannot now entertain a raising of a pro-competitive justification by a 
current defendant party. 
 
The plaintiff anticipates that there will be new factual and legal issues as other defendants 
are added. Furthermore, the current defendants as well as future defendants have the 
opportunity to challenge factual and legal assertions related to the damages. 
 
The Defendants’ Key Factual and Legal Issues: 

 
(7) A breakdown of damages sought 

 
The anti-trust actions taken by US Bancorp and its affiliates have resulted in devastating 
losses to healthcare. MSCI is suffering short and long-term losses, through injury to the 
corporation, its stakeholders, associates, suppliers and more than 2000 hospitals. In 
addition the public has suffered injury and loss of life which are not recoverable. MSCI’s 
loss in reasonable and foreseeable expectation injuries through delay and denial of 
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services exceed the financial resources of the majority of the defendants and defendant 
entities. 
 
In addition to revenue losses, MSCI is suffering from injury to its collateral commitments 
and obligations, which it is unable to meet as a result of anti-trust actions taken by US 
Bancorp and its affiliates. According to MSCI’s misappropriated forward financials dated 
November 2002, which were in the possession of US Bancorp and its affiliates at the time 
of the breach and anti-trust actions; the lost profits directly resulting are $250 Million. 
Due to MSCI commitments and obligations to its stakeholders, an additional $250 
Million in asset appreciation and expected return on their investment.  
 
As a direct result of the injury to MSCI, its associate/representatives also are damaged 
due to the anti-trust actions of US Bancorp and its affiliates.  According to MSCI’s 
misappropriated forward financials dated November 2002, the associate/representatives 
losses equal $48 million dollars. 
 
As a direct result of the actions taken against MSCI by US Bancorp and its affiliates, 
MSCI’s business consultant and supplier associates have been injured in MSCI’s inability 
to fulfill success agreements and service contracts. MSCI business consultants and 
suppliers have performed several hundred hours in services and created value added 
intellectual property of value only to MSCI for performance in the denied relevant 
market, all in reliance on MSCI’s expectations contained in the November 2002 business 
plan and its corporate and personal commitments. These obligations are contractually due 
and MSCI is unable to meet its obligations as a result of the antitrust injury. These 
monetary losses are $6.5 Million.  
 
MSCI has been injured in the loss of reputation through the inability to meet the 
expectations of hospitals that were dependent on the web based electronic market model 
and in the antitrust/RICO concept that an injury to a business associate is an injury to the 
plaintiff. The direct result of MSCI losses and inability to perform its services to 
customer hospitals are the savings and additional revenue MSCI generates for its 
customers through its services. Losses to the MSCI identified class of customers 
described in its November 2002 business plan are directly due to the anti-trust actions of 
US Bancorp and its affiliates and are 20% of the total spend these health systems suffer 
annually. The misappropriated forward financials that were in the possession of the 
defendants show this amount to be $1.7 Billion.  
 
Total Actual Damages As of April 21, 2003 

The above claims reflect the losses suffered by MSCI, its business associate stakeholders, 
associate/representatives, suppliers and customers. To date, damages are $1.7 Billion 
dollars. 
 
Punitive Damages 
The plaintiff plans to file a motion for leave to amend the complaint to include punitive 
damages once the initial phase of discovery is sufficiently progressed to have obtained 
the evidentiary attachments. 
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Antitrust Treble Damages 

MSCI is seeking damages under claims for antitrust injury, as such the above actual 
damages, and final fees and costs will be trebled. 
 
Attorney’s Fees As of April 21, 2003 

The plaintiff’s current trial court level fees are $113,750 

The plaintiff’s current appellate level fees are $163,800 
 
Authorities for Damages 

 
Bank Malfeasance 

How reasonably foreseeable consequences to bank malfeasance are treated when the 
bank had knowledge or should have known of the implications of its harmful act is 
indicated in Anuhco, Inc. v. Westinghouse Credit Corp., 883 S.W.2d 910 (Mo App 1994).  
  
New Business Profits 

Medical Supply Chain, Inc. had a high level of national market viability. MSCI can prove 

its lost profits and value with reasonable certainty. See generally Roger I. Abrams, 
Donald Welsch, & Bruce Jones, Stillborn Enterprises: Calculating Expectation Damages 
Using Forensic Economics, 57 Ohio St. L.J. 809 (1996) (criticizing the "new business 
rule" and indicating the proofs that are needed to support this kind of claim). As those 
authors concluded, "The key judicial finding [is] the market viability of the stillborn 

enterprise." Id. at 834.  See also Bollas, The New Business Rule and the Denial of Lost 

Profits, 48 Ohio St.L.J. 855 (1987). Instead of a strict bar on such claims, many courts 

now hold that, regardless of whether a business is new or is established, lost profits can 

be recovered if it is possible to show by competent evidence and with reasonable 

certainty that profits would have been made and the amount of those profits. 22 

Am.Jur.2d Damages § 627. 

 

Westric Battery Co. v. Standard Elec. Co., 482 F.2d 1307 (10th Cir. 1973), "[i]t is 
conceivable that there could be capital loss shown in addition to out-of-pocket expenses 
and loss of profits." Id. at 1317 
 
Lost future profits may be used as a method of calculating damage where no other 
reliable method of valuing the business is available, see Albrecht v. The Herald Co., 452 
F.2d 124 at 129 (8th Cir. 1971) cited for this purpose by 10th Cir. 
 
Antitrust Lost Profits 
US Bancorp Piper Jaffray is the unusual monopolist who made and published an 
exhaustive expert study concluding Medical Supply Chain’s form of web based hospital 
supply Electronic marketplace would have an $83 Billion dollar market and that it would 
eliminate $23 Billion dollars in price inefficiency. Medical Supply Chain’s forward 
financials were authoritive and understated. The evidence indicates that US Bancorp and 
its affiliates were convinced of MSCI’s viability and took steps to kill it.  
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Antitrust/RICO Customer, Business Associate Injury as Plaintiff Damage 
RICO civil standing is not limited to only the immediate victim of a defendant's RICO 

violation. Zervas v. Faulkner, 861 F.2d 823, 823, 833 (5th Cir.1988) ("A requirement that 

the nexus between the injury and a predicate act be 'direct' may ... be overly restrictive.") 

 

Mid Atl. Telecom, Inc. v. Long Distance Servs., Inc., 18 F.3d 260, 263 (4th Cir.1994) 

(rejecting adoption of a rule that only injuries suffered by the immediate victim of a 

predicate act satisfy the "by reason of" requirement of § 1964(c)). In Mid Atlantic, a 

plaintiff telephone company accused one of its competitors of violating RICO by 

defrauding its customers with fictitious charges, enabling it to charge lower rates to entice 

new subscribers. The plaintiff company alleged that it lost revenues from subscribers who 

were defrauded into accepting the fraudulent lower rates of the defendant company. The 

Fourth Circuit rejected the argument that the plaintiff company lacked standing 

because the customers were the directly injured parties and only they were 

proximately injured by its alleged misconduct. 
 

“…loss of other employment opportunities was foreseeable by the defendants and could 

certainly be anticipated as a natural consequence of their alleged misrepresentations, 

Khurana has sufficiently pleaded that the alleged substantive violations of § 1962(b) and 

§ 1962(c) proximately caused his business opportunity loss.” Khurana v. Innovative 

Health Care Systems, Inc., 130 F.3d 143  at 153(C.A.5 (La.), 1997) 

 

3. Plan for Pre-Discovery Disclosures 

 

Plaintiff Designation Of Date Defendants Had Reasonable Notice That Litigation Is 

Imminent For Document Preservation Requirements 
 
Defendants knew or had reasonable notice litigation regarding the escrow accounts was 
imminent: OCTOBER 15th, 2002. 
 
If a defendant is reasonably on notice that litigation has begun or is imminent, it would be 
a profound tactical mistake to destroy documents. If a company knows or should know 
that certain records may eventually become relevant in litigation, it must preserve them. 
When litigation is pending or imminent, usual procedures for electronic data destruction 
or recycling may have to be suspended. In re Prudential Sales Practices Litigation, 169 
F.R.D. 598 (D.N.J. 1997). 
 

Plaintiff Pre-Discovery Disclosures 
 
Plaintiff Experts 
In the appendix, the Plaintiff identifies and provides resumes of its preliminary 
designation of experts. 
 
Plaintiff identifies Cheryl Woodall as the enterprise software forensic expert for purposes 
of the electronic discovery plan. 
 
Plaintiff requested pre-discovery disclosures 
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Plaintiff requires all insurance polices, limits and payment status relevant to the 
defendants actions including errors and omissions of the trust officers and legal 
malpractice for the trust department counsel, Kristin Strong.  
 
Plaintiff requires all insurance polices, limits and payment status relevant to the 

defendants’ legal counsel including the firms Dorsey Whitney and Shughart, Thomson, 

and Kilroy for malpractice. (Plaintiff has reason to believe these policies are being used 

as a partial surety by the defendants and may have a direct claim related to the assertions 

and conduct of the defense.) 

 

Plaintiff requires a list of the customer entities and corporate officers for accounts and 

services provided medical suppliers and distributors listed in the appendix from each 

defendant. 

 

4. Plan for ADR 

 

a. The parties agree that ADR would not serve a useful purpose in this case. 
 

b. To date, the parties have engaged in the following good faith efforts to resolve 
this matter:   

 
1. The plaintiff attempted to explain the inapplicability and suspension of the 

USA Patriot Act given as a reason for breaking the escrow account by the 
defendants.  

2. The plaintiff sought to compromise and have the contract for 10 escrow 
accounts honored instead of litigating before filing its complaint.  

3. The plaintiff attempted to have a voluntary agreement to a court order 
barring USA Patriot Act reporting but the defendants prior to the hearing 
for preliminary injunctive relief rejected it. 

4. The plaintiff offered to make available experts for mutual discovery over 
the academic holiday weekend. Offer refused by defense. 

5. The plaintiff contacted The Royal Bank of Canada and offered to flexibly 
resolve its claims against Piper Jaffray. RBC decided not to purchase Piper 
Jaffray. 

6. The plaintiff contacted A.G. Edwards and offered to flexibly resolve its 
claims against Piper Jaffray. A.G. Edwards decided not to purchase Piper 
Jaffray. 

7. The plaintiff attempted to settle Piper Jaffray’s portion of the damages but 
received no response. 

 
 

 c. The parties have agreed on the following alternative dispute resolution 
procedure:  None* 
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* Plaintiff now on information and belief understands the monopoly profit depended 
upon by the defendants was at all times far in excess of the risk of a judgment posed by 
this action. As a consequence, plaintiff will make no further settlement attempts. 
   
5. Plan for Discovery 

 

THE ELECTRONIC DATA DISCOVERY PLAN 

This action concerns several antitrust and racketeering claims involving many separate 
defendants and third party corporations in addition to contract and fiduciary duty clauses 
of action. The industries of the defendants and the specific relevant and related markets 
of the antitrust claims rely almost exclusively on electronic documentation and their 
regulatory and business practices environments require that the electronic documentation 
is fully archived. The defendant and third party corporate institutions and their officers 
have left data trails behind them that are infinitely detailed and far more accessible than 
they would have been as little as five years ago. These circumstances enable the claims to 
be decisively proved or disproved after a careful weighing of abundant evidence. To 
minimize the expense and time required by the parties and the court in this process, the 
following electronic data discovery plan is proposed. 
 
The first step of the electronic data discovery plan is to Map Out the locations where 
information relevant to the claims is to be found. Following the mapping of locations data 
universe which is expected to be the equivalent of between 10 and 30 million documents 
distributed among the defendants, plaintiff and third party customers, vendors or 
suppliers; this plan implements a proposed DATA PRESERVATION ORDER. Under the 
terms of the proposed order, proactive monitoring of preservation tasks and the status of 
data repositories is reported periodically at regular Rule 16 Conferences.  
Once the relevant data has been identified, located and preserved, the next step is for the 
parties to conduct Discovery Requests And Review. A critical part of minimizing the 
time and costs to the parties is for all documents and data to be delivered to the opposing 
parties in electronic form if the data was originated in an electronic medium and if it was 
at any time converted into electronic form. To safeguard against unintentional forfeiture 
of privilege while keeping the exchange of data as fast as possible, this plan includes a 
proposed INADVERTENT WAIVER PROTECTION ORDER Finally, the last step 
involves preparing evidence for hearing and concerns Trial Issues of authentication. This 
plan requires counsel for both parties to archive the original version or authentic copy of 
data delivered in discovery so that authentication controls will be in place at trial. 
 
MAP OUT 
Rule 26(a)(1) provides a party must, without awaiting a discovery request, provide to 
other parties: "A copy of, or a description by category and location of, all documents, 
data compilations, and tangible things that are in the possession, custody, or control of 
the party and that the party will use to support its claims and defenses, unless solely for 
impeachment, identifying the subjects of the information;..” This requirement means that 
a company must search available electronic systems for relevant information even prior 
to a discovery request. McPeek v. Ashcroft, 202 F.R.D. 31, 32 (D.D.C. 2001) 
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These disclosures must be made at or within 14 days after the Rule 26(f) conference, at 
which the parties meet to discuss settlement and a discovery plan. Although this time 
restriction can be amended by stipulation or court order, Rule 26(a)(1) is clearly designed 
to encourage early disclosure of important information supporting a party's claims or 
defenses. Accordingly, parties must have efficient procedures in place to preserve and 
retrieve relevant documents and data at the outset of litigation. 
 
This plan utilizes the parties’ existing RRP’s or Retention Requirements Plan as a guide 
to find the locations of relevant data and implement preservation measures required in the 
DATA PRESERVATION ORDER. The corporation entities have had the responsibility 
of implementing a corporate records management program. In addition, the corporation 
working with outside counsel may have already developed a discovery response program 
that includes specific procedures for handling electronic discovery requests. The RRP’s 
will be used to identify caches of relevant electronic data, described below, and how to 
extract information from them. 
 
The corporation entities existing RRP’s: 
 

• Set the term for retaining documents, which should reflect applicable statutory 
and administrative limitation retention periods, or other applicable laws. 
  
• Establish uniform indexing procedures to enable rapid recovery of relevant 
information from the archives.  

 
The Map Out phase requires disclosure of persons who are familiar with their corporation 
entity’s Information Technology department and external contractors who maintain the 
entity’s data , including equity ownership registries for stock ownership. Once identified, 
the parties can pursue 30(b)(6) discovery of the corporate officers knowledgeable about 
electronic document storage and document retention policies at this early phase of 
litigation. These depositions will be used to provide substantive information about 
systems and document management protocols, shaping further discovery. See, e.g., 
Carbon Dioxide Industry Antitrust Litigation, 155 F.R.D. 209, 214 (M.D. Fla. 1993) 
(depositions to acquire information about defendants' computers were necessary to 
proceed with substantive discovery); Alexander v. FBI, 188 F.R.D. 111 (D.D.C. 
1998)(deposition about e-mail systems facilitated substantive discovery).  
 
The RRP’s are the preliminary guide to this plan’s Map Out process. The depositions 
and/or internal investigations by defense counsel will be used to determine the chasm 
between corporate entities’ document retention policies and manuals and how executives 
and key witnesses understand and apply those policies.  
 
Compliance with the DATA PRESERVATION ORDER will require each defendant 
corporate entity to identify, list and maintain the electronic information that resides at 
various places within the defendant organization and its business affiliates, customers, 
vendors, and suppliers. The corporate entities are required to have familiarity with these 
locations, described below, and how to extract information from them.  
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Electronic Data discovery requests will seek relevant data from and about the following: 
 
• System users and administrators. The system administrators and relevant system 
users will be asked how, when and where information is stored, and why it is stored in 
that manner -- for example, how files are named, password-protected and encrypted.  
 
• Personal computer and server hard drives. Information will be extracted from PCs 
and servers. For PCs, the preferred extraction method is to create a bit-by-bit image of 
their hard drives. Failure to follow this procedure, such as by employing a simple unerase 
or disk-copying utility, may lead to destruction of data, claims of spoliation and 
sanctions.  
 
• Telephone And Cell Phone Records You have cell phones and their call logs and 
Palm Pilots. You have browser-based applications. Do you have to get cookie files and 
personal history files? In certain parts of the world, you may outsource communications. 
 

• Network backup tapes. Backup tapes of server data are regularly archived in case of a 
server or system failure. The system administrator typically follows a backup-tape 
recycling rotation schedule in which tapes are overwritten after a certain period, typically 
two to four weeks. As discussed above, the rotation schedule should stop once litigation 
is commenced to preserve possibly relevant information. 
  
• Internet server data and Internet visit data, such as cookies. These data can help 
administrators trace someone's Internet usage trail. The trail may be reconstructed from 
server logs and other trace evidence, such as cookies. You have browser-based applications. 

Do you have to get cookie files and personal history files? 
• Embedded chips and PDA devices. Relevant data can often be found in voicemail 
systems, dictaphone systems, EZ Pass, and Palm Pilots and other personal digital 
assistants. 
 
• Databases -- spreadsheets, e-mail and other dynamic systems. Database printouts 
frequently do not accurately represent the system data available to and/or used by the 
user. Computer code under each field or cell may affect the presentation of data to the 
viewer and what is actually printed. This may be important if the database's operations -- 
how it functioned and processed information -- is relevant to the proceeding. If that is the 
case, examination of the code under each field or cell will be necessary. 
 
• Meta data. Meta data is embedded data. For example, many word processors store 
information about a document that is not readily apparent from the face of the document, 
such as the author or the time it was last accessed or modified. Likewise, the specification 
(international standard) for e-mail enables e-mail to be exchanged between different 
systems. The specification identifies about 30 fields, but the sender and recipients 
typically see only a few fields -- to, from, subject, date and headline. The sending e-mail 
system may contain more information such as time sent or blank copies -- "bccs." This 
information, particularly bccs, could be critical in this litigation. 
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• System logs. Many computers and servers have their own "audit trail" software that 
traces user action and inaction on the system. Some track user identities, passwords and 
access times. 
  
• File slack -- deleted and encrypted files. Files are stored in "allocated" space. Deleted 
files typically reside in unallocated or "slack" space. Computer forensics can recover 
deleted files even if they have been overwritten many times. Comparison of deleted files 
with the printed or current electronic versions of the file may reveal evidence of 
tampering or alteration. Encrypted files require a deciphering key to access the data.  
 

Authentic Copies Of Electronic Information  
Data that is not captured properly may not be admissible in evidence. What constitutes an 
authentic copy of electronic data? Most courts allow duplicates, subject to a proper 
foundation, which is premised on the data's being authentic. Federal Rule of Evidence 
1001(3) defines "original" computer data as "any printout or other output readable by 
sight, shown to reflect the data accurately. ..." Rule 1001(4) further defines "duplicate" as 
"a counterpart produced by the same impression as the original, or from the same matrix 
... or by mechanical or electronic re-recording ... or by other equivalent techniques which 
accurately reproduces the original." 
  
The copying process must be exact and complete; the data must be capable of 
independent verification as a duplicate of the original (accomplished through algorithmic 
electronic file comparison, which creates an identifying number that will match the 
original with the copy); and the data must be tamper-proof so as to protect against 
alteration of the data between copying and presentation in court (the IT specialist should 
write-protect the data, run virus checks and document the secure transport and storage of 
the data).  
 

RULE 16 CONFERENCES  

One of the most useful management tools for electronic discovery is the Rule 16 pretrial 
conference. Topics for discussion at the conference may include: preservation of 
evidence (including whether backup, archival and "deleted" files will be exchanged), 
preliminary disclosures as to the parties' computer systems (including numbers, types, 
and locations of computers, operating systems in use and backup schedules), document 
processing and production formats, testifying experts and anticipated evidentiary 
disputes. 
  
As with the Rule 26(f) meeting, counsel must be armed with all of the salient facts 
regarding all electronic evidence that is relevant to the case. Being fully prepared at a 
Rule 16 conference may help limit the scope of discovery of the client's data while 
maximizing the disclosures from opposing parties. The court may be educated by expert 
testimony as to the nature, location and volume of electronic data, as well as the time and 
cost involved in producing it. 
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DISCOVERY REQUESTS AND REVIEW  

Parties will incrementally approach electronic discovery by fashioning their request as 
narrowly and reasonably as possible. Electronic discovery takes place like a ladder. The 
first rung or two are narrow requests that will not give rise to defenses about the expense 
and burden. 
 
After the Rule 26 disclosures, attorneys may acquire more in-depth information or 
additional electronic data through a combination of interrogatories, requests for 
documents, and depositions. Requests should be carefully crafted to seek the data 
relevant to the claims and defenses in the matter. A request for "all electronic data" will 
likely result in an objection based on burden or expense, and courts often will not allow a 
"fishing expedition." Therefore, discovery requests must be specific and exhibit an 
understanding of how electronic data are created, stored and destroyed.  
The same criteria used in disclosing client data under the Rule 26 initial disclosure 
provision can be used to formulate effective interrogatories. The response to those 
interrogatories should provide a road map for a follow-up request for documents or 
subpoena duces tecum. If the response does not provide a road map, there are plenty of 
cases to support a motion to compel.  
 
Understanding all the advantages and potential pitfalls of electronic evidence is very 
important. Though electronic searches may be easier and faster than reviewing hard 
copies, the sheer volume of electronic documents can lead to mistakes. In a few million 
electronic pages of data, for example, it is relatively easy to miss an e-mail between you 
and your own client, inadvertently waiving the attorney-client privilege. 
 
FRCP 34 authorizes requests for production of documents, including "electronic data 
compilations." FRCP 34(a). It is now black letter law that computerized data is 
discoverable if relevant. Anti Monopoly, Inc. v. Hasbro, Inc., 1996 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 
16355, 1996 WL 22976 (S.D.N.Y.). Computer records, including those that have been 
"deleted," are discoverable documents under Rule 34. Simon Property Group v. 

mySimon, Inc., 194 F.R.D. 639, 640 (S.D. Ind. 2000). 
 
Courts routinely grant requests for electronic production, even when the same 
information has been produced in hard copy. Anti-Monopoly, supra. Courts recognize the 
necessity and efficiency of production in electronic form, and have applied the federal 
rules' mandate of just, efficient and inexpensive resolution of disputes to require 
electronic production.  
 
If a requesting party will otherwise incur unnecessary expense, paper will not substitute 
for computer-readable discovery. Storch v. IPCO Safety Products Co., 1997 U.S. Dist. 
LEXIS 10118, 1997 WL 401589 (E.D. Pa. 1997) (defendant required to produce 
electronically rather than impose upon plaintiff the cost of re-inputting data to allow 
computer analysis); In re Air Crash Disaster at Detroit Metropolitan Airport, 130 F.R.D. 
634 (E.D. Mich. 1989) (party compelled to re-create computer-readable tape though it 
had already produced printouts). 
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TRIAL ISSUES  
To be admissible, e-mail and other electronic evidence must be authenticated, and the 
evidence must clear any hearsay hurdles. Computer records may be admitted under the 
business records exception to the hearsay rule. However, the Federal Rules of Evidence 
require the party offering a computerized record to prove it was created "at or near the 
time" of the transaction, act, or event recorded in order to qualify as a business record 
exception to hearsay.  
 

THE DEPOSITION PLAN  

Plaintiff suggests all non-named party depositions take place through video conferencing 
with audio and video recording.  
 

THE THIRD PARTY PRACTICE PLAN 
Plaintiff will notify defense of all third parties sought to be subpoenaed for business 

records. Plaintiff will notify defense at the point when evidence indicates a third party 

might properly be a defendant.  

 

Plaintiff will not permit assertion of representation of third parties unless prior 

relationships are disclosed and documented. Plaintiff will seek to suspend this action and 

initiate an action against any law firm for the purpose of obstructing discovery and 

delaying justice. 

 

THE PLAN FOR PRIVILGE DETERMINATIONS AND REDACTIONS 

 
Trial Preparation Materials 

 

Medical Supply Chain, Inc.is a party under a substantial hardship and cannot obtain the 

substantial equivalent of the following relevant information in which it is in substantial 

need of. Medical Supply Chain, Inc.is an antitrust plaintiff and as such avails itself of the 

statutory policy requiring the defendants to produce the relevant evidence.  

 

All things prepared by defendants and defendant’s representatives in preparation for or 

anticipation of the: 

 

1. Current action against Medical Supply Chain. Inc., Sam Lipari, Ed Engel or Bret 

D. Landrith 

2. Current or recent actions, demands, negotiations against US Bancorp Piper Jaffray 

for “laddering” schemes manipulating the price of post IPO stock issues of 

technology companies, in collusion with US Bancorp customers and fund 

managers. 

3. Recent actions against defendants for failure to supervise or train as components 

to regulatory agency, criminal or private party civil complaints. * 

 
*On November 6, 2002, U.S. Bancorp Piper Jaffray was fined $100,000 for failing to 

properly supervise a securities employee or to have adequate systems in place to 

detect or prevent fraud schemes like the one that was the subject of the fine that 
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lasted from 1998 to 2001, noting that the brokerage had one supervisor responsible 

for more than 70 branch managers. 

 

4. US Bank banking privacy act violations and proposed class action settlement 

5. US Bancorp Piper Jaffray NASD securities violation enforcement proceeding for 

extortion of Antigenetics, Inc.  

6. US Bancorp Piper Jaffray’s Chief  Executive Officer’s NASD securities violation 

enforcement proceeding for extortion of Antigenetics, Inc. 

7. US Bancorp Piper Jaffray’s civil action by Antigenetics, Inc. 

8. US Bancorp Piper Jaffray state attorney general securities violation enforcement 

proceedings or letters of inquiry 

9. US Bancorp Piper Jaffray NASD securities violation enforcement proceeding for 

destroying email and other records* 

 
*On December 3, 2002 Securities regulators found U.S. Bancorp Piper Jaffray 

guilty of violating SEC Rule 17a-4 by failing "to preserve for three years, and/or to 

preserve in an accessible place for two years" such office memoranda as e-mails 

related to their exchange, brokerage or dealer businesses. U.S. Bancorp Piper 

Jaffray agreed to pay $1.65 million in fines. The Plaintiff planned to use this 

evidence to prove its antitrust claims. 

 

10. US Bancorp, US Bancorp Piper Jaffray SEC, NASD, Spitzer NY AG securities 

conflict of interest violation enforcement proceeding proposed settlement  

11. US Bancorp, US Bancorp Piper Jaffray agreements or settlements with Premier, 

Inc, and its corporate officers  

12. US Bancorp, US Bancorp Piper Jaffray agreements with Novation, Inc,, and its 

corporate officers 

13. US Bancorp, US Bancorp Piper Jaffray agreements with Neoforma, Inc,, and its 

corporate officers 

 

Identities and role of all persons acting for the defendants or their representatives, 

witnesses, experts, and persons acting for opponent parties in the above matters. 

 

Rule 26(b)(5) Asserted Privilege claims 

Asserting parties description of nature of documents, communications, or things in a 

manner that, without revealing information itself privileged or protected, will enable the 

other parties to access the applicability of the privilege or protection ….due 00/00/00 

 

Parties objecting to discovery on the basis of the attorney-client privilege bear the burden 
of establishing that the privilege applies. To carry the burden, they must describe the 
documents or information to be protected, state precise reasons for the objection to 
discovery, and provide sufficient information to enable the court to determine whether 
each element of the asserted privilege is satisfied. A blanket claim as to the applicability 
of a privilege does not satisfy the burden of proof. 
 
Under the facts of this case, where a public agency claimed various exemptions under the 
Kansas Open Records Act on the basis of attorney-client and other privileges, it was not 
erroneous or an abuse of discretion for the trial court to require the preparation of a 
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privilege log like that permitted under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 26(b)(5) as part of 
the burden of proving the claims of privilege and exemption. 
Under the facts of this case, after finding the City of Overland Park's privilege log was 
clearly insufficient, the trial court did not abuse its discretion in ordering the City to 
produce unredacted copies of all of its 1996 attorney fee billing statements of outside 
legal counsel. See Cypress Media v. City of Overland Park, 997 P.2d 681 (Kan., 2000) 
 

 In Camera proceedings to redact per Cypress Media    ….due 00/00/00 

 

6. Deadlines for Amendments and Potentially Dispositive Motions 

 
June Suspension For US Senate Hearings 

Sam Lipari and his counsel, along with some designated experts will be testifying in 
Washington D.C. concerning the investment banking circumvention of the healthcare 
supply safe harbor by US Bancorp NA and its effect on the industry and America’s 
healthcare infrastructure. MSCI will be unable to comply with most discovery during this 
period. 
 
Amendment to Include Additional Parties (No Deadline) 

While federal courts normally allow for liberal amendment of pleadings during the course 
of discovery, the antitrust nature of this case increases the court’s impetus to allow 
amendment of pleadings to include additional parties as required by Title 15, Chapter 1, 
Sec. 5 stating: 
 
“Whenever it shall appear to the court before which any proceeding under section 4 of 
this title may be pending, that the ends of justice require that other parties should be 
brought before the court, the court may cause them to be summoned, whether they reside 
in the district in which the court is held or not; and subpoenas to that end may be served 
in any district by the marshal thereof” 
 
Amendment to Include Restatement of Causes of Action prior to Discovery 

Commencement (May 6
th

, 2003) 

Plaintiff shall amend stated causes of action to the identified new claims. No additional 
copy of Amended pleading will be turned into the court and the new pleading will retain 
voided body text with a single line strike. To avoid confusion, the old paragraph 
numbering will not be retained. 
 
Amendment to Include New Causes of Action and or Parties (As warranted) 
 
Defendants’ Motions to Dismiss (Filed March 27th) 
 
Plaintiff’s Motion to Dismiss Defenses (at pre discovery closing of pleadings) 
 
Amendment to include Punitive Damages (motion for leave to amend to filed 120 days 
into discovery) 
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7. Follow on Preliminary Injunctive Relief and Debtor Injunctive Relief requests 

 

Appeal Remand Evidentiary Hearing (If required) 

Plaintiff’s witnesses: Jerry A. Grundhofer, Andrew Cesere, Susan Paine, Lars Anderson, 
Brian Kabbes, Nancy Hainje, Doug Lewis, Piper Jaffray Chief Counsel and affiant, US 
Bancorp NA’s CFO, Sam Lipari 
Plaintiff requests jury as hearing fact finder* 
 
Preliminary Judgment Debt Injunction 

Plaintiff requires Preliminary Injunction Hearing on orders to prevent defendants from 
escaping judgment. US Bancorp has demonstrated financial desperation 1) it is unable to 
secure junk bonds this fiscal year to underwrite the acquisition of additional bank chains ( 
a modus operandi that has enabled it to escape a consistent basis determining its ROI) 2) 
it was unable to sell Piper Jaffray at a 150 million dollar loss to escape the growing 
litigation liability and regulatory fines, and now is attempting to jettison it through a 
stock  spin off  in the face of a very weak IPO market and now having to certify the 
offering under Sarbaines-Oxley    3) it was forced to sell $500 million dollars of notes in 
the first quarter of 2003 on private markets because of its excessive bad loan risk 
exposure 4) US Bancorp has consistently overstated its employee pension investment 
expectations to a degree that violates fiduciary responsibility and conceals the bank 
holding company’s financial ill health. 
  

Evidentiary Hearing (If required) 

Plaintiff’s witnesses: Jerry A. Grundhofer, Andrew Cesere, Susan Paine, Lars Anderson, 
Brian Kabbes, Nancy Hainje, Doug Lewis, Piper Jaffray Chief Counsel and affiant, US 
Bancorp NA’s CFO, Sam Lipari 
Plaintiff requests jury as hearing fact finder* 
 

Preliminary Injunction Against Spin-Off of Piper Jaffray 

Plaintiff requires Preliminary Injunction Hearing on orders to prevent defendants from 
spinning off Piper Jaffray to avoid a large percentage of the liability for the claims of this 
action. Defendants have announced detailed plans and have started to affect the initial 
public offering of securities for Piper Jaffray. The plan involves stripping Piper Jaffray of 
its sole viable asset, its large sales force and leaving it with the only productive asset 
being its discredited stock research and analysis division.  
 
The core value of Piper Jaffray when it was an independent second tier investment-
banking house was its research and analysis division and its unique industry reputation 
for sound, objective analysis. After US Bancorp NA acquired Piper Jaffray, it engaged in 
fraudulent misrepresentation of its research to cheat its investment customers, it has 
attempted to plea bargain and settle with regulatory agencies for this misconduct and 
spoliation of incriminating evidence, however this asset no longer has any value in selling 
trustworthy advice to assist customers in choosing investments.** 

 
US Bancorp NA has stated plans and is acting with the intent to burden the spin off with 
tremendous debt for capital already consumed by US Bancorp. This debt places US 
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Bancorp NA as senior obligee. The plaintiff believes there is no reasonable expectation 
that this spun off Piper Jaffray will be a viable entity capable of paying its individual 
share of a judgment to MSCI that will likely be in excess of $1 Billion dollars. The 
plaintiff believes the defendant’s intent is to “tube out” Piper Jaffray to avoid a large part 
of the impending judgment. 
 
Evidentiary Hearing (If required) 
Plaintiff’s witnesses: Jerry A. Grundhofer, Andrew Cesere, Susan Paine, Lars Anderson, 
Brian Kabbes, Nancy Hainje, Doug Lewis, Piper Jaffray Chief Counsel and affiant, US 
Bancorp NA’s CFO, Piper Jaffray IPO Lead Underwriter CEO, Piper Jaffray IPO auditor 
CEO, lead counsel for Piper Jaffray IPO legal consulting firm and Sam Lipari 
Plaintiff requests jury as hearing fact finder* 
 

* The Seventh Amendment (right to jury trial) does apply to actions enforcing statutory 
rights, and requires a jury trial upon demand, if the statute creates legal rights and 
remedies, enforceable in an action for damages in the ordinary courts of law. When 
Congress provides for enforcement of statutory rights in an ordinary civil action in the 
district courts, as in the enforcement of antitrust laws through statutory specified 
injunctive relief, and where there is obviously no functional justification for denying the 
jury trial right, a jury trial must be made available if the action involves rights and 
remedies of the sort typically enforced in an action at law. Curtis v. Loether, 415 U.S. 
189, 94 S.Ct. 1005, 39 L.Ed.2d 260 (1974), at 194-195, 94 S.Ct. at 1008. 
  

**Prudential Securities was able to continue to exist after a similar breach of customer 
confidence. However, it did so with extreme expenditures in restorative public relations 
that exceeded Piper Jaffray’s total historic cumulative advertising spending. Prudential 
Securities also maintained its sales force and enjoyed having the vast majority of its 
business and clients driven to it by Prudential Insurance’s very large insurance agent 
sales force. 
 

8. Pre-Trial scheduling and Trial 

 

Appendix 

 

I. PROPOSED ORDER FOR PROTECTION AGAINST INADVERTENT WAIVER  

 

Inadvertent waiver protection order 

The parties agree large document productions raise the potential for inadvertent 
production of privileged information.  
 
The parties agree to institute controls, using technology, bookmarking privileged 
documents, running searches for key terms frequently appearing in privileged documents 
and instituting internal layers of review to minimize the risk of inadvertent disclosure.  
However, in recognition that such disclosures may occur despite a party's best efforts, 
counsel agrees to institute the present confidentiality agreement in which each side agrees 
to return privileged documents inadvertently produced. 
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Signature Plaintiff 
Signature Defendants 
 

• whether the privilege issue requires the redaction of the electronic discovery 

 

II. PLAINTIFF PROPOSED SPOLIATION PREVENTION STIPULATION 

 
Data Preservation Order 

One of the most important issues in this action’s electronic discovery is data preservation.  
 
E-mail and electronic files are abundant, much of the data resides on backup tapes, which 
are frequently recycled, or on individual hard drives, on which data are altered and 
overwritten with each use. Now that litigation has initiated, the parties agree to protect 
against a potential spoliation accusation.  
 
The parties agree to immediately halt all electronic document-handling policies that result 
in the recycling of tapes or other e-data destruction that may destroy potentially relevant 
files. Data destruction must cease at all locations of all parties.  
 
Attorneys agree that the data on the hard drives of named individual defendants and key 
people be preserved through the use of mirror-imaging technology, which freezes the 
data in snapshot fashion. In addition, the attorneys agree preservation letters will be sent 
to all parties and nonparties in possession of potentially relevant data. The attorneys will 
prepare a preservation order draft by May 16th, 2003. As the case moves forward, the 
parties agree to monitor compliance and report current status and list of hard drives under 
effect each 60 days.  
 

Plaintiff agrees not to pursue spoliation sanctions for US Bancorp Piper Jaffray’s 
destruction of e-mail relevant to this case identified in the plea bargain to the SEC and 
NASD providing 1)all documentation related to the settlement and fine is delivered to the 
plaintiff , 2)the defense ceases to use the absence of e-mail records for the defined period 
subject to settlement to refute MSCI’s claims as it did in it 10th circuit motion reply, 3) 
US Bancorp Piper Jaffray stipulates to this proposed order and participates fully in the 
monitoring requirement. 
 
The parties further agree that further spoliation will result in sanctions at the discretion of 
the court including adverse inferences or presumptions (at either the case level or the 
issue level), preclusion of evidence, monetary sanctions, and dismissal or default. 
 
The parties recognize that due to the nature of the complained of acts, spoliation may 
give rise to a separate cause of action in tort and that spoliation related to Sherman 1 and 
RICO allegations may result in criminal penalties for obstruction of justice through 
destruction of evidence.  
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Signature Plaintiff 
Signature Defendants 
 
* In re Prudential Sales Practices Litigation, 169 F.R.D. 598 (D.N.J. 1997). A plan for 
halting destruction of electronic records -- for example, disabling e-mail auto-delete 
features and suspending backup tape recycling -- is essential. Even with a plan in place, 
effective and continuous communication to all employees is critical. In Prudential, for 
example, the court found no willful misconduct, but determined the company's efforts to 
notify employees of the duty to preserve electronic information were "uncoordinated and 
haphazard." Finding that senior management should have implemented a comprehensive 
electronic document preservation plan, the court levied a $1 million sanction 
 
As Prudential illustrates, a court need not conclude that intentional data destruction 
occurred to impose a penalty. A finding of intent, however, can increase the severity of 
spoliation sanctions from monetary fines to an adverse jury instruction or even a default 
judgment. See Linnen, supra (defendant's continuing customary recycling of backup 
tapes during litigation was "inexcusable conduct"); Lewy, supra (defendant's inability to 
produce customer complaints supported negative inference instruction); Carlucci, supra 
(default judgment entered for defendant's intentional destruction of records pursuant to 
improper document retention policy).  
 

III. PROPOSED EXPERT DISCOVERY STIPULATION 

 

Expert Discovery Stipulation 

In order to avoid consuming the parties' and the Court's time and resources on potential 
discovery issues relating to experts, the parties have agreed to certain limitations on the 
scope of expert-related discovery and testimony in this matter. Neither the terms of the 
stipulation nor the parties' agreement to them implies that any of the information 
restricted from discovery in this stipulation would otherwise be discoverable.  
 
The parties will make all disclosures required by Rule 26(a)(2)(B), as modified or limited 
by this Stipulation, at the times provided by this Court for the service of written expert 
reports. 
  
The parties will supplement such disclosures at least three (3) business days before an 
expert's deposition. To the extent that the disclosures include exhibits, information or 
data processed or modeled by computer at the direction of a disclosed expert in the 
course of forming the expert's opinions, machine readable copies of the data along with 
the appropriate computer programs and instructions shall be produced, provided that no 
party need produce computer programs that are commercially available and provided 
further that databases and computer programs that (i) are used in 
the ordinary course of a party's business and (ii) are not practicable to copy need not be 
produced so long as reasonable access is timely offered for purposes of replication and 
analysis of disclosed results. 
 
The following categories of data, information, or documents need not be disclosed by 
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any party, and are outside the scope of permissible discovery (including deposition 
questions): 
 

(a) any notes or other writings taken or prepared by or for an expert witness in 
connection with this matter, including correspondence or memos to or from, and 
notes of conversations with, the expert's assistants and/or clerical or support staff, 
one or more other expert witnesses or non-testifying expert consultants, or one or 
more attorneys for the party offering the testimony of such expert witness, unless 
the expert witness is relying upon those notes or other writings in connection with 
the expert witness' opinions in this matter; 
 

(b)  draft reports, draft studies, or draft work papers; preliminary or intermediate 
calculations, computations, or data runs; or other preliminary, intermediate or  
draft materials prepared by, for or at the direction of an expert witness; 
 

(c) any oral or written communication between an expert witness and the expert's 
assistants and/or clerical or support staff, one or more other expert witnesses or 
non-testifying expert consultants, or one or more attorneys for the party offering 
the testimony of such expert witness, unless the expert witness is relying upon the 
communication in connection with the expert witness' opinions in this matter. 
 

The parties further state that, to the extent that the specific stipulations agreed to herein 
waive disclosure requirements under Fed. R. Civ. P. 26(a)(2)(B) or (C), the parties agree 
to such waiver. 
 
Signature Plaintiff 
Signature Defendants 
 
IV. DISCLOSED EXPERT RESUMES 

 

Industry Market Viability Expert 

 

Lynn James Everard, C.P.M. 

6123 NW 45th Avenue Coconut Creek, FL 33073 

 

Education 

 
1977 State University of New York at Buffalo 

 Bachelor of Arts in Anthropology 

 

Professional Appointments 

 
2002 - Present  Vice President, Supply Chain Education and Strategy 

HealthCare Logistics Services, Inc. Coconut Creek, FL  

2001 - 2002  Independent Consultant 
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2001 - 2001  Senior Manager, Healthcare Consulting Practice  

PricewaterhouseCoopers, New York, NY 

2000 - 2001  Independent Consultant 

1999 - 2000  Vice President and Principal 

   The Weeks Group, Inc.. Coconut Creek, FL 

1994 - 1999  President 

   Everard Consulting Services, Inc., Coconut Creek, FL 

1993 - 1994  Materials Manager 

   HealthInfusion, Miami, FL 

1991 - 1993  Regional Director of Materials Management 

   Critical Care America, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 

1989 - 1991  National Materials Manager 

   CarePlus, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 

1987 - 1989  Purchasing Manager 

   National Health Care Affiliates, Buffalo, NY 

1985 - 1987  Pharmacy Buyer 

   Buffalo General Hospital, Buffalo, NY 

1984 - 1985  Specialty Buyer 

   HyGrade Distributors, Tonawanda, NY 

1981 - 1984  Purchasing-Operations Manager 

   Jeffrey-Fell Company, Buffalo, NY 

 

Professional Affiliations 

 
Past:  National Association of Purchasing Management, Buffalo, NY:  

  Chairman, Professional Development Committee    

 

Present: Association for Healthcare Resource and Materials Management 

  Institute for Supply Management, Florida Gold Coast 

 

Awards and Honors 

 

Certified Purchasing Manager (C.P.M.) by the Institute for Supply 

Management 

 

  Appointed to Editorial Review Board of FirstMoves magazine 

 

Professional Presentations 
 

 

2002 “What Every CEO Needs to Know About Supply Chain Management”, 

AmeriNet CEO Forum  

 

“Cost Savings Opportunities in the Internal Supply Chain”, 

MedAssets HSCA Annual Meeting 
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2001 “Blueprint for an Efficient Health Care Supply Chain” presented at the 

following” 

                           -HEDIC (HCEC) Annual Conference 

           -Christus Health Materials Management Meeting  

                   -Society for Professional Group Purchasing 

 

2000 “Value Proposition Modeling: Creating Value Based Relationships”, 

presented in conjunction with RSNA sponsored by Berlex Laboratories 

 

1998 “Inventory Management Strategies That Work!”, sponsored by Home 

Health Care Dealer/Supplier, Medtrade 1998. 

 

“Using Materials Management to Improve the Bottom Line of a Retail 

Pharmacy”, sponsored by AmeriSource, Starship ’98 Annual Conference. 

 

“One Step Ahead: Activity Based Costing and Cost Reduction”, sponsored 

by NAMES, providing training on Activity Based Costing and Activity 

Based Management for home medical equipment companies. 

 

“ Activity Based Costing and Activity Based Management: Preparing for 

Profitability in Managed Care Contracts”, sponsored by Florida 

Association of Homes for the Aging, providing training in Activity Based 

Costing for long term care facility administrators. 

 

1997 “Analyzing Your Cost of Service”, NHIA Annual Meeting, providing 

home infusion  companies with an introduction to Activity Based 

Costing and Activity Based Management. 

 

“Materials Management in Home Care”, The MED Group Purchasing 

Rally, addressing opportunities to use Materials Management techniques 

to reduce operating costs. 

   

“ABC/ABM….What’s With All The Letters?, The MED Group, providing 

home medical equipment companies with an introduction to Activity 

Based Costing and Activity Based Management. 

 

“Using Inventory Management to Improve Cash Flow”, Medtrade 1997, 

addressing how home care companies can improve their cash flow by 

using inventory management principles. 

 

1996 “Issues in the Management of Revenue Producing Assets”, Medtrade 

1996, discussing methods for home care companies to improve their 

management of rental equipment. 

 

1995  “Measuring Contract Profitability”, Medtrade 1995, addressing the need f 

  or home care companies to measure profitability on a payor specific basis. 
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“Operational Considerations in the Implementation of New Computer 

systems”, Medtrade 1995, discussing the need for company introspection 

prior to buying software. 

 

Publications 
 

2002 “Ah, for the Good Ol’ Days of Adversarial Relationships!”, Repertoire, 

January, 2002 

 

“What’s the Best Way to Manage Floor Stock”, FirstMoves, May/June, 

2002 

 

“The Push and Pull of Reforming the Supply Chain”, FirstMoves, 

May/June, 2002 

 

“Internet Based E-Commerce: How Far Have We Come Really?”, 

FirstMoves, 

  July/August, 2002 

 

2001 “Blueprint for an Efficient Health Care Supply Chain”, published by 

MDSI, January, 2001  

 

“Putting “Value” In Value Added”, Repertoire, January, 2001  

 

“Transactional Analysis and You”, Repertoire, March, 2001 

 

  “Creating an Appetite for Value”, The Health Strategist, March, 2001 

 

  “e-Commerce: Worth Waiting For”, Repertoire, April, 2001 

 

  “The Supply Chain’s Dirty Secret”, Repertoire, May, 2001 

 

“Value Proposition Modeling”, Advance for Administrators in Radiology 

and Radiation Oncology, June 2001    

 

  “Look Upstream”, Repertoire, June, 2001 

 

  “So, You’re Selling an Outsourcing Program”, Repertoire, July, 2001 

 

  “E-Commerce: Where’s the Beef?”, Repertoire, August, 2001 

 

“Hospital and Distributor Dilemma: Allow Bid Process to Break Up 

Productive Relationships?”, Repertoire, September, 2001 
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“Six Easy Steps to Change Your Focus From Tactics to Strategies”, 

FirstMoves, September, 2001 

 

  “The Post-EHCR Supply Chain”, Repertoire, October, 2001 

 

 

2000 “The Dot-Coms: Missing Link or Missed Opportunity”, Repertoire, 

January, 2000 

 

“Think You’re in the Products Business? Think Again”, Repertoire, April 

2000 

 

  “The Customer’s Point of View”, Repertoire, June, 2000 

 

  “E-Commerce: Progress Update, June 2000”, Repertoire, June, 2000 

 

“VPM: Making the Transition from Products to Services”, 

FirstMoves.com, June, 2000 

 

“The E-Commerce Imperative”, White Paper, written for Medibuy, July, 

2000 

  

Publications (Continued) 

 

 “Eight Things Sellers Need to Know About Buyers”, Repertoire, July, 

2000 

 

  “Dot-Coms Settle In For The Long Haul”, Repertoire, July, 2000 

 

 “The Distrust Epidemic”, Repertoire, August, 2000   

 

  “The Case For Distributor Disintermediation”, Repertoire, August, 2000 

 

  “VPM: Developing the Model”, FirstMoves.com, August, 2000 

 

  “The Promises You Keep”, Repertoire, September, 2000 

 

  “Dot-Com Trial and Error”, Repertoire, October, 2000 

 

“What is the future of E-Commerce in the health care supply chain?”, 

Global Med News, October, 2000 

 

  “Rebates R.I.P.”, Repertoire, October, 2000 

 

“VPM: Applications, Considerations, and Customer Selection”, 

FirstMoves.com, October, 2000 
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  “The HIPAA Challenge”, Repertoire, November, 2000 

 

“Promedix First To Market With a Value Proposition Model for E-

Commerce, FirstMoves.com, December, 2000 

 

  “GPOs: More Than Just Low Prices”, Repertoire, December, 2000 

 

 

1999  “Pricing Out Profitability”, Infusion, January, 1999 

 

“Are You Selling Programs or Products”, Medical Product Sales, April, 

1999 

 

“Lessons from Polk County”, HME News, April, 1999 

 

“Controlling Inventory”, Advance for Post Acute Care, July/August, 1999 

 

“Enhancing Profitability in the Health Care Supply Chain, Part 1”, 

FirstMoves.com, September, 1999   

 

“Enhancing Profitability in the Health Care Supply Chain, Part 2”, 

FirstMoves.com, October, 1999 

   

“Enhancing Profitability in the Health Care Supply Chain, Part 3”, 

FirstMoves.com, November, 1999 

 

“Enhancing Profitability in the Health Care Supply Chain, Part 3”, 

FirstMoves.com, December, 1999 

 

Publications (Continued) 

 

1998 “Better Business: Outsourcing”, Home Health Care Dealer/Supplier, 

March/April, 1998   

“Distributing for Profit”, Home Health Care Dealer/Supplier, 

March/April, 1998 

 

“The HCFA Competitive Bidding Demonstration Project: Causes, Effects, 

and  Strategies”, written for The MED Group, July, 2000                                          

 

“A Program for Profitability”, Contemporary Long Term Care, August, 

1998 

 

“Define Yourself”, Home Health Care Dealer/Supplier, 

September/October, 1998 

 



 45 

“Building Support Systems”, Home Health Care Dealer/Supplier, 

November/December, 1998 

 

   

1997 “The NHIA Industry Research Project: Food For Thought”, Infusion, 

January, 1997 

 

“1997: Is This The Year The Paradigm Will Finally Shift?”, Infusion, 

February, 1997 

 

  “Purchasing: Dealing Effectively With Sales Reps”, Infusion, March, 1997 

   

  “Outsourcing the Distribution of Supplies”, Infusion, April, 1997 

   

  “Negotiations: Trading Value For Value”, Infusion, May, 1997 

 

  “The Cost of Outcomes”, Infusion, July, 1997 

 

 

1996  “Inventory Turns”, Infusion, January, 1996 

 

  “You Bought Your System: Now What?”, Infusion, February, 1996 

 

  “Infusion Devices: Buy, Rent, Or Lease?”, Infusion, March, 1996 

 

  “Group Purchasing Organizations in Infusion Therapy”, Infusion, April, 

1996 

 

  “Taking Care of Your Infusion Devices”, Infusion, May, 1996 

 

  “Outsourcing: A Closer Look”, Infusion, June, 1996 

 

  “Achieving Your Goals With Outside Consultants”, Infusion, July, 1996 

 

  “Cutting Costs Through Process Improvement”, Infusion, August, 1996 

   

“Contract Management: Getting What You Bargained For”, Infusion, 

September, 1996 

 

“Is Materials Management Part of Your Strategic Plan”, Infusion, October 

1996 

 

“Supply Chain Management: An Added Defense”, Infusion, November, 

1996 

 

Publications (Continued) 
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“Providers and GPOs: Forging a True Win-Win Relationship”, Infusion, 

December, 1996 

 

1995  “Pricing Scrutiny Persists”, Homecare Magazine, January 1995 

 

“Investigating Infusion Costs”, Homecare Magazine, May, 1995 

 

  “Working the System”, Homecare Magazine, September, 1995 

 

  “Beefing Up Materials Management”, Infusion, December 1995 

 

Mr. Everard has over twenty years experience in the healthcare supply chain management 

in diverse single and multiple site organizations including product distribution, acute 

care, long-term care and home care. Mr. Everard is a consultant, author, speaker, and 

strategist. His expertise includes procurement, inventory and asset management and 

logistics and distribution, E-Commerce, Activity Based Costing, internal supply chain 

efficiency, relationship management, outsourcing analysis, and cost optimization 

strategies uniquely qualify him to address some of the most pressing challenges in 

today’s health care environment. Mr. Everard’s expertise and experience are 

complemented by his ability to analyze complex situations and develop innovative and 

cost effective solutions that pay both short and long-term dividends for his clients. 

Everard holds the Certified Purchasing Manager (C.P.M.) designation conferred by the 

Institute for Supply Management. He has demonstrated clarity of thinking in regard to the 

future of the healthcare supply chain. He is the author of three white papers including his 

most recent paper entitled “Blueprint for an Efficient Health Care Supply Chain”. He was 

named Contributing Editor for two of the industry’s most forward thinking publications, 

Repertoire magazine and FirstMoves.com. He previously wrote a monthly column for 

Repertoire Magzine and currently does a column for FirstMoves magazine. He was 

recently appointed to serve on the Editorial Board of FirstMoves magazine. 

 

Industry Business Model Efficiency Expert 

 

Lawton R. Burns  

 
James Joo-Jin Kim Professor; Professor of Health Care Systems and Management  

Director, Wharton Center for Health Management and Economics  

PhD, University of Chicago, 1981; MBA, University of Chicago, 1984; MA, University of 

Chicago, 1976; BA, Haverford College, 1973   
 

Academic Positions Held  
Wharton: 1994-present (named James Joo-Jin Kim Professor, 1999; 

Director, Wharton Center for Health Management and Economics, 

1999-present). Previous appointments: University of Arizona; 

University of Chicago. Visiting appointment: University of Wisconsin  
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Career and Recent Professional Awards; Teaching Awards  

2001: Arthur Anderson Distinguished Visitor, University of Cambridge 

(UK); Teacher of the Year, Administrative Medicine Program, School of 
Medicine, University of Wisconsin, 1999; Edwin Crosby Memorial 

Fellowship, Hospital Research and Educational Trust, 1992-93; Udall 

Fellowship, Udall Center for Public Policy, 1990-91; Invited Lecture 

Series, Catholic University of Rome, Luiss, and National Agency for 
Health Care Services (Rome), 1997.  

 

Professional Leadership 1999-2003  

Associate Editor, Health Care Management Review, 1992-present; 
Editorial Board, Health Services Research, 1994-present; Editorial 

Board, AUPHA/Health Administration Press  

 

Consulting  
Development of integrated delivery systems, Illinois Hospital 

Association, 1994-97; Medical staff-hospital integration, Tucson 

Medical Center, 1992-93; Integrated Community Nursing Service, 

Carondelet Health System, 1992-93; Patient care restructuring, 

University Medical Center, 1992  
 

Research Areas  

Integrated health care; supply chain management; health care 

management; formal organizations; physician networks; physician 
practice management firms  

 

Current Projects  

Health care supply chain. Structure, process, and outcomes of 
integrated delivery systems in health care. Hospital ownership 

conversions.  

Representative Publications  

(with S.M. Shortell and R.M. Anderson) 

"Does Familiarity Breed Contentment? Impact of Integration on 
Physician Attitudes and Behaviors." Research in the Sociology of 

Health Care (1998).  

 

(with R. DeGraaff and H. Singh)  
"Determinants of For-Profit Acquisition of Physician Group Practices." 

Quarterly Review of Economics and Finance (1999).  

 

(with J. Cacciamani, J.R. Clement, W. Aquino) 
"The Fall of the House of AHERF: The Allegheny Bankruptcy." Health 

Affairs (2000). 
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Hospital Supply Market Monopolization Expert 

 

Professor Einer R. Elhauge 

 

Professor of Law 

Office: Hauser 502 

Phone: (617) 496-0860 
Fax: (617) 496-0861 

Email: elhauge@law.harvard.edu 

Education 

* Harvard College A.B. 1982 

* Harvard Law School J.D. 1986 

 

Appointments 

* Visiting Professor of Law, 1994 

* Professor of Law, 1995 

 

Biographical Information 

Einer Elhauge is Professor of Law at Harvard Law School, where he 

teaches a gamut of courses ranging from Antitrust, Contracts, 
Corporations, Health Care Law, and Public Choice Theory. Before 

coming to Harvard, he was a Professor of Law at the University of 

California at Berkeley, and clerked for Judge Norris on the 9th Circuit 

and Justice Brennan on the Supreme Court. He received both his A.B. 
and his J.D. from Harvard, graduating first in his law school class.  

 

He is an author of numerous pieces on range of topics even broader 

than he teaches, including legislative term limits, the implications of 

interest group theory for judicial review, antitrust petitioning and state 
action immunity, corporate sale of control doctrine, antitrust tying and 

predatory pricing doctrine, whether lawyers improve the legal system, 

how to devise a morally just and cost effective medical system, the 

2000 Presidential election, and statutory interpretation. He 
represented the State of California in successfully defending their term 

limits law from constitutional challenge, and represented the Florida 

House of Representatives on legal issues concerning the Bush v. Gore 

Presidential election litigation in Florida in 2000.  
 

Recent and Working Papers 

The Exclusion of Competition for Hospital Sales Through Group 
Purchasing Organizations  

(report to U.S. Senate)  
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Why Above-Cost Price Cuts to Drive Out Entrants Are Not 

Predatory - And the Implications for Defining Costs and Market 

Power  
(Yale Law Journal, Volume 112, No. 4, January 2003, pages 681-827)  

 

Preference-Estimating Statutory Default Rules  

(Columbia Law Review, Volume 102, No. 8, December 2002, pages 
2027-2161)  

 

Preference-Eliciting Statutory Default Rules  

(Columbia Law Review, Volume 102, No. 8, December 2002, pages 
2162-2290)  

 

The Lessons of Florida 2000  

(110 Policy Review 15-36, Dec 2001-Jan 2002)  
 

Soft on Microsoft - the Potemkin Antitrust Settlement  

(The Weekly Standard, pp. 17-18, March 25, 2002)  

 

Tunney Act Comments of Professor Einer Elhauge on the 
Proposed Settlement between the United States and Microsoft  

 

What Term Limits Do that Ordinary Voting Cannot  

(Cato Policy Analysis, No. 328, Dec. 16, 1998)  
 

The Court Failed My Test  

(The Washington Times, Op-Ed, July 10, 1998)  

The Limited Regulatory Potential of Medical Technology  
(82 Virginia Law Review 1525-1617, 1996)  

 

Allocating Health Care Morally  

(82 California Law Review 1449, December 1994) 
 

Enterprise Data and Software Forensic Expert 

 

Cheryl L. Woodall 

5201 95th Terrace 

Overland Park, KS  66207 

 

(913) 381-3182 home email:  network@ix.netcom.com 

(913) 762-8836 office email:  Cwooda03@sprintspectrum.com 

(404) 808-3783 mobile 

 

WORK EXPERIENCE: 
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Sprint PCS/Inteliant, Project Manager & eBusiness Data Mart Architect 10/00 – Present  

Designed and directed implementation of data warehouse structures and processes for 

ebusiness reporting including online store, wireless web transactions, online account 

management, web server log file analysis, and several other web-based applications.  

Gathered and documented requirements. Developed logical and physical data models for 

the eBusiness data mart using PowerDesigner. Analyzed and documented impact for 

Local Number Portability, a federally mandated requirement. 

 

 

VIRGINIA COMMONWEALTH UNIVERSITY, Adjunct Professor (part-time)               

Fall 1999 – Spring 2000 

Taught INFO 464 - Database Systems, including database concepts,  logical and physical 

database design, object-oriented methodologies with Oracle 8i, data warehousing star 

schemas and Developer 6. 

 

PHILIP MORRIS USA 

Database Administrator/Team Lead, Information Services Procedures, Projects & Assets     

8/98 – 9/00 

• Installed and configured Oracle 7 and 8 databases on Windows NT and HP Unix 

• Performed data migration from mainframe to Oracle on AIX using SQL*Loader 

• Reorganized Oracle 7 and 8 tablespaces and  set up many development and testing 

environments 

• Performed backup and recovery on Oracle 7 and 8 and set up automated backup 

processes 

• Maintained Oracle databases for Year 2000, workstation management and 

manufacturing data collection using ERWIN, including logical and physical modeling 

and data architecture. 

• Wrote PL/SQL triggers and custom database replication programs to establish a data 

repository for manufacturing data.  Also used the Oracle replication manager to set up 

replication.  Used dimensional modeling techniques to plan for reporting. 

• Provided Oracle database administration, performance tuning, security and user 

support on 20 databases 

• Upgraded Oracle database software and installed patches 

• Coordinated technical review of leases and maintenance for hardware and software, 

and managed projects in the data center.  Managed the transition of assets to a new 

corporate consolidated data center.  

 

Lead Systems/Technical Analyst, Information Services 8/96 – 8/98 

Planned a comprehensive infrastructure management system for the enterprise.  

Developed a prioritization methodology for information technology projects across the 

enterprise and implemented on a Lotus Notes database.   The project included all phases 

of the development life cycle using the company-standard structured methodology, and 

including requirements gathering and analysis, data architecture, programming, testing, 

installing and supporting users.  Aligned IT projects with IT and business area strategy.  

Developed measurements, benchmarking criteria and a pictorial user interface for 

infrastructure capacity planning.  
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Senior Industrial Engineer 8/91 - 6/96 

Developed and implemented a model for equipment forecasting based on production 

allocation, equipment utilization by module, product specifications and other constraints.  

Developed and implemented a system for use by industrial engineers for statistical 

analysis of machine efficiency data.  For these two systems, directed the software 

development lifecycle including requirements gathering and analysis, conceptual and 

physical modeling, data normalization, programming, training users and documentation.  

Assisted the Marlboro Adventure team promotion with fulfillment logistics for delivering 

approximately 15 million items to customers in about four months.  Coordinated labor 

analysis of raw materials distribution methods and recommended best alternative.  

Evaluated material handling products on the market and recommended equipment.  

Simulated finished goods flow from manufacturing to offsite warehouses and made 

recommendations on material handling equipment, shipping docks and trucks. 

 

HEALTH CARE MICROSYSTEMS, Senior Consultant 8/89 - 6/91 

Evaluated organizations, systems and operations of several hospital materials 

management departments.   

Made recommendations to reduce costs and increase productivity for clients.  Wrote 

specifications for the purchase of new materials management systems and evaluated 

existing systems.  Designed, developed and implemented a supply distribution program 

for issuing and charging supplies.  Directed the entire software development lifecycle 

including requirements analysis, database logical and physical design using data flow 

diagrams and data normalization, data architecture, installation of systems, 

documentation, training of users and ongoing support. 

 

EMULEX CORPORATION, Master Scheduler 8/88 - 8/89 

Designed, developed and implemented programs for Work-in-Process projection and 

tracking, revenue projection and production planning, including all phases of the software 

development life cycle – requirements analysis, logical and physical database modeling, 

data architecture, documentation, training and support. 

 

INTERLAKE, INC., Project Manager 8/85 - 4/87 

Coordinated the building of automated warehouses with AS/RS including engineering 

and manufacturing of components, shipment of materials to job sites, construction of 

building, installation of equipment and software development.  Software development 

work included gathering and analyzing requirements, overseeing the development by an 

outside contractor and implementation of systems. 

 

LITTON AUTOMATED SYSTEMS, Systems Engineer, Sales Engineer 1/81 – 8/85 

Designed automated material handling systems including computer simulations, gathered 

customer business and technical requirements, wrote material handling system proposals, 

presented proposals to customers. 

 

EDUCATION: 

M.B.A. in General Management, U.C.L.A., 1988 
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Certificate in Computer Science, Virginia Commonwealth University, 1996 

Bachelor of Industrial Engineering, Georgia Tech, 1980 

 

CERTIFICATIONS: 

Brainbench Master Data Warehousing Specialist, August 2000 

Oracle Database Administration, 1998 

Novell CNE (Certified Novell Engineer), 1996 

APICS CPIM  (Certified in Production and Inventory Management), 1989  

 
Date:   April 21, 2003 
 
Report of the Parties' Planning Meeting: 
 
Counsel for Medical Supply Chain, Inc.: 
 
S/Bret D. Landrith 
_______________________  
Bret Landrith 
605 W. Kansas 
Pittsburg, KS 66672 
Kansas Supreme Court Number: 20380 
 
 
Report of the Parties' Planning Meeting: 
 
Counsel for the Defendants: 
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ENFORCEMENT PROCEEDINGS

SEC, NYSE, NASD FINE FIVE FIRMS TOTAL OF $8.25 MILLION

FOR FAILURE TO PRESERVE E-MAIL COMMUNICATIONS

     The  Securities and Exchange Commission, the New York Stock Exchange and

     NASD  today  announced  joint actions against  five  broker-dealers  for

     violations    of    record-keeping   requirements   concerning    e-mail

     communications.  The firms consented to the imposition of fines totaling

     $8.25  million, along with a requirement to review their  procedures  to

     ensure compliance with record-keeping statutes and rules.

     Each  of  the firms - Deutsche Bank Securities Inc.; Goldman,  Sachs   &

     Co.;  Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated; Salomon Smith Barney Inc.;  and

     U.S.  Bancorp  Piper  Jaffray  Inc. - consented,  without  admitting  or

     denying the allegations, to findings that each:

     *  Violated Section 17(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Rule 17a-4

        under the Exchange Act, NYSE Rule 440 and NASD Rule 3110 by failing to

        preserve for a period of three years, and/or preserve in an accessible place

        for two years, electronic communications relating to the business of the

        firm, including interoffice memoranda and communications.

          

     *  Violated NYSE Rule 342 and NASD Rule 3010 by failing to establish,

        maintain and enforce a supervisory system to assure compliance with NASD and

        NYSE rules and the federal securities laws relating to retention of

        electronic communications.

     The  firms  agreed  to a penalty of a censure and fines  totaling  $8.25

     million - $1.65 million per firm - to be paid to the U.S. Treasury, NYSE

     and  NASD.   The firms also agreed to review their procedures  regarding

     the  preservation of e-mail communications for compliance  with  federal

     securities laws and the rules of the NYSE and NASD.  Each firm agreed to

     inform  each  regulator,  in  writing,  within  90  days  that  it   has

     established  systems  and  procedures  reasonably  designed  to  achieve

     compliance with the statute and rules relating to e-mail retention.

     Background

     

     The  respondents'  failure to preserve e-mail communications  and\or  to

     maintain   them   in   an   accessible  place  was   discovered   during

     investigations being conducted jointly and separately by the  SEC,  NYSE

     and NASD.

     

     Some  firms backed up e-mail communications on tape or other media  that

     was represented as part of a process designed as a disaster-recovery  or

     business-continuity measure, or for another business purpose.   However,

     these firms discarded or recycled and overwrote their back-up tapes  and

     other media, often a year or less after back-up occurred.

Exb 3
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     Each  firm  had  inadequate procedures and systems to  retain  and  make

     accessible e-mail communications.  While some firms relied on  employees

     to  preserve copies of the e-mail communications on the hard  drives  of

     their individual personal computers, there were no systems or procedures

     to ensure that employees did so.

     

     In  those instances in which the firms did retain e-mail communications,

     those communications were often stored in an unorganized fashion on back-

     up  tapes,  other  media, or on the hard drives  of  computers  used  by

     individual  employees.   In  some instances, hard  drives  of  computers

     preserving  electronic mail communications were erased when  individuals

     left the employment of the firm.

     

     Although  each  firm had an obligation to preserve e-mail communications

     pursuant to Section 17(a) of the Exchange Act and Rule 17a-4 thereunder,

     NYSE Rule 440, and NASD Rule 3110, during all or part of the period from

     1999  to  at least 2001, each of the firms failed to preserve for  three

     years,  and/or  to  preserve  in  an accessible  place  for  two  years,

     electronic   communications   (including   interoffice   memoranda   and

     communications) that related to its business as a member of an exchange,

     broker  or  dealer.  (Rel. 34-46937; File No. 3-10957; Press Rel.  2002-

     173)

     

SEC  HALTS A FRAUDULENT OFFERING OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES ISSUED BY VIRTUAL

CASH, A PURPORTED SOUTH FLORIDA PAYDAY ADVANCE COMPANY

     

     The  Commission announced that on Nov. 26, 2002, it filed  an  emergency

     federal civil action seeking to halt a fraudulent offering of securities

     issued  by Virtual Cash Card LLC, d/b/a Virtual Cash (Virtual  Cash),  a

     purported  South  Florida payday advance company. The action  was  filed

     against  defendants Virtual Cash, its CEO and president, Eric L.  Turner

     (Turner),  its  vice-president, Kenneth M. May (May), Omni  Advertising,

     Inc.  (Omni)  and Omni's president, Anthony Joseph Pinone (Pinone).   On

     the  same  day,  the Honorable Kenneth A. Marra, United States  District

     Judge for the Southern District of Florida, entered, among other things,

     a  temporary  restraining  order and an order freezing  the  defendants'

     assets.

     According to the Commission's complaint, Virtual Cash, Turner  and  May,

     through  a  Omni, a boiler room operated by Pinone, have  been  offering

     unregistered securities to investors nationwide.  The Commission alleged

     that  Virtual Cash and its principals have raised more than  $1  million

     from more than 70 investors to purportedly fund short-term cash advances

     for  its purported payday advance business.  The complaint alleges  that

     in  raising  money  from  investors for this enterprise,  Virtual  Cash,

     Turner and May represented to investors that, among other things,  their

     funds  would be used to purchase accounts receivable loan contracts  and

     that  their  funds would be fully collateralized by accounts receivable.

     Instead,  the  Commission  alleged that  of  the  money  taken  in  from

     investors,  only  $156,000  was  used to purchase  accounts  receivable.

     Further,  according to the Commission's complaint, Virtual Cash,  Turner

     and  May failed to tell investors that 15% of their funds would be  used

     to  pay excessive sales commissions to Omni and that an additional 3% of

     their funds would be used to pay commissions to May.

     As  a result, the Commission charges Virtual Cash, Turner, May, Omni and

     Pinone  with  violations  of  registration  provisions  of  the  federal

     securities  laws, specifically Sections 5(a) and 5(c) of the  Securities
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     Act  of 1933 ("Securities Act").  The Commission further charges Virtual

     Cash,  Turner  and May with violations of anti-fraud provisions  of  the

     federal  securities laws, including Section 17(a) of the Securities  Act

     and  Section  10(b)  of the Securities Exchange Act of  1934  ("Exchange

     Act")  and  Rule  10b-5 thereunder.  In addition, the SEC  charges  May,

     Omni, and Pinone with violations of Section 15(a)(1) of the Exchange Act

     for  acting as unregistered brokers, and charges Turner with aiding  and

     abetting  May's, Omni's and Pinone's violations of Section  15(a)(1)  of

     the Exchange Act.

     In  addition to the emergency relief described above, the Commission  is

     also seeking permanent injunctions prohibiting future violations of  the

     securities laws, disgorgement of ill-gotten profits and money penalties.

     Also  included   in the lawsuit as relief defendants are three  entities

     controlled  by  the defendants.  These entities are: Virtual  Cash  Card

     International, Inc.; Omni Advertising and Marketing, Inc.;  and  Kenance

     Consulting, Inc.  [SEC v. Virtual Cash Card LLC d/b/a Virtual Cash, Eric

     L. Turner, Kenneth M. May, Omni Advertising, Inc., Anthony Joseph Pinone

     (Defendants) and Virtual Cash Card International, Inc., Omni Advertising

     and Marketing, Inc., Kenance Consulting, Inc.  (Relief Defendants), Case

     No. 02-61672-CIV-ROETTGER, SDFL] (LR-17868)

SEC  CHARGES  CURRENT  DIRECTOR  OF  AND FORMER  OFFICERS  OF  FIRST  VIRTUAL

COMMUNICATIONS, INC. WITH OVERSTATING REVENUES AND EARNINGS

     The  Commission  announced the filing of a complaint on Nov.  26,  2002,

     against  three  former  senior executives  (including  the  founder  and

     current  Chairman  of  the Board) of First Virtual Communications,  Inc.

     (FVC)  for causing FVC to announce overstated revenues and earnings  and

     then  selling  FVC  shares  before issuance  of  the  correct  financial

     information.   The former executives charged today are:   FVC's  current

     Chairman  of the Board and former President and CEO, Ralph K. Ungermann;

     its  former  CFO,  James O. Mitchell; and its former Vice  President  of

     Sales, Alan J. McMillan.  Ungermann, Mitchell, and McMillan settled  the

     Commission's action without admitting or denying the allegations in  the

     complaint.   They  agreed  to repay a total of  about  $1.3  million  in

     illegal trading profits, interest, and civil money penalties.

     Since  1993, FVC, a Silicon Valley technology company, headquartered  in

     Santa   Clara,  California,  has  engineered  and  manufactured   video-

     conferencing  products  and, through independent distributors,  marketed

     and  sold  these products to the ultimate customer.  FVC's common  stock

     traded  on  Nasdaq's National Market from April 1998 through  August  8,

     2002, when it started trading on Nasdaq's small cap market.

     

     The  Commission's complaint, filed in United States District  Court  for

     the  Northern District of California, alleges that Ungermann,  Mitchell,

     and  McMillan  caused FVC to announce overstated revenues  and  earnings

     figures  in  a  January 28, 1999 press release.  The  complaint  alleges

     that, in order to meet revenue goals for the fourth quarter and year end

     1998,  FVC  entered  into an agreement with its largest  distributor  in

     which  the  distributor  agreed to buy $3  million  of  FVC  product  in

     exchange  for  FVC's agreement to grant the distributor  various  return

     rights  on  the  $3  million  of FVC product  and  on  product  FVC  had

     previously sold to the distributor.

     

     FVC improperly recognized as revenue approximately $5.9 million in sales

     that  were  subject  to  the return rights, in  violation  of  Generally
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     Accepted Accounting Principles.  The complaint alleges that, as a result

     of  the  defendants' actions, in its January 28, 1999 earnings  release,

     FVC overstated its fourth quarter revenue by 114% and annual revenue  by

     16%  and announced annual earnings of $1.1 million instead of a loss  of

     $2  million.   The complaint also alleges that Ungermann, Mitchell,  and

     McMillan failed to disclose this agreement to FVC's auditors, even  when

     specifically asked.

     

     The complaint further alleges that, in February 1999, after the earnings

     release,  the  defendants sold a total of 330,000 shares of  FVC  stock,

     reaping  illegal  trading profits.  In April 1999,  after  the  auditors

     learned  of the return rights that FVC had granted, FVC filed an  annual

     report  on  Form 10-K that correctly reported FVC's fourth  quarter  and

     annual  revenue and earnings.  After the announcement of  FVC's  correct

     financial results, FVC's stock price dropped 60%.

     

     The defendants are:

          

       *  Ralph K. Ungermann, age 60, of Los Altos Hills, California.  Ungermann

          founded FVC in 1993.  He was FVC's CEO and President when FVC made the

          agreement with the distributor.  He currently is FVC's Chairman of the Board.

          The complaint alleges that Ungermann caused FVC's overstatement of revenues

          and earnings figures in the January 28, 1999 press release, did not disclose

          the  return agreement to FVC's auditors, and participated in  FVC's

          falsification of books and records.   The complaint further alleges that

          Ungermann sold 200,000 FVC shares, realizing illegal trading profits of

          $384,192 from the announcement of the false revenue and earnings.  Ungermann

          simultaneously settled the SEC's action without admitting or denying the

          allegations in the complaint.  Ungermann agreed to the entry of a court order

          enjoining him from committing future violations of the federal securities

          laws and ordering him to pay $384,192 in disgorgement (representing ill-

          gotten gains from his trades), $71,575 in prejudgment interest, and $384,192

          as a civil money penalty.

            

       *  James O. Mitchell, age 57, of Cupertino, California. Mitchell was FVC's

          former CFO.  The complaint alleges that Mitchell caused FVC's overstatement

          of revenues and earnings figures in the January 28, 1999 press release, did

          not disclose the return agreement to FVC's auditors, and participated in

          FVC's falsification of books and records.   The complaint further alleges

          that Mitchell sold 60,000 FVC shares, realizing illegal trading profits of

          $102,737 from the announcement of the false revenue and earnings.  Mitchell

          simultaneously settled the SEC's action without admitting or denying the

          allegations in the complaint.  Mitchell agreed to the entry of a court order

          enjoining him from committing future violations and ordering him to pay

          $102,737 in disgorgement (representing ill-gotten gains from his trades),

          $19,140 in prejudgment interest, and $102,737 as a civil money penalty.

            

       *  Alan J. McMillan, 47, of Palo Alto, California, FVC's former Vice

          President of Sales.  The complaint alleges that McMillan caused FVC's

          overstatement of revenues and earnings figures in the January 28, 1999 press

          release and did not disclose the return agreement to FVC's auditors.  The

          complaint further alleges that McMillan sold 70,000 FVC shares, realizing

          illegal trading profits of $133,848 from the announcement of the false

          revenue and earnings.  McMillan simultaneously settled the SEC's action

          without admitting or denying the allegations in the complaint.  McMillan

          agreed to the entry of a court order enjoining him from committing future

          violations and ordering him to pay $133,848 in disgorgement (representing ill-
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          gotten gains from his trades), $24,936 in prejudgment interest, and $133,848

          as a civil money penalty.

     

     The  Commission charged Ungermann, McMillan, and Mitchell with antifraud

     violations (Section 17(a) of the Securities Act and Section 10(b) of the

     Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 thereunder) and lying to the auditors  (Rule

     13b2-2  under  the  Exchange  Act).   Further,  the  Commission  charged

     Ungermann   and  Mitchell  with  violating,  and  aiding  and   abetting

     violations  of  the record keeping provisions of the federal  securities

     laws   (Section  13(b)(2)(A)  of  the  Exchange  Act  and  Rule   13b2-1

     thereunder).

     

     In a related enforcement action, the Commission ordered FVC to cease and

     desist  from violating the antifraud (Section 10(b) of the Exchange  Act

     and  Rule  10b-5  thereunder)  and  record-keeping  provisions  (Section

     13(b)(2)(A)  of the Exchange Act) of the federal securities  laws.   The

     Commission's order found that FVC materially overstated its revenues and

     earnings  for  the  fourth quarter and year end  December  1998  in  the

     January  28,  1999 press release by improperly recognizing revenue  from

     sales with various return rights.  FVC, without admitting or denying the

     Commission's findings, consented to the order to cease and desist.  [SEC

     v.  Ralph  K. Ungermann, Alan J. McMillan, and James O. Mitchell,  USDC,

     NDCA, Civil Action No. C02-05613 RS] (LR-17869; AAE Rel. 1679)

FEDERAL  COURT  FINDS  THAT  TWO  OF  SIMON HERSHON'S  "INTERBANK  COMPANIES"

VIOLATED INVESTMENT COMPANY ACT AND APPOINTS TRUSTEE; COURT DENIES MOTION  TO

DISMISS SEC FRAUD CLAIMS

     

     The  Honorable  John S. Martin, Jr. of the United States District  Court

     for  the  Southern  District of New York today granted the  Commission's

     application  for  partial summary judgment in SEC v. IBF  Collateralized

     Finance  Corp.,  et al., Case No. 02-CV-5713-JSM (SDNY),  and  denied  a

     motion  by  one of the defendants to dismiss fraud claims  against  him.

     The  Commission  filed a complaint in July 2002 charging  Simon  Hershon

     (Hershon) and three of his "InterBank Companies" in connection with  the

     offer and sale of $189 million in debt securities between 1997 and 2002.

     The  corporate defendants are InterBank Funding Corporation  (IBF),  IBF

     Collateralized  Finance Corporation (CFC) and IBF VI -  Secured  Lending

     Corporation (Fund VI).  The complaint charges securities fraud and  that

     defendants  CFC  and  Fund VI are operating unlawfully  as  unregistered

     investment companies in violation of the Investment Company Act of  1940

     (ICA).

     

     The Court granted summary judgment on the Commission's ICA claim against

     CFC  and  Fund VI.  The Court ruled that these defendants are investment

     companies not exempt from registration under Section 3(c)(5)(C)  of  the

     Act  for  issuers "primarily engaged" in the business of "purchasing  or

     otherwise  acquiring mortgages and other liens on and interest  in  real

     estate."   Defendants argued that they satisfied this mortgage exclusion

     by  acquiring, for a nominal sum, a residual interest in two trusts that

     had  issued  mortgaged backed bonds to the public.  By  structuring  the

     transactions in a particular way, defendants were able to put  on  their

     own books all of the mortgages in the trusts, amounting to $674 million,

     even  though  defendants did not own the mortgages.  The Court  rejected

     this   argument,  held  that  defendants  were  unregistered  investment

     companies  and  appointed a trustee to take over the management  of  the

     defendants' business.



2/7/08 10:38 AMhttp://www.sec.gov/news/digest/12-03.txt

Page 6 of 13http://www.sec.gov/news/digest/12-03.txt

     

     The  Court also rejected defendant Simon Hershon's motion to dismiss the

     claims  of  securities  fraud.   The complaint  charges  that  Hershon's

     companies have been able to operate over the past six years only because

     the  companies were constantly raising new offering proceeds, which  IBF

     routinely moved between companies in order to meet their cash flow needs

     - amounting to tens of millions of dollars of inter-fund transfers.  The

     complaint  also alleges that defendants failed to disclose  millions  of

     dollars in transfers between IBF and the IBF Funds that were designed to

     hide  -  and  did  hide from investors - millions of dollars  in  losses

     sustained  by  the investment loan portfolios of the IBF  Funds.   As  a

     result,  the financial statements of the IBF Funds materially overstated

     net income, and return statistics that IBF regularly published about the

     IBF  Funds  were  materially  overstated. [SEC  v.   IBF  COLLATERALIZED

     FINANCE CORP., et al., Case No. 02-CV-5713,  SDNY] (LR-17870)

     

INVESTMENT COMPANY ACT RELEASES

     

ALLSTATE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY, ET AL.

     A  notice has been issued giving interested persons until Dec. 23, 2002,

     to  request a hearing on an application filed by Allstate Life Insurance

     Company, et al. seeking an order of exemption pursuant to Section  17(b)

     of  the Investment Company Act from Section 17(a) of the Act.  (Rel. IC-

     25836 - Nov. 27)

     

HOLDING COMPANY ACT RELEASES

     

UNITIL CORPORATION, ET AL.

     An order has been issued authorizing Unitil Corporation (Unitil) and two

     of  its  retail electric utility subsidiaries, Concord Electric  Company

     (CECo) and Exeter & Hampton Electric Company (E&H), to carry out a stock

     exchange  to  effect  the merger of E&H into CECo, which  will  then  be

     renamed  Unitil Energy Systems Inc. Authority was also granted to  amend

     and  combine the debt indentures of E&H and CECo into a single indenture

     and  to  revise the existing authorization for the Unitil money pool  to

     reflect the merger. (Rel. 35-27609)

     

SECURITIES ACT REGISTRATIONS

     

IMMEDIATE EFFECTIVENESS OF PROPOSED RULE CHANGE

     A  proposed  rule change filed by the National Association of Securities

     Dealers  (SR-NASD-2002-170) relating to the Primex Auction  System,  has

     become immediately effective under Section 19(b)(3)(A) of the Securities

     Exchange  Act of 1934.  Publication of the proposal is expected  in  the

     Federal Register during the week of Dec. 2.  (Rel. 34-46924)
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PROPOSED RULE CHANGES

     The  Depository Trust Company filed a proposed rule change (SR-DTC-2002-

     08)  under  Section  19(b)(1) of the Exchange Act.   The  proposed  rule

     change will establish procedures whereby DTC's nominee, Cede & Co., will

     be  able to exercise certain rights as the recordholder of securities on

     deposit at DTC where Cede & Co. is required to act with respect to  100%

     of  the  securities on deposit or not act at all. .  Publication of  the

     proposal is expected in the Federal Register during the week of Dec.  2.

     (Rel. 34-46930)

     The  National  Securities Clearing Corporation  filed  a  proposed  rule

     change  (SR-NSCC-2002-05) under Section 19(b)(1) of  the  Exchange  Act.

     The  proposed rule change will increase the minimum amount of cash  that

     must  be deposited by members to satisfy clearing fund requirements  and

     will  limit  the amount of a deposit to the clearing fund  that  may  be

     collateralized with letters of credit.  .  Publication of  the  proposal

     is expected in the Federal Register during the week of Dec. 2.  (Rel. 34-

     46931)

     

ACCELERATED APPROVAL OF PROPOSED RULE CHANGE

     The  Commission granted accelerated approval to a proposed  rule  change

     filed  by  the  Cincinnati  Stock Exchange  (SR-CSE-2002-17)  to  extend

     through  May  31,  2003  an existing pilot that amends  CSE  Rule  12.6,

     Customer  Priority,  to require designated dealers  to  better  customer

     orders by sufficient increments in the sub-penny environment in order to

     trade securities for their own accounts.  (Rel. 34-46929)

DELISTINGS GRANTED

     

     An  order has been issued granting the application of the New York Stock

     Exchange  to strike from listing and registration the 6 5/8% Notes  (due

     Oct. 15, 2005) of Quaker State Corporation, effective at the opening  of

     business on Nov. 29, 2002.  (Rel. 34-46925)

     

     An  order has been issued granting the application of the New York Stock

     Exchange  to  strike from listing and registration the Series  B  10  ¬%

     Senior  Notes (due Dec. 1, 2003) of Hawk Corporation, effective  at  the

     opening of business on Nov. 29, 2002.  (Rel. 34-46926)

     

     An  order has been issued granting the application of the New York Stock

     Exchange  to strike from listing and registration the Global  Depositary

     Shares  (each  representing six ordinary participation certificates)  of

     Pepsi-Gemex, S.A. de C.V., effective at the opening of business on  Nov.

     29, 2002.  (Rel. 34-46927)

     

     An  order  has  been issued granting the application of the Philadelphia

     Stock  Exchange  to strike from listing and registration  call  and  put

     option contracts issued by The Options Clearing Corporation with respect

     to  certain underlying securities, effective at the opening of  business

     on Dec. 3, 2002.  (Rel. 34-46936)

     

SECURITIES ACT REGISTRATIONS
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     The following registration statements have been filed with the SEC under

     the  Securities  Act  of  1933.   The reported  information  appears  as

     follows:   Form,  Name, Address and Phone Number (if available)  of  the

     issuer  of the security; Title and the number and/or face amount of  the

     securities being offered; Name of the managing underwriter or  depositor

     (if  applicable);  File number and date filed; Assigned  Branch;  and  a

     designation if the statement is a New Issue.

     Registration statements may be obtained in person or by writing  to  the

     Commission's  Public  Reference  Branch  at  450  Fifth  Street,   N.W.,

     Washington,  D.C.  20549  or  at  the  following  e-mail  box   address:

     <publicinfo@sec.gov>.  In most cases, this information is also available

     on the Commission's website: <www.sec.gov>.

     

S-8     BIO STANDARD CORP, 301 CLEMATIS STREET, SUITE 3000, WEST PALM BEACH,

        FL, 33401, 561-651-7336 - 3,000,000 ($90,000.00) Equity,

        (File 333-101587 - Dec. 2) (BR. 07)

S-8     NEOMEDIA TECHNOLOGIES INC, 2201 SECOND ST STE 600, STE 600, FORT MYERS,

        FL, 33901, 6303554404 - 4,000,000 ($200,000.00) Equity,

        (File 333-101588 - Dec. 2) (BR. 03)

S-8     REINHOLD INDUSTRIES INC/DE/, 12827 EAST IMPERIAL HWY, SANTA FE SPRINGS,

        CA, 90670-4713, 5629443281 - 132,700 ($1,068,235.00) Equity,

        (File 333-101589 - Dec. 2) (BR. 05)

S-8     CORONADO INDUSTRIES INC, 16929 EAST ENTERPRISE DRIVE, SUITE 202,

        FOUNTAIN HILLS, AZ, 85268, 6028376810 - 10,000,000 ($50,000.00) Equity,

        (File 333-101590 - Dec. 2) (BR. 01)

S-8     APOLO GOLD INC, 1458-409 GRANVILLE STREET, VANCOUVER BC CANADA, A1,

        V6C 1T2, 6046874150 - 7,500,000 ($375,000.00) Equity,

        (File 333-101592 - Dec. 2) (BR. 09)

SB-2    CENTREX INC, 8908 SOUTH YALE AVE, SUITE 409, TULSA, OK, 74137,

        9184810167 - 14,691,000 ($5,693,610.00) Equity, (File 333-101593 -

        Dec. 2) (BR. 36)

S-8     INTERNATIONAL TRUST & FINANCIAL SYSTEMS INC, 2255 GLADES ROAD STE 324A,

        BOCA RATON, FL, 33431, 5168922975 - 2,300,000 ($46,000.00) Equity,

        (File 333-101594 - Dec. 2) (BR. 02)

S-8     OSHKOSH TRUCK CORP, 2307 OREGON ST, P O BOX 2566, OSHKOSH, WI, 54903,

        4142359151 - 50,000 ($3,045,500.00) Equity, (File 333-101596 - Dec. 2)

        (BR. 05)

S-8     POSTERALLEY COM INC, 2281 GUENETTE, ., VILLE SAINT-LAURENT, A8,

        HR4 2E9, (514) 339-9355 - 300,000 ($225,000.00) Equity,

        (File 333-101597 - Dec. 2) (BR. 06)

S-3     VENTAS INC, 4360 BROWNSBORO ROAD, SUITE 115, LOUISVILLE, KY, 40207,

        5025967300 - 0 ($103,887,854.00) Equity, (File 333-101598 - Dec. 2)

        (BR. 08)

S-8     AVVAA WORLD HEALTH CARE PRODUCTS INC, PO BOX 335, 3018 SCHAEFFER ROAD,

        FALKLAND BC CANADA, A1, V0E 1W0, 250-379-2727 -
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        1,450,000 ($652,500.00) Equity, (File 333-101599 - Dec. 2) (BR. 04)

S-8     LIGHTBRIDGE INC, 67 S BEDFORD ST, BURLINGTON, MA, 01803, 6173594000 -

        0 ($1,360,000.00) Equity, (File 333-101600 - Dec. 2) (BR. 37)

S-8     CTI GROUP HOLDINGS INC, 333 NORTH ALABAMA STREET, SUITE 240,

        INDIANAPOLIS, IN, 46204, 6106661700X206 -

        4,410,000 ($1,202,850.00) Equity, (File 333-101601 - Dec. 2) (BR. 06)

F-6     WMC RESOURCES INC, GPO BOX 860K, MELBOURNE, VICTORIA AUSTRIALIA, A3,

        00000, 20,000,000 ($1,000,000.00) ADRs/ADSs, (File 333-101603 - Dec. 2)

        (BR. )

     

RECENT 8K FILINGS

Form 8-K is used by companies to file current reports on the following events:

    Item 1.  Changes in Control of Registrant.

    Item 2.  Acquisition or Disposition of Assets.

    Item 3.  Bankruptcy or Receivership.

    Item 4.  Changes in Registrant's Certifying Accountant.

    Item 5.  Other Materially Important Events.

    Item 6.  Resignations of Registrant's Directors.

    Item 7.  Financial Statements and Exhibits.

    Item 8.  Change in Fiscal Year.

    Item 9.  Regulation FD Disclosure.

     The following companies have filed 8-K reports for the date indicated and/or

amendments to 8-K reports previously filed, responding to the item(s) of the form

specified.   8-K  reports  may  be  obtained in  person  or  by  writing  to  the

Commission's Public Reference Branch at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington,  D.C.

20549  or  at the following e-mail box address:  <publicinfo@sec.gov>.   In  most

cases,   this  information  is  also  available  on  the  Commission's   website:

<www.sec.gov>.

                                       STATE     8K ITEM NO.

NAME OF ISSUER                         CODE   1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9     DATE     COMMENT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

3COM CORP                               DE            X           11/26/02

3COM CORP                               DE            X           11/29/02

ALLIED WASTE INDUSTRIES INC             DE            X           12/02/02

AMERICAN HEALTHWAYS INC                 DE          X             11/26/02

AMERIQUEST MORTGAGE SECURITIES INC      DE            X   X       11/26/02

AMERISERV FINANCIAL INC /PA/            PA            X           12/02/02

ANTHEM INC                              IN                    X   12/02/02

ATLAS AIR INC                           DE            X           11/29/02
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ATLAS AIR WORLDWIDE HOLDINGS INC        DE            X           11/29/02

BANK OF AMERICA MORTGAGE SECURITIES I   DE            X   X       06/25/02

BANK OF AMERICA MORTGAGE SECURITIES I   DE            X   X       07/25/02

BLACK DIAMOND INDUSTRIES INC            FL    X                   11/14/02

BLACK HILLS CORP /SD/                   SD            X           11/27/02

BLUESTAR LEASING INC                    NV      X                 11/25/02

BRADLEY PHARMACEUTICALS INC             DE            X   X       11/20/02

C BASS MORTGAGE LOAN ASSET BACKED CER   DE            X   X       11/25/02

CAPITAL TITLE GROUP INC                 DE      X         X       09/18/02    AMEND

CARNIVAL CORP                           DE            X   X       11/30/02

CASTLE A M & CO                         DE            X   X       11/22/02

CFS BANCORP INC                         DE            X   X       11/29/02

CHASE MORTGAGE FINANCE CORP             DE                X       11/25/02

CITIZENS FIRST CORP                     KY            X           12/02/02

COMMERCIAL FEDERAL CORP                 NE            X   X       11/26/02

COMPLE TEL EUROPE NV                                      X   X   12/02/02

CONNETICS CORP                          DE            X           11/30/02

CORPORATE BOND BACKED CERT TR SER 199   DE            X   X       12/02/02

CORPORATE BOND BACKED CERT TRUST SERI   DE            X   X       12/02/02

CREDIT SUISSE FIRST BOSTON MORTGAGE S   DE            X           12/02/02

CROWN AMERICAN REALTY TRUST             MD      X         X       11/19/02

CYBERNET INTERNET SERVICES INTERNATIO   DE      X         X       11/08/02

DEVELOPERS DIVERSIFIED REALTY CORP      OH            X   X       11/15/02

DRS TECHNOLOGIES INC                    DE      X     X   X       12/02/02

EARTHLINK INC                           DE            X           11/29/02

EL PASO ENERGY PARTNERS LP              DE            X   X       12/02/02

ELECSYS CORP                            KS            X   X       10/31/02    AMEND

EOS INTERNATIONAL INC                   DE            X   X       11/27/02

EQUITY MARKETING INC                    DE                    X   12/02/02
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ESCO TECHNOLOGIES INC                   MO                X   X   12/02/02

ESG RE LTD                                          X X   X       11/22/02

FANSTEEL INC                            DE            X           10/31/02

FILMAGIC ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION      UT            X           11/26/02

FINANCIAL ASSET SEC CORP ASSET BACKED   DE      X         X       09/30/02

FIRSTENERGY CORP                        OH            X           12/02/02

FORCE 10 TRADING INC                    NV            X   X       11/22/02

FRESENIUS MEDICAL CARE HOLDINGS INC /   NY            X   X       11/29/02

GENERAL MARITIME CORP/                                        X   11/26/02

GEORGIA PACIFIC CORP                    GA            X   X       11/27/02

HEALTH CARE PROPERTY INVESTORS INC      MD            X           11/21/02

HORTON D R INC /DE/                     DE            X   X       11/22/02

HUFFY CORP                              OH                X       09/19/02    AMEND

IMAGIS TECHNOLOGIES INC                 A1            X   X       05/15/02

IMMULABS CORP                           CO            X           11/26/02

KEYCORP STUDENT LOAN TRUST 1999 B       DE            X   X       11/25/02

LABORATORY CORP OF AMERICA HOLDINGS     DE                    X   12/02/02

LCA VISION INC                          DE            X   X       11/26/02

LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS INC              DE            X   X       11/27/02

LIGAND PHARMACEUTICALS INC              DE            X   X       12/02/02

MANAGEMENT NETWORK GROUP INC                          X   X       12/02/02

MASSEY ENERGY CO                        DE            X   X       11/27/02

MERA PHARMACEUTICALS INC                DE      X         X       09/16/02    AMEND

MERA PHARMACEUTICALS INC                DE      X         X       09/16/02    AMEND

MEVC DRAPER FISHER JURVESTON FUND I I   DE            X           12/02/02

MFC DEVELOPMENT CORP                    DE            X           11/27/02

MICROFIELD GRAPHICS INC /OR             OR      X         X       09/17/02    AMEND

MONTPELIER RE HOLDINGS LTD              D0            X           11/29/02
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MTS SYSTEMS CORP                        MN                  X     11/19/02

NAVISTAR INTERNATIONAL CORP             DE            X           12/02/02

NEWPOWER HOLDINGS INC                   DE            X   X       11/25/02

NORTH FORK BANCORPORATION INC           DE                    X   12/02/02

NTL COMMUNICATIONS CORP                 DE                X   X   07/16/02

NTL INC/DE/                             DE                X   X   11/29/02

NUTEK INC                               NV            X           12/02/02

OCEAN VENTURES INC                                            X   11/29/02

OFFICE DEPOT INC                        DE            X   X       12/01/02

OFFICEMAX INC /OH/                      OH            X           12/02/02

ONYX ACCEPTANCE OWNER TRUST 2002-A      DE            X           10/31/02

ONYX ACCEPTANCE OWNER TRUST 2002-B      DE            X           10/31/02

ONYX ACCEPTANCE OWNER TRUST 2002-C      DE            X           10/31/02

PEOPLES BANCORP INC                     OH            X           12/02/02

PERKINELMER INC                         MA            X   X       11/29/02

PROGRESS ENERGY INC                     NC                X   X   12/02/02

RANGE RESOURCES CORP                    DE          X     X       12/02/02    AMEND

RATEXCHANGE CORP                        DE            X           12/02/02

REGAL ONE CORP                          FL          X             12/02/02

REGENERATION TECHNOLOGIES INC           FL            X   X       11/26/02

RESIDENTIAL ASSET MORT PRODUCT GMACM    DE            X   X       11/25/02

ROHN INDUSTRIES INC                     DE            X X X       11/16/02

SALON MEDIA GROUP INC                   DE            X   X       11/21/02

SEALED AIR CORP/DE                      DE            X           11/27/02

SEARS CREDIT ACCOUNT MASTER TRUST II    IL            X   X       11/22/02

SECOND BANCORP INC                      OH            X           12/02/02

SHELTER PROPERTIES IV LIMITED PARTNER   SC            X   X       12/02/02

SHIRE PHARMACEUTICALS GROUP PLC                       X   X       12/02/02

SILICON IMAGE INC                       DE            X           11/27/02
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STERLING CHEMICALS HOLDINGS INC /TX/    DE                X   X   11/21/02

STRUCTURED ASSET SECURITIES CORP        DE            X           11/26/02

SUNRISE ASSISTED LIVING INC             DE            X           12/02/02

TULARIK INC                             DE            X           12/02/02

UAL CORP /DE/                           DE            X   X       12/02/02

URBAN TELEVISION NETWORK CORP           NV            X   X       11/29/02

US PATRIOT INC                          SC            X   X       11/22/02

VALENCE TECHNOLOGY INC                  DE            X   X       11/27/02

VENTAS INC                              DE            X   X       12/02/02

WESTPORT RESOURCES CORP /NV/            NV            X   X       12/02/02

WESTPORT RESOURCES CORP /NV/            NV            X   X       12/02/02

WESTPORT RESOURCES CORP /NV/            NV                    X   12/02/02

WESTPORT RESOURCES CORP /NV/            NV                    X   12/02/02
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In his fraud claim, plaintiff alleges that defendants fraudulently used the Patriot Act as a 

reason for breaching its agreement to provide escrow services: 

US BANK and US BANCORP intentionally deceived MSCI and SAMUEL LIPARI 
over the pretext of the USA PATRIOT Act as a false reason to breach the contract to 
provide escrow accounts because the defendants knew or should have known that it 
is well established that a change in federal law does not excuse breach of a banking 
contract. 

Complaint, ¶ 219. 

It is therefore clear that plaintiff’s fraud claim is part and parcel of his breach of contract 

claim.  The fraud cause of action does not rest on any independent relationship or duty created by the 

contract but rather on the existence or non-existence of the contract itself.  Even if a valid, 

enforceable contract existed and was breached (which is denied) the pleaded facts show that  

plaintiff's fraud claim rests on that alleged breach and dismissal is appropriate. 

3. Count III:  Misappropriation of Trade Secrets under R.S.Mo. 
§ 417.450. 

Plaintiff must plead that defendants misappropriated plaintiff’s trade secrets 
and that such misappropriation has caused plaintiff damage.  Plaintiff’s 
allegations show that the alleged trade secrets–which defendants allegedly 
communicated to others at U.S. Bank, U.S. Bancorp or their affiliate 
U.S. Bancorp Piper Jaffray–were previously provided to Piper Jaffray by the 
plaintiff.  Therefore, plaintiff’s allegations fail to show a misappropriation or 
causation sufficient to maintain a cause of action and his Complaint should be 
dismissed with prejudice. 

Under Missouri law, the misappropriation of trade secrets occurs when one acquires a trade 

secret through improper means such as theft or bribery; or when one discloses a trade secret without 

consent or knew or had reason to know that the trade secret was acquired under circumstances giving 

rise to a duty to maintain its secrecy.  See H&R Block Eastern Tax Services, Inc. v. Enchura, 122 

F. Supp.2d 1067, 1074 (W.D. Mo. 2000); R.S.Mo. § 417.453. 

The following is a summary of the allegations plaintiff makes to support his misappropriation 

claim: 

Exb 4
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• On or about October 10, 2002 plaintiff gave a copy of the Medical Supply business plan 
and associate program booklets to U.S. Bank employee Douglas Lewis to apply for a line 
of credit based upon the escrow accounts Medical Supply was seeking.  (Complaint 
¶ 108); 

• The business plan and associate booklets “had cover pages giving notice of restricted use 
and that Medical Supply protected the confidential business trade secret and intellectual 
property contained therein.”  (Complaint ¶ 109); 

• The letter of introduction also addressed the confidential nature of the documents 
(Complaint ¶ 110); 

• After delivery, Mr. Lipari was given a loan application and agreed to return the next day 
(Complaint ¶ 114); 

• On or about November 6, 2002, Mr. Lipari sought to retrieve the documents given to 
Mr. Lewis on October 10, 2002 (Complaint ¶ 189); 

• Upon retrieving the booklets, he observed the binders and surmised they had been 
separated and copies or faxes had been made of the associate program and business plans 
as shown by “tractor marks” from a copy or fax machine (Complaint ¶¶ 192, 193); 

• That someone on behalf of the defendants had instructed Mr. Lewis to disassemble the 
documents and make copies contrary to the notice of limitations and disclosure 
(Complaint ¶ 229); 

• U.S. Bank exceeded its authorized use and supposedly copied and/or transmitted the 
documents to three U.S. Bancorp employees (Complaint ¶ 230); 

• That U.S. Bancorp, its officers, and its subsidiary “U.S. BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY 
acquired unconsented knowledge of MSCI’s trade secrets and made use thereof 
(Complaint ¶ 232). 

Plaintiff’s cause of action for misappropriation of trade secrets fails to state a claim upon 

which relief can be granted.5  While plaintiff alleges that U.S. Bancorp obtained “unconsented 

knowledge of MSCI’s trade secrets and made use thereof,” it was Medical Supply and Mr. Lipari 

who selected defendants for the purposes of providing escrow services and a possible loan.  See 

Complaint ¶¶ 45, 47.  The only entity–outside of defendants–that plaintiff alleges obtained these 

trade secrets is their affiliate at the time, U.S. Bancorp Piper Jaffray.  (Complaint ¶ 232.)  But 

                                                 
5 Defendants do not concede that the information plaintiff asserts as a “trade secret” is entitled to any protection 

afforded by the Missouri Act.  However, for purposes of this motion and argument, the allegation will be taken as true. 
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plaintiff's allegations–taken as true–admit that before seeking escrow services from the defendants, 

plaintiff voluntarily contacted Piper Jaffray and submitted his idea and business plan for 

consideration of Medical Supply as a venture capital candidate.  See Complaint, ¶¶ 55-60.  

Therefore, even assuming that defendants improperly communicated the alleged trade secrets to their 

affiliate Piper Jaffray, there is no misappropriation, causation or damage either by these defendants 

or the non-party, because plaintiff had already voluntarily provided this information to Piper Jaffray. 

These facts show that plaintiff’s claim for misappropriation of trade secrets cannot stand.  It 

was the plaintiff who sought out U.S. Bank; it was the plaintiff who submitted the alleged trade 

secrets to U.S. Bank; and the alleged trade secrets had already been divulged–by the plaintiff–to 

Piper Jaffray (U.S. Bancorp’s subsidiary at the time) three to four months earlier.  Moreover, the 

plaintiff fails to allege how any of the defendants misused the materials or how he was damaged by 

the misuse.  For these reasons, this Court must dismiss Count III of plaintiff’s Complaint with 

prejudice pursuant to Rule 12(b)(6). 

4. Count IV:  Damages for Breach of Fiduciary Duty 

Plaintiff generally alleges that defendants owed it a “fiduciary duty” but fails to provide any 

factual basis for this particular allegation.  A claim for breach of fiduciary duty has four elements:  

(1) the existence of a fiduciary relationship between the parties, (2) a breach of that fiduciary duty, 

(3) causation, and (4) harm.  Koger v. Hartford Life Ins. Co., 28 S.W.3d 405, 411 (Mo. App. W.D. 

2000); Preferred Phys. Mut. Group v. Preferred Phys. Mut. Risk Retention, 918 S.W.2d 805, 810 

(Mo. App. W.D. 1996).  A fiduciary is a person having a duty to “act primarily for the benefit of 

another in matters connected with his undertaking.”  See Restatement (Second) Agency 13 cmt. a 

(1957); Restatement (Second) of Trusts § 2 (1958).  While Missouri has not adopted a precise 

common-law definition, a “fiduciary relationship” may exist when “a special confidence [is] reposed 

in one who in equity and good conscience is bound to act in good faith, and with due regard to the 



 

 

Exhibit 5 

 

 

Audio recording made by plaintiff of a F.R. Civ. P. Rule 16 case management conference 

the week of May 2, 2003 with Bret D. Landrith, Steven D. Ruse, KS lic. #11461 and 

Mark A. Olthoff, KS lic. #70339  of Shughart Thomson & Kilroy, PC. Landrith heard 

reminding Ruse and Olthoff  again of the plaintiff’s proposed electronic discovery plan. 

Recording can be heard online at the following public url:  

 

http://www.medicalsupplychain.com/pdf/Suggart%20Thompson%20Kilroy

%20Steven%20Ruse%20Mark%20Olthoff%20Conversion.wav  
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Exb 7



 
 

ESCROW AGREEMENT 
 
 
 
 THIS ESCROW AGREEMENT (the "Escrow Agreement"), dated as of 
[_____________], by and between Medical Supply Chain, Inc. (the "Seller") and 
[_______________] (the "Purchaser") and _________________, as escrow agent (the "Escrow 
Agent"). 
 
 WHEREAS, Seller and Purchaser have entered into an agreement whereby the full 
certification tuition of $30,000.00 (thirty thousand dollars) will be placed in escrow by the 
purchaser;  
 
 WHEREAS, Seller and Purchaser desire that ___________________ act as Escrow Agent 
to Medical Supply Chain, Inc. certification tuition, and Escrow Agent is willing to act in such 
capacity; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Seller and Purchaser desire Escrow Agent to release the full certification 
tuition of $30,000.00 (thirty thousand dollars) to Medical Supply Chain, Inc. upon signed 
authorization executed by both Seller and Purchaser at the completion of the 5-day supply chain 
strategist course, or in the event that either Seller or Purchaser reject Purchaser’s participation in 
the certification program, Escrow Agent will pay to Purchaser $25,000.00 (twenty five thousand 
dollars) and Escrow Agent will pay to Seller $ 5,000.00 (five thousand dollars) upon receipt of 
signed rejection notice executed by both Seller and Purchaser. 
 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, Seller, Purchaser and Escrow Agent agree to the terms of this 
Escrow Agreement as set forth herein. 
 
 1. Escrow Agent 
 
  ____________________ is not a party to, or bound by, any agreement which may be 

evidenced by or arise out of the instructions in this Escrow Agreement contained, 
except as to its duties as Escrow Agent hereby expressly undertaken. 

 
 2. Bank as Depository 
 
  The Escrow Agent acts hereunder as depository only, and is not responsible or liable 

in any manner for the sufficiency, correctness, genuineness or validity of this Escrow 
Agreement, any instrument deposited with it hereunder, or with respect to the form or 
execution of the same, or the identity, authority, or right of any person executing or 
depositing the same. 

 
3. Operation of the Escrow 

Exb 8
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Purchaser will provide signed Escrow agreement and transfer $30,000.00 to 
________________, and escrow account for Medical Supply Chain, Inc. certification 
candidates by November 1st, 2002. 
 
Seller will provide Purchaser and Escrow Agent with dates of 5-day supply chain 
strategist course. 
 
At completion of the 5-day supply chain strategist course, Seller and Purchaser will 
provide authorization to release Purchaser’s $30,000.00 to Medical Supply Chain, 
Inc. or a rejection instructing Escrow Agent to return $25,000.00 to Purchaser and 
release $5,000.00 to Medical Supply Chain, Inc. In either event, both Seller and 
Purchaser must sign the authorization or rejection form in order for Escrow Agent to 
disburse funds.  

 
 4. Investments 
 
  The Escrow Agent shall invest and reinvest monies, and earnings thereon, held 

pursuant to this Escrow Agreement in [U.S. Treasury and agency obligations] 
[certificates of deposit] [corporate bonds or commercial paper] [with maturity from 
date of purchase of not less than _____ days] upon the written instructions of the 
[_____________].  In the event that written instructions are not provided to the 
Escrow Agent or monies are held in amounts too small to invest as instructed, the 
Escrow Agent shall invest and reinvest monies in _____________________________ 

  ________________________________. 
 
 5. Indemnification 
 
  Seller and Purchaser jointly and severally agree to indemnify and save the Escrow 

Agent harmless from all loss, cost, damages, fees and expenses, including, but not 
limited to attorney's fees suffered or incurred by the Escrow Agent as a result thereof. 

 
 6. Documents 
 
  The Escrow Agent shall be protected in acting upon any written notice, request, 

wavier, consent, certificate, receipt, opinion of counsel, authorization, power of 
attorney or other paper or document which the Escrow Agent in good faith believes to 
be genuine and what it purports to be. 

 
 7. Limited Liability 
 
  The Escrow Agent shall not be liable for anything, which it may do or refrain from 

doing in connection herewith, except its own gross negligence or willful misconduct. 
 
 
 8. Legal Counsel 
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  The Escrow Agent may consult with legal counsel in the event of any dispute or 

question as to the construction of any of the provisions hereof or its duties hereunder, 
and it shall incur no liability and shall be fully protected in acting in accordance with 
the opinion and instructions of such counsel. 

 
 9. Dispute 
 
  In the event of any disagreement between the undersigned or the person or persons 

named in the instructions in this Escrow Agreement contained, or any other person, 
resulting in adverse claims and demands being made in connection with or for any 
papers, money or property involved herein, or affected hereby, the Escrow Agent 
shall be entitled to refuse to comply with any demand or claim, as long as such 
disagreement shall continue, and in so refusing to make any delivery or other 
disposition of any money, papers or property involved or affected hereby, the Escrow 
Agent shall not be or become liable to the undersigned or to any person named in 
such instructions for its refusal to comply with such conflicting or adverse demands, 
and the Escrow Agent shall be entitled to refuse and refrain to act until: 

 
  (a) The rights of the adverse claimants shall have been fully and finally adjudicated 

in a Court assuming and having jurisdiction of the parties and money, papers 
and property involved herein or affected hereby, or 

 
  (b) All differences shall have been adjusted by agreement and the Escrow Agent 

shall have been notified thereof in writing, signed by all the parties interested. 
 

 10. Security Interests 

 
 The only party permitted under this agreement to grant a security interest in any 

monies or other property deposited with the Escrow Agent under this Escrow 
Agreement, or otherwise create a lien, encumbrance or other claim against such 
monies or borrow against the same, is Medical Supply Chain Inc. which will be 
entitled to grant a security interest in and up to $5,000.00 of the escrowed funds 
account to cover the cost and arrangements it must undertake for this Escrow 
Agreement and Purchaser’s 5-day supply chain strategist course. 

 
 11. Resignation of Escrow Agent 

 
 Escrow Agent may resign or be removed, at any time, for any reason, by written 

notice of its resignation or removal to the proper parties at their respective addresses 
as set forth herein, at least 30 days before the date specified for such resignation or 
removal to take effect; upon the effective date of such resignation or removal: 

 
 

  (a) All cash and other payments and all other property then held by the Escrow 
Agent hereunder shall be delivered by it to such successor Escrow Agent as may 
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be designated in writing by Seller and Purchaser, whereupon the Escrow 
Agent's obligations hereunder shall cease and terminate; 

 
  (b) If no such successor Escrow Agent has been designated by such date, all 

obligations of the Escrow Agent hereunder shall, nevertheless, cease and 
terminate, and the Escrow Agent's sole responsibility thereafter shall be to keep 
all property then held by it and to deliver the same to a person designated in 
writing by Seller and Purchaser or in accordance with the directions of a final 
order or judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction. 
 

  (c) Further, if no such successor Escrow Agent has been designated by such date, 
the resigning or removed Escrow Agent may petition any court of competent 
jurisdiction for the appointment of a successor agent; further the resigning or 
removed Escrow Agent may pay into court all monies and property deposited 
with Escrow Agent under this Escrow Agreement. 

 
 12. Severability 
 
  Any invalidity, in whole or in part, of any provision of this Escrow Agreement shall 

not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provisions of this Escrow 
Agreement. 

 
 13. Fees and Expenses 
 
  Escrow Agent shall be entitled to fees and expenses for its regular services as Escrow 

Agent.  Additionally, Escrow Agent is entitled to fees for extraordinary services and 
reimbursement of any out of pocket and extraordinary costs and expenses, including, 
but not limited to, attorneys' fees.  Escrow Agent shall have a first lien upon all 
monies deposited with it for the purposes of paying its fees and expenses. Medical 
Supply Chain, Inc. shall pay all of the Escrow Agent’s compensation, costs and 
expenses. 

 
  Any fees and expenses shall be payable from and may be deducted by Escrow Agent 

from interest and/or principal of any monies held in Escrow Fund by Escrow Agent. 
 
 14. Termination 
 
  This Escrow Agreement shall be terminated upon disbursement of the assets held in 

the Escrow Fund and may be terminated prior to that date by written mutual consent 
signed by all the parties, including Escrow Agent. 

 
 
  Any termination by mutual consent shall be effective on the date specified in the 

termination document, or, if not specified, then on the date when signed by all parties 
including Escrow Agent. 
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 15. Entire Agreement 
 
  This Escrow Agreement contains all of the terms agreed upon by the parties with 

respect to an escrow fund.  Escrow Agent is not a party to any other agreement 
between Seller and Purchaser, and Escrow Agent's duties shall be determined solely 
by reference to this Escrow Agreement. 

 
 16. Successors and Assigns 
 
  This Escrow Agreement and all actions taken hereunder in accordance with its terms 

shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Seller, Purchaser and Escrow 
Agent and their respective successors and assigns. 

 
 17. Governing Law 
 
  This Escrow Agreement and the Escrow Agent's employment hereunder shall be 

construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Missouri. 
 
 18. Counterparts 
 
  This Escrow Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts with the same 

effect if signatures and all counterparts are upon the same instrument. 
 
 19. Amendment of Agreement 
 
  Escrow Agent shall not be bound by any amendment of this Escrow Agreement and 

no amendment shall be effective unless: 
 
   (a) The amendment is in writing; 
   (b) The amendment is agreed to by the parties hereto; and 
   (c) The amendment is agreed to by the Escrow Agent. 
 
 20. Notices 
 
  All notices shall be deemed conclusively to have been given upon receipt if the same 

is in writing, signed by any one of its officers and (1) mailed, by registered or 
certified mail, postage prepaid, or (2) hand delivery, to the notice address. 

 
 
 
 
 (a) If to Escrow Agent:  ___________________ 
    ___________________ 
    ___________________ 
    ___________________ 
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 (b) If to Purchaser:  ___________________ 
    ___________________ 
    ___________________ 
    ___________________ 
 
 (c) If to Seller:  Medical Supply Chain, Inc. 
    ATTN: Sam Lipari 
    1300 NW Jefferson Court 
    Blue Springs, Missouri 64015 
 
 21. Earnings Allocation and Tax Reporting 

 

  [The IRS has published proposed regulations, which are expected to be finalized soon 
that will eliminate past flexibility of escrow agents in the reporting of earnings.] 

 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have each caused this Escrow Agreement to 
be executed on their behalf as of the date first above written. 
 
 
 Medical Supply Chain, Inc., As Seller 
 
 
 By: _____________________ 
 
 
 
 [_________________], As Purchaser 
 
 
 By: _____________________ 
 
 
 
 ________________________ 
 As Escrow Agent 
 
 
 By: _____________________ 



 
 

ESCROW AGREEMENT 
 
 
 
 THIS ESCROW AGREEMENT (the "Escrow Agreement"), dated as of 
[_____________], by and between Medical Supply Chain, Inc. (the "Seller") and 
[_______________] (the "Purchaser") and U.S. Bank National Association, as escrow agent (the 
"Escrow Agent"). 
 
 WHEREAS, Seller and Purchaser have entered into an agreement whereby the full 
certification tuition of $30,000.00 (thirty thousand dollars) will be placed in escrow by the 
purchaser;  
 
 WHEREAS, Seller and Purchaser desire that U.S. Bank National Association, act as 
Escrow Agent to Medical Supply Chain, Inc. certification tuition, and Escrow Agent is willing to 
act in such capacity; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Seller and Purchaser desire Escrow Agent to release the full certification 
tuition of $30,000.00 (thirty thousand dollars) to Medical Supply Chain, Inc. upon signed 
authorization executed by both Seller and Purchaser at the completion of the 5-day supply chain 
strategist course, or in the event that either Seller or Purchaser reject Purchaser’s participation in 
the certification program, Escrow Agent will pay to Purchaser $25,000.00 (twenty five thousand 
dollars) and Escrow Agent will pay to Seller $ 5,000.00 (five thousand dollars) upon receipt of 
signed rejection notice executed by both Seller and Purchaser. 
 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, Seller, Purchaser and Escrow Agent agree to the terms of this 
Escrow Agreement as set forth herein. 
 
 1. Escrow Agent 
 
  U.S. Bank National Association is not a party to, or bound by, any agreement which 

may be evidenced by or arise out of the instructions in this Escrow Agreement 
contained, except as to its duties as Escrow Agent hereby expressly undertaken. 

 
 2. Bank as Depository 
 
  The Escrow Agent acts hereunder as depository only, and is not responsible or liable 

in any manner for the sufficiency, correctness, genuineness or validity of this Escrow 
Agreement, any instrument deposited with it hereunder, or with respect to the form or 
execution of the same, or the identity, authority, or right of any person executing or 
depositing the same. 
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Purchaser will provide signed Escrow agreement and transfer $30,000.00 to U.S. 
Bank National Association, and escrow account for Medical Supply Chain, Inc. 
certification candidates by November 1st, 2002. 
 
Seller will provide Purchaser and Escrow Agent with dates of 5-day supply chain 
strategist course. 
 
At completion of the 5-day supply chain strategist course, Seller and Purchaser will 
provide authorization to release Purchaser’s $30,000.00 to Medical Supply Chain, 
Inc. or a rejection instructing Escrow Agent to return $25,000.00 to Purchaser and 
release $5,000.00 to Medical Supply Chain, Inc. In either event, both Seller and 
Purchaser must sign the authorization or rejection form in order for Escrow Agent to 
disburse funds.  

 
 4. Investments 
 
  The Escrow Agent shall invest and reinvest monies, and earnings thereon, held 

pursuant to this Escrow Agreement in US Treasury money market funds offered by 
escrow agent. In the event that written instructions are not provided to the Escrow 
Agent or monies are held in amounts too small to invest as instructed, the Escrow 
Agent shall invest and reinvest monies in First American Treasury Obligation Fund 
(Class S). 

 
 5. Indemnification 
 
  Seller and Purchaser jointly and severally agree to indemnify and save the Escrow 

Agent harmless from all loss, cost, damages, fees and expenses, including, but not 
limited to attorney's fees suffered or incurred by the Escrow Agent as a result thereof. 

 
 6. Documents 
 
  The Escrow Agent shall be protected in acting upon any written notice, request, 

wavier, consent, certificate, receipt, opinion of counsel, authorization, power of 
attorney or other paper or document which the Escrow Agent in good faith believes to 
be genuine and what it purports to be. 

 
 7. Limited Liability 
 
  The Escrow Agent shall not be liable for anything, which it may do or refrain from 

doing in connection herewith, except its own gross negligence or willful misconduct. 
 
 
 
 8. Legal Counsel 
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  The Escrow Agent may consult with legal counsel in the event of any dispute or 
question as to the construction of any of the provisions hereof or its duties hereunder, 
and it shall incur no liability and shall be fully protected in acting in accordance with 
the opinion and instructions of such counsel. 

 
 9. Dispute 
 
  In the event of any disagreement between the undersigned or the person or persons 

named in the instructions in this Escrow Agreement contained, or any other person, 
resulting in adverse claims and demands being made in connection with or for any 
papers, money or property involved herein, or affected hereby, the Escrow Agent 
shall be entitled to refuse to comply with any demand or claim, as long as such 
disagreement shall continue, and in so refusing to make any delivery or other 
disposition of any money, papers or property involved or affected hereby, the Escrow 
Agent shall not be or become liable to the undersigned or to any person named in 
such instructions for its refusal to comply with such conflicting or adverse demands, 
and the Escrow Agent shall be entitled to refuse and refrain to act until: 

 
  (a) The rights of the adverse claimants shall have been fully and finally adjudicated 

in a Court assuming and having jurisdiction of the parties and money, papers 
and property involved herein or affected hereby, or 

 
  (b) All differences shall have been adjusted by agreement and the Escrow Agent 

shall have been notified thereof in writing, signed by all the parties interested. 
 

 10. Security Interests 

 
 The only party permitted under this agreement to grant a security interest in any 

monies or other property deposited with the Escrow Agent under this Escrow 
Agreement, or otherwise create a lien, encumbrance or other claim against such 
monies or borrow against the same, is Medical Supply Chain Inc. which will be 
entitled to grant a security interest in and up to $5,000.00 of the escrowed funds 
account to cover the cost and arrangements it must undertake for this Escrow 
Agreement and Purchaser’s 5-day supply chain strategist course. 

 
 11. Resignation of Escrow Agent 

 
 Escrow Agent may resign or be removed, at any time, for any reason, by written 

notice of its resignation or removal to the proper parties at their respective addresses 
as set forth herein, at least 30 days before the date specified for such resignation or 
removal to take effect; upon the effective date of such resignation or removal: 

 
 

  (a) All cash and other payments and all other property then held by the Escrow 
Agent hereunder shall be delivered by it to such successor Escrow Agent as may 
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be designated in writing by Seller and Purchaser, whereupon the Escrow 
Agent's obligations hereunder shall cease and terminate; 

 
  (b) If no such successor Escrow Agent has been designated by such date, all 

obligations of the Escrow Agent hereunder shall, nevertheless, cease and 
terminate, and the Escrow Agent's sole responsibility thereafter shall be to keep 
all property then held by it and to deliver the same to a person designated in 
writing by Seller and Purchaser or in accordance with the directions of a final 
order or judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction. 
 

  (c) Further, if no such successor Escrow Agent has been designated by such date, 
the resigning or removed Escrow Agent may petition any court of competent 
jurisdiction for the appointment of a successor agent; further the resigning or 
removed Escrow Agent may pay into court all monies and property deposited 
with Escrow Agent under this Escrow Agreement. 

 
 12. Severability 
 
  Any invalidity, in whole or in part, of any provision of this Escrow Agreement shall 

not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provisions of this Escrow 
Agreement. 

 
 13. Fees and Expenses 
 
  Escrow Agent shall be entitled to fees and expenses for its regular services as Escrow 

Agent.  Additionally, Escrow Agent is entitled to fees for extraordinary services and 
reimbursement of any out of pocket and extraordinary costs and expenses, including, 
but not limited to, attorneys' fees.  Escrow Agent shall have a first lien upon all 
monies deposited with it for the purposes of paying its fees and expenses. Medical 
Supply Chain, Inc. shall pay all of the Escrow Agent’s compensation, costs and 
expenses. 

 
  Any fees and expenses shall be payable from and may be deducted by Escrow Agent 

from interest and/or principal of any monies held in Escrow Fund by Escrow Agent. 
 
 14. Termination 
 
  This Escrow Agreement shall be terminated upon disbursement of the assets held in 

the Escrow Fund and may be terminated prior to that date by written mutual consent 
signed by all the parties, including Escrow Agent. 

 
 
  Any termination by mutual consent shall be effective on the date specified in the 

termination document, or, if not specified, then on the date when signed by all parties 
including Escrow Agent. 
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 15. Entire Agreement 
 
  This Escrow Agreement contains all of the terms agreed upon by the parties with 

respect to an escrow fund.  Escrow Agent is not a party to any other agreement 
between Seller and Purchaser, and Escrow Agent's duties shall be determined solely 
by reference to this Escrow Agreement. 

 
 16. Successors and Assigns 
 
  This Escrow Agreement and all actions taken hereunder in accordance with its terms 

shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Seller, Purchaser and Escrow 
Agent and their respective successors and assigns. 

 
 17. Governing Law 
 
  This Escrow Agreement and the Escrow Agent's employment hereunder shall be 

construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Missouri. 
 
 18. Counterparts 
 
  This Escrow Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts with the same 

effect if signatures and all counterparts are upon the same instrument. 
 
 19. Amendment of Agreement 
 
  Escrow Agent shall not be bound by any amendment of this Escrow Agreement and 

no amendment shall be effective unless: 
 
   (a) The amendment is in writing; 
   (b) The amendment is agreed to by the parties hereto; and 
   (c) The amendment is agreed to by the Escrow Agent. 
 
 20. Notices 
 
  All notices shall be deemed conclusively to have been given upon receipt if the same 

is in writing, signed by any one of its officers and (1) mailed, by registered or 
certified mail, postage prepaid, or (2) hand delivery, to the notice address. 

 
 
 
 
 (a) If to Escrow Agent:  U.S. Bank National Association 
    Brian J. Kabbes V.P. 
    One U.S. Bank Plaza 
    Mail Code SL-MO-T6CT 
    St. Louis, Missouri 63101 
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    314.418.3943 
    314.418.1225 Fax  
 
 (b) If to Purchaser:  ___________________ 
    ___________________ 
    ___________________ 
    ___________________ 
 
 (c) If to Seller:  Medical Supply Chain, Inc. 
    Samuel Lipari Chair & COO 
    1300 NW Jefferson Court 
    Blue Springs, Missouri 64015 
    816.220.4128 
    816.220.4199 Fax 
 
 21. Earnings Allocation and Tax Reporting 

 

  [The IRS has published proposed regulations, which are expected to be finalized soon 
that will eliminate past flexibility of escrow agents in the reporting of earnings.] 

 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have each caused this Escrow Agreement to 
be executed on their behalf as of the date first above written. 
 
 
 Medical Supply Chain, Inc., As Seller 
 
 By: _____________________ 
 
 
 [_________________], As Purchaser 
 
 By: _____________________ 
 
 

U.S. Bank National Association, As 
Escrow Agent 

 
 By: _____________________ 
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Voicemail left by Becky Hainje of US Bank in Independence, Missouri 

 

 

Online at 
 

 

 

http://www.medicalsupplychain.com/pdf/USB%20Becky%20Hainje%20Co

nversion.wav 
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Phone conversation with US Bank Senior Vice President Ed Higgens 

 

 

Online at 
 

http://www.medicalsupplychain.com/pdf/USB%20Ed%20Higgins%20Conv

ersion.wav 
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Subject: DD 11/28 Has ESign Killed the Statute of Frauds? 
Date: Tue, 28 Nov 2000 11:09:30 -0600 
From: Patrick Randolph prandolph@cctr.umkc.edu 
Reply-To: Real Estate Brokers Discussion Group <BROKERDIRT@LISTSERV.UMKC.EDU> 

No one knows much about the real meaning of the ESign legislation on real estate transactions. We're just
getting a lot of speculation, and here I add my own. I would appreciate in particular feedback about
particular things I say in this little piece, as I plan to look for some other publication venue as well, and in
any event would like to refine my ideas. 

Pat 

Daily Development for Tuesday, November 28, 2000 

by: Patrick A. Randolph, Jr. 
Professor of Law 
UMKC School of Law 
Of Counsel: Blackwell Sanders Peper Martin 
Kansas City, Missouri 
prandolph@cctr.umkc.edu 

STATUTE OF FRAUDS; ELECTRONIC TRANSACTIONS: Federal ESign legislation revokes Statute of
Frauds with regard to electronic transactions. 

Electronic Records in Global and National Commerce Act, S. 761 (106th Congress, 2000) 

This act, popularly referred to as "ESign," in fact has as one of its primary purposes to repeal state law
requirements for written instruments as they apply to electronic agreements. The operative language is quite
clear and succinct: 

"Notwithstanding any statute, regulation, or other rule of law [other than subsequent parts of this
same statute], with respect to any transactions in or affecting interstate or foreign commerce 

(1) a signature, contract, or other record relating to such transaction may not be denied legal effect,
validity or enforceability solely because it is in electronic form; and 

(2) a contract relating to such transaction may not be denied legal effect, validity or enforceability
solely because an electronic signature or electronic record was used in its formation.

The operative term, obviously, is "transaction." ESign provides a very broad definition: 

Exb 18
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"The term "transaction" means an action or set of actions relating to the conduct of a business,
consumer or commercial affairs between two or more persons, including any of the following types of
conduct 

(A) the sale, lease, exchange, or other disposition of [personal property and intangibles]

(B) the sale, lease, exchange or other disposition of any interest in real property, or any combination
thereof.

An initial reaction by many familiar with developments in electronic transactions don't find any of this too
surprising. They anticipate a brave new world of encrypted signatures managed through elaborate codes,
eyeball or DNA recognition, or other sophisticated recognition devices to insure the certainty of agreement
that once might have been provided by personal witnesses, signatures, seals and notaries. In other words,
one type of formality is replaced with another type. But, in its infinite wisdom, Congress is far, far, beyond
this narrow view of transactions. Congress has provided that almost anything can be an electronic signature
rendering a party bound to agreement. Here is the statutory language: 

"The term "electronic signature" means an electronic sound, symbol, or process, attached to or
logically associated with a contract or other record and executed or adopted by a person with the
intent to sign the record."

That's it. So, for instance, if you sent me an email that said: "I'll buy your property at 450 W. Meyer in
Chicago for $50,000, and I typed at the top of this message "OK" and hit "return," it's quite likely that we'd
have a binding real estate contract. All you'd have to show is that the typing of the words "OK" indicated
my intent to express agreement. The fact that I didn't even type out my name would not matter, since I
"attached" an "electronic symbol" to a contract. The contract would still have to meet standards of clarity
and certainty. And perhaps an exchange this informal would not meet those standards in some jurisdictions.
But the point is that a relatively simple and perhaps thoughtless act arguably could result in the formation of
a relatively serious contract. 

Perhaps you're wondering whether a voice transmission over a telephone line is also an "electronic sound,
symbol or process," taking telephone agreements out of the Statute of Frauds. Esign arguably exempts (at
least in consumer agreements) telephone conversations from the impact of its preemptive approval of
electronic agreements, but this is not all that clear. Here is the language, which applies only to consumer
agreements: 

"An oral communication or a recording of an oral communication shall not qualify as an electronic
record for purposes of this subsection except as otherwise provided under applicable law."

First, we'd have to conclude that a telephonic communication is an "oral communication." We've got a
fighting chance there. But then, note that the exemption language applies to "electronic records" which is a
different concept from "electronic signature." What about agreements other than consumer agreements?
Another ESign provision, of broader application, states that if an existing local law requires that an
agreement be in writing, the enforceability of an electronic record of that agreement may be denied if the
record is in a form that cannot be retained and accurately reproduced. Thus, arguably we could not negotiate
a real estate agreement over the telephone that would be exempt from the Statute of Frauds unless that
conversation was recorded in some way and could be reproduced. But does this provision also require that
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my telephonic assent to an agreement form sent to me by email or even in writing also be preserved in a
reproducible fashion? Possibly. 

Note that the Act only applies to transactions in "interstate commerce." But that email message, when it left
my computer, conceivably bounced to Irkutsk, then to Geneva, then to Mexico City all on its way to your
computer, even if your computer was located in the building next door to mine. Further, it was carried on a
variety of communications media commonly association with interstate transactions. The likelihood is quite
strong that even the current Supreme Court, with its reputed desire for narrowing the reach of the Interstate
Commerce Clause, will have difficulty interpreting around the conclusion that email transactions are in
interstate commerce. With respect to local telephone conversations, prior cases have held that telephone
conversations are per se within interstate commerce as well, although this conclusion is one that the
Supreme Court might change at some point. 

It's not hard to argue that this is all exactly what Congress intended. But is it good policy? 

The traditional Statute of Frauds has come to mean a requirement for formality in the "typical" real estate
transaction (and, of course other important transactions as well). We all know that the requirements of the
Statute can often be avoided, through the "part performance doctrine," or through the somewhat related
concept of "estoppel." Further, in some cases parties relying upon the statute to avoid obligations have been
held liable for fraud, even though they escape the transaction itself. But even though there are many
exceptions to which lawyers might result in a pinch, the requirements of the Statute have resulted in
standard practices by real estate transactions professionals to comply with the requirements and avoid
problems. The result, many would argue, is that parties engaged in the serious business of transacting in real
estate get the chance to "think twice" and study the instruments before they are finally bound. 

It's that "think twice" aspect that the Esign legislation may take away. 

Well advised parties have always been able to protect themselves from thoughtless acts by their agents or
employees by setting up restrictions on the way in which they are bound to important contracts. There is
nothing in ESign that prevents such practices. A company could, for instance, simply prohibit its employees
from assenting to anything through email messages. It could provide notice in advance to its business
associates that electronic transmissions cannot result in binding agreements. Such a notice, one hopes, would
be binding upon any parties that do business with knowledge of it, since an electronic assent would not then
be regarded as expressing an "intent to be bound." (A court, however, could find that the party supplying the
warning had waived the restriction by the granting of oral assent notwithstanding the warning.) 

But many real estate owners are not "well advised" at the time that they are in the throes of negotiating real
estate deals. Lawyers know that all too often there is something on the table before the client shows up for
legal advice. Frequently, the presence of the Statute of Frauds has protected such clients basically against
themselves. If it's not in writing, it can always be changed to make a more comfortable agreement.
Frequently, these situations arise when there has been no part performance or estoppel, and the parties can
work out an agreement in a more formal negotiating environment. 

Obviously, if ESign makes every telephonic exchange a binding agreement, notwithstanding the Statute of
Frauds, this comfy "second chance" that generally is available today will be gone. But even if ESign does
not apply to telephonic acceptances, its application to Internet agreements may raise many of the same
problems. The fundamental policy question is whether an email exchange ought to be viewed as the
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equivalent of an exchange of written documents or as the equivalent of a telephone conversation. In the
author's view, the Internet exchange falls in between, but in many cases fits closer to the telephone
conversation. Remember that Internet exchanges now are carried out through hand held transmitters that
"road warriors" bang on while walking through airports. 

The best result we can hope for under ESign is that the affixation of a digitized signature or other formal
identifier becomes the modern equivalent of the written instrument. As suggested, many who have observed
the Internet in operation expect and believe that this will come to pass. The real question is whether ESign
permits or even creates a legal context with that level of formality. 

What actions or arguments might preserve under ESign the requirement of "electronic formality" that is the
equivalent of the Statute of Frauds? 

Probably the best legal argument is to claim that an assent expressed on an Internet message that is not a
formal digitized signature does not embody an "intent to sign" even if it embodies an expression of
agreement. Remember that an electronic signature is something that is attached "with the intent to sign the
record." No legal authority on this point yet, and here's hoping that you, and not the author, are the first to
make history by raising this argument. But it might work, particularly in contexts in which prior electronic
commitments made by the signing party have been done through digitized signatures or other secure
devices. Note further that the emphasis in ESign appears to be on the intent of the executing party, not on
the apparent agreement as observed by the receiving party. 

Another approach is to "repreempt" ESIGN. Section 102 of ESIGN states that a state "statute, regulation or
other rule of law" may alter the impact of ESIGN, if such new adoption consists of the adoption of the
Uniform Electronic Transactions Act or if it is a subsequent enactment that makes specific reference to
ESIGN. So, although any existing formality requirements in state law are preempted to the extent they are
inconsistent with ESIGN, new requirements could be established. The adoption of the Uniform Electronic
Transactions Act wouldn't help much, since the operative provisions of that statute, such as the definition of
"electronic record" and "electronic signature" basically are identical to the ESIGN language. The Uniform
Act was in fact the model for ESIGN in this regard. 

What about a new state law or regulation implementing the concept of the Statute of Frauds or some other
formality requirement for binding real estate agreements? Section 102 does permit that, but requires that any
such new law be consistent with the provisions of ESIGN. Consequently, electronic signatures or electronic
contracts can't be denied enforceability completely. 

Can the state impose a greater requirement of "electronic formality," however, such as a requirement that
electronic real estate contracts not be binding in the absence of a digitized secure signature? Answer:
Maybe, but only very carefully. The problem is that Section 102 also requires that any "readoption" of state
standards must not "require or accord greater legal status or effect to . . . a specific technology or technical
specification." The concern here was to prevent local law from inhibiting development of electronic
transactions developments by creating monopolies for given technologies or even given proprietary systems.
The target was legislation similar to Utah legislation that had adopted standards for electronic transactions
that did incorporate ABA recommended guidelines for electronic signatures. 

So a statute requiring specific technology is out. But what about the creation of a state administrative
agency charged with the approval of systems that meet certain guidelines for formality, regardless of their
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technology? Will this work? Is it the imposition of a specific "technical specification," or simply the
imposition of supervised "performance standards?" Watch for the lawsuit. But first, we'd have to get a state
to move in this direction. 

The ABA Section of Real Property, Probate & Trust Law has created a committee on electronic commerce
that is evaluating this and other issues, and may propose state legislation of this type before too long. 

In a recent interview with Pat Frey, who was the Reporter for the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act, and
hence is quite familiar with the origins of the language in ESIGN, the author raised some of the questions
discussed here. On the question of whether an electronic expression of agreement is different from an
electronic signature (a possibility raised above), Pat responded that this was not the intent of the drafters of
the definition of "electronic signature." No special formality was envisioned. As to the general notion of the
meaning of the Statute of Frauds, Pat pointed out that the Statute of Frauds required a preservable and
reproducible record a requirement also retained by ESIGN. (In her view the preservable and reproducible
record would have to include the signature as well.) But as to the general requirement of formality imposed
by the Statute of Frauds, Pat's view is that it never existed. After all, she points out, the Statute of Frauds
would have upheld an agreement scribbled on a cocktail napkin so long as it was initialed. Is this really any
different from writing "OK" in a response to an email message? Stay tuned. 

Items reported here and in the ABA publications are for general information purposes only and should not
be relied upon in the course of representation or in the forming of decisions in legal matters. The same is
true of all commentary provided by contributors to the DIRT list. Accuracy of data and opinions expressed
are the sole responsibility of the DIRT editor and are in no sense the publication of the ABA. 

Parties posting messages to DIRT are posting to a source that is readily accessible by members of the
general public, and should take that fact into account in evaluating confidentiality issues. 

ABOUT DIRT: 

DIRT is an internet discussion group for serious real estate professionals. Message volume varies, but
commonly runs 5 15 messages per work day. 

Daily Developments are posted every work day. To subscribe, send the message subscribe Dirt [your name]
to listserv@listserv.umkc.edu 

To cancel your subscription, send the message signoff DIRT to the address: 
listserv@listserv.umkc.edu 

for information on other commands, send the message Help to the listserv address. 

DIRT has an alternate, more extensive coverage that includes not only commercial and general real estate
matters but also focuses specifically upon residential real estate matters. Because real estate brokers
generally find this service more valuable, it is named "BrokerDIRT." But residential specialist attorneys,
title insurers, lenders and others interested in the residential market will want to subscribe to this alternative
list. If you subscribe to BrokerDIRT, it is not necessary also to subscribe to DIRT, as BrokerDIRT carries
all DIRT traffic in addition to the residential discussions. 



1/28/08 1:06 PM(Esign and Statute f Frauds)

Page 6 of 13http://www.vsb.org/sections/rp/ESignonDirt.html

To subscribe to BrokerDIRT, send the message subscribe BrokerDIRT [your name] to
listserv@listserv.umkc.edu 

To cancel your subscription to BrokerDIRT, send the message signoff BrokerDIRT to the address:
listserv@listserv.umkc.edu 

DIRT is a service of the American Bar Association Section on Real Property, Probate & Trust Law and the
University of Missouri, Kansas City, School of Law. Daily Developments are copyrighted by Patrick A.
Randolph, Jr., Professor of Law, UMKC School of Law, but Professor Randolph grants permission for
copying or distribution of Daily Developments for educational purposes, including professional continuing
education, provided that no charge is imposed for such distribution and that appropriate credit is given to
Professor Randolph, DIRT, and its sponsors. 

DIRT has a WebPage at: 
http://cctr.umkc.edu/dept/dirt/ 

Date: Tue, 28 Nov 2000 12:10:52 -0600 
From: "Whitman, Dale" <WhitmanD@missouri.edu> 

A comment on UETA and ESign: 

Neither of these acts requires any particular formality for a digital signature, nor any particular technology.
Although most commentators have focused on the desirability of using Public Key Infrastructure (PKI) for
digital signatures, and perhaps biometric identifiers as well to supplement PKI, neither UETA nor ESign has
any requirements along these lines. 

The apparent reason for UETA and ESign not imposing any technical requirements of this sort is a desire
not to put the technology in a straitjacket. In other words, if a particular technology were required, it would
become the de facto standard, and would perhaps have the effect of stultifying other, better technologies that
might come along a little later. Some of the state statutes do impose specific technological requirements,
and the effect of ESign is to preempt these, I gather. 

There are two issues with respect to "weak" or insecure signatures, such as those permitted by UETA and
ESign. One issue, identified by Pat, is the tendency of people to "initial" or "sign" casually, since it is so
easy to do. Of course, we have become accustomed to entering into non-realty transactions in this way. I
ordered a couple of books from Amazon.com this morning simply by a few mouse clicks. Pat's question,
however, is whether we want to facilitate entering into real estate transactions, in which thousands or
millions of dollars are at stake, so easily. 

The second issue is ease of forgery. I don't think there are very many people who are interesting in forging
an order purporting to be from me to Amazon.com. But there are people who might want to forge my
signature in a real estate transaction. In the absence of PKI and accompanying biometric identification,
forging an electronic signature is utterly easy. It's actually much easier than forging a pen-and-ink
signature, since it only takes a couple of strokes at a keyboard. I think it is very questionable whether large
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transactions (e.g., those over $1,000, to pick an arbitrary figure) should be "consummatable" with insecure
signatures. 

Nevertheless, that's where these two acts have left us. 

Dale Whitman 

Date: Tue, 28 Nov 2000 17:04:15 -0600 
From: Steven Thorson <sthorson@bgslaw.com> 
Subject: Re: DD 11/28 Has ESign Killed the Statute of Frauds? 

We real property lawyers in Minnesota were recently advised at a CLE that we were probably on safe
ground to ignore the threat of ESign interfering with our recordable documents because of the exception in
the federal law for "paramount state recording acts." (Sorry, no cite.) We were advised to be cautious with
respect to non-recordable documents, e.g., purchase agreements. We were advised to routinely disclaim
electronic transactions unless we overtly wanted the transaction to proceed electronically. My disclaimer
appears at the bottom of this reply. 

Steve Thorson 

Pat Randolph responds: 

I think perhaps what Steve is talking about the question of whether Esign compels local recorders to accept
electronic filings. There is no language in the statute specifically about "paramount state recording acts," but
there is some argument advanced by lawyers hired by ALTA that the statute contains an exemption for
recording rules established by "state regulatory agencies." I have weighed in on that debate in the past on
DIRT. But I don't think there is any serious argument that ESign does not apply to real estate agreements in
general, leaving aside the issue of recording. 

back to top

 

Subject: disclaimer regarding ESign Matters 
Date: Wed, 29 Nov 2000 09:38:25 -0600

In his recent post, Steve Thorson alluded to the disclaimer that he was using to avoid commitments through
inadvertence as a consequence of ESign. I inadvertently deleted that disclaimer. When I am including
additional text or combining posts, disclaimers sometimes get omitted, and this is my disclaimer that you
should expect this to happen sometimes. In any event, Steve's disclaimer was a substantive part of the post,
and should have been included. I've asked him to provide another copy, and he has done so.
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Date: Wed, 29 Nov 2000 09:17:52 -0600 
From: Steven Thorson

Steve Thorson ************************************************************************
Steven G. Thorson 
Barna, Guzy & Steffen, Ltd., Suite 400 / Northtown Financial Plaza 
200 Coon Rapids Boulevard N.W. 
Minneapolis, MN 55433-5894

Direct Dial Office: (763) 783-5124 
General Office: (763) 780-8500 
Office fax: (763) 780-1777 
Cellular/Pager : (612) 805-9840 
Office E-Mail: sthorson@bgslaw.com 
Home E-Mail: sgthorson@aol.com

This electronic mail transmission may be a privileged and confidential attorney-client communication. It is
not intended for transmission to, or receipt by, any unauthorized persons. If you have received this
electronic mail transmission in error, please delete it from your system without copying it, and notify the
sender by reply e-mail or by calling sender at one of the telephone numbers shown above so that our e-mail
address records can be corrected. 

Thank you. 

Disclaimer Regarding Uniform Electronic Transactions Act (Minn. Stat. sections 325L.01--325L.19 [Minn.
Sess. Laws 2000, Ch. 371]) ["UETA"]. If this communication concerns negotiation of a contract or
agreement, UETA does not apply to this communication: contract formation in this matter shall occur only
with manually-affixed original signatures on original documents.

 

Date: Wed, 29 Nov 2000 10:23:32 -0500 
From: Bill Hart 
Subject: Re: Dale Whitman on DD 11/28 Has ESign Killed the Statute of Frauds?

Pat 
While Dale may be correct in stating the reason for UETA and ESIGN [sec. 104(c)(2)] not imposing any
technical requirements was to avoid imposing a technological straitjacket or stifling better technology, I'm
not so sure ESIGN will effectively preempt such imposition, particularly since Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac
are likely to set the "standards." They have already proposed and released preliminary guideline and data
specifications relating to software components and the requirements of security programs, which will assist
lenders in preparing their business processes and information systems for originating and servicing
electronic mortgage. I suspect these guidelines and specs will become the standards to which all vendors
will adhere in the marketplace. In fact, the risk of no standards was pointed out in a DIRT post by Michael
Cartwright of July 17, 2000 10:44 AM, which followed a lengthy week discussion on the problem with E-
Signatures. 
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Bill Hart 
Title Law Associates

 

Date: Wed, 29 Nov 2000 16:10:34 -0600 
From: burkh002 
Subject: Re: E-SIGN and state recording

E-SIGN does not require county recorders to accept electronic documents. Section 104(a) provides that a
state regulatory agency can require that records be filed with it in accordance with "specified standards or
formats." The OMB has interpreted this provision as permitting states to specify that a document is
recordable only if it is on paper and has ink signatures. OMB Guidance on Implementing the Electronic
Signatures in Global and National Commerce Act sec. III.D.

This interpretation is consistent with E-SIGN's legislative history. For example, Congressman Bliley, who
chaired the conference committee on E-SIGN and sponsored the House bill that was the basis for E-SIGN
stated:

"Section 104(a) provides that ... a State regulatory agency may specify standards or formats for
the filing of records with that agency or organization, including requiring paper filings or
records." 146 Cong. Rec. H4354 (daily ed. June 14, 2000).

Similarly, Senator Leahy stated:

"Section 104(a) of the conference report expressly preserves governmental filing requirements.
Federal agencies are already working toward full acceptance of electronic filing, pursuant to the
schedule established by the Government Paperwork Elimination Act. I am confident that State
agencies will follow our lead. Until they are technologically equipped to do so, however, they
have an unqualified right under section 104(a) to continue to require records to be filed in a
tangible printed or paper form." 146 Cong. Rec. S5222 (daily ed. June 15, 2000).

Ann Burkhart

Pat Randolph responds:

I am pleased that ALTA may have been able to get out of the woods on this one by obtaining a ruling of the
OMB. It's not clear to me that the OMB has interpretive authority in this area (remember the EPA
regulations on CERCLA lender liability that got thrown out), but my uncertainty here stems from ignorance,
not from a study of the issue.

But I must say that Anne's reliance upon the notion that legislative history indicating that Congress intended
a "state regulatory agency" have the power to set standards, an argument which also appeared in the opinion
letter that ALTA obtained from a Washington law firm on this issue, begs the question. Is a local county
recorder a "state regulatory agency?"

Informal polls that I have taken of groups of real estate lawyers in various contexts around the country have
been almost 100% in agreement that the ordinary meaning of this term would not include county recorders.
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The opinion letter makes other arguments concerning legislative history as well, but none of them, to my
mind, are of a value that would justify a serious opinion on the subject.

In my view, the best argument that can be made on this point is that the consequences of a rule requiring
county recorders to accept electronic documents before they're ready are so awful that Congress couldn't
possibly have intended this. Further, few in the real estate industry are seriously interested in raising the
point in court, so the issue may get resolved by default. Nevertheless, I have been and continue to be a
supporter of clarifying legislation. If the OMB regulations indeed have the authority of law, then this would
be very, very helpful.

Pat Randolph

 

Date: Thu, 30 Nov 2000 09:33:52 -0500 
From: John Thomas 
Subject: RE: Re: E-SIGN and state recording

Here in Connecticut we record real estate transactions in the 169 offices of the town or city clerks of our
169 towns and cities; though we have counties (eight of them), there are no county governments or
recording offices. By state statute, the format of documents that town clerks may receive for recording is
subject to "the approval of the Public Records Administrator." The approval of the Public Records
Administrator is given or denied on a statewide basis.

If Pat Randolph informally polled me, "Would a Connecticut town clerk - the counterpart of the county
recorder in other areas of the country - qualify as a 'state regulatory agency' under E-SIGN?", my answer
would be "No." I would not say the same of the Public Records Administrator, however, and think that if the
PRA said "No electronic filings," E-SIGN would not be violated.

In other parts of the country, don't states have the equivalent of Connecticut's Public Records Administrator,
a setter of statewide standards that county recorders must adhere to?

John Thomas 
Title Counsel 
Connecticut Attorneys Title Insurance Company

Pat Randolph responds:

As I understand things, the situation varies tremendously. But Connecticut has more filing venues per
capita, I believe, than any other state, which provides a stronger rationale for statewide controls.

In many states, the county clerks office is a political patronage fiefdom in which local power is jealously
guarded. During the drafting of the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act, the Joint Editorial Board on
Uniform State Property Laws worked very hard to influence the drafters to establish statewide controls on
electronic filings (not filings generally). Our concern was that if each local agency decided independently
how to deal with electronic filings, we lose desired consistency and uniform quality. We failed to get that
result (although we're not sure how that happened), and the UETA draft has bracketed language authorizing
local control on this issue that has been adopted in a number of jurisdictions. In any event, the position
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taken by the opinion sought by the ALTA is that, in fact, local county recorders are "state regulatory
agencies" within the meaning of ESign.

 

Date: Thu, 30 Nov 2000 11:33:55 -0600 
From: "Scoville, Adam White" AScoville@faegre.com 
Subject: RE: Has ESign Killed the Statute of Frauds?

Hi... Although not in real estate, I was forwarded your piece on E-SIGN and the UETA because of my
background with digital signature legislation (I am the author of "Clear Signatures, Obscure Signs," 17
Cardozo Arts & Ent. L.J. 345, a major examination of all the models of signature laws up through mid-99,
available at http://www.bc.edu/iptf/articles/1999070101fs.html and found it very interesting.

I think you are right on about focusing on "intent to sign." Personally, I think that's exactly the kind of
inquiry that courts should be making, rather than focusing on superficial formal requisites. A couple minor
notes... although E-SIGN's operative language is fairly consistent with UETA, I think the more direct
'ancestral' root is the Massachusetts draft act that Dan Greenwood developed. As I understand he consulted
heavily with Abraham's staff in the drafting of E-SIGN, and the operative language is nearly verbatim.

 

Date: Thu, 30 Nov 2000 13:17:16 -0500 (EST) 
From: Jjw5199@aol.com 
Subject: Re: Has ESign Killed the Statute of Frauds: blessings of formal requisites

someone said:

>>Personally, I think that's exactly the kind of inquiry that courts should 
>>be making, rather than focusing on superficial formal requisites.

The formal requisites, far from being superficial, eliminate a lot of the confusion and litigation over intent.
The goal has to be to eliminate as many as possible potential "intent to sign" cases through the use of
agreed-on formal requisites.

We are seeing in Florida right now the mess that results when unclear formal requisites (poor technology
that generates large numbers of ambiguous ballots) lead to wars over intent. Unfortunately, by sowing
confusion on standards for formal requisites, the E-sign statute will do for real estate what the butterfly
ballot has done for the voters of Palm Beach County.

It may be that standards will ultimately come from Fannie Mae, as suggested in a posting yesterday, or
through the title companies, which will refuse to insure without a high standard of proof. 

Jay Weiser 
Zicklin School of Business 
Baruch College
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Date: Thu, 30 Nov 2000 16:12:40 -0500 
From: Jack Facey

Au contraire, Vermont has 252 towns and 252 municipal recording offices for its 500,000 inhabitants!! We
have no Public Records Administrator. Each town Clerk acts with some discretion subject to some statutory
oversight as to what is acceptable for recording and what is not. 

Jack Facey Reiber, Kenlan, Schwiebert, Hall & Facey, P.C.

 

Date: Thu, 30 Nov 2000 18:37:03 -0500 
From: "Buck, Gurdon" 
Subject: RE: E-SIGN and state recording

You see, Vermont was settled by folks from Connecticut, which is why Vermont picked up the Connecticut
title practice and so many of its towns have Connecticut town names. Thus Connecticut and Vermont also
retain "strict foreclosure" as the method of choice for foreclosing mortgages.

 

Date: Fri, 01 Dec 2000 08:28:45 -0800 
From: Bert Rush

Hello Pat/DIRT: 
I'm enjoying following this thread, and thought you'd enjoy this cartoon we posted last year on LandSakes--
http://ul.firstam.com/landsakes/joke.pdf

I continue to agree with most of what you've said about the ESign Act. I think electronic commerce in
general will ultimately rely largely on standardized forms (which people may be disinclined to read having
been told they're "standard in the industry" and "uniform") and on processes that may lack the formality and
ceremony of a document signing.

I don't know that I'd go so far as to say this will kill the Statute of Frauds (what's left of it). Seems to me
electronic transactions can (and probably will) involve a secure electronic "record" of the actions
surrounding the making of a contract, and this "record" will include "writings" in electronic format. With
these assumptions, I think the intent of the Statute of Frauds can and probably will be served via electronic
transactions.

The above leads me to wonder how the "four corners rule" of contract interpretation will come into play
with electronic transactions. Might some courts be sufficiently uncomfortable with ESign that they may be
more willing to consider extrinsic evidence to discern the intentions of the parties?

I can also tell you from our (First American's) recent claims experience, we see a significant number of
claims in which one of two spouses or an elderly homeowner reacts to a threatened foreclosure by claiming
the signature on the mortgage isn't theirs. Of these, some turn out to be forgeries--usually pulled off by a
relative. It remains to be seen whether electronic transactions will make this more or less a problem.
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Lots to think about these days....

back to top

 

( Home | Register to Join | Meetings & Seminars | Subcommittees | Newsletters | Minutes of Board Meetings | Links |
Recent Developments | Other Publications | Disclaimer )

 



 

  

 

 

April 20, 2003 

 

MR. STEVEN D. RUSE KS #11461 

9225 Indian Creek Parkway 

Overland Park, Kansas 66210 

(913) 451-3355 

(913) 451-3361 (FAX) 

 

 

Dear Mr. Ruse 

 

I call your attention to our April 28th memorandum under separate cover where we 

address your misconduct before the forum. You appear not to have heeded our April 3rd 

warning against deliberate misrepresentation of the factual record where we stated: “This 

misleading argument by the defendants that it was the same intellectual property borders 

on a sanctionable misrepresentation.” Looking back at why Medical Supply is without 

offices today and has lost its creditworthiness and probably the chance to realize its 

business plan expectations, it is clearly because of you and your firm’s failure to provide 

a professional service to the forum and even your client.  

This serious breach cannot be overcome by misrepresenting material facts in 

written pleadings in an attempt to commit fraud upon the court. 

It is my opinion that sanctions will be of little use righting the wrongs Shughart 

Thomson and Kilroy have inflicted upon Medical Supply Chain and the hospitals 

suffering from monopolized supply costs. We will be researching 18 USC § 1503 claims 

against Jerry Grundhoffer, Andrew Cesere and the other defendants who are responsible 

for the conduct of their attorney agents in this matter. 

 

With gravest regards, 

 

Bret D. Landrith #20380  

605 W. Kansas 

Pittsburg, KS 66672 

620-231-7636 

 

 

cc: mclaughlin.Patrick@dorseylaw.com 

Medical Supply Medical Supply 

ChainChain Empowering Health Systems, 

Optimizing Supply Chain Results!  
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November 23, 2004 

 

 

The Honorable Arlen Specter 

United States Senate 

711 Hart Senate Bldg. 

Washington, DC 20510 

 

 

RE: The Illegal Healthcare Supply Monopoly Costing Medicare Over $40 Billion A Year 

 

Dear Senator Specter: 
 

I am urgently requesting your attention to a 10
th

 Circuit Court of Appeals antitrust case 

that was faxed to your office on November 10, 2004. Enclosed is a copy of the faxed letter and 

our answers to the 10
th
 Circuit’s seemingly retaliatory response. Additionally, you may find our 

original complaint and appeal brief at www.MedicalSupplyChain.com/News, which we filed in 

the District Court of Kansas over two years ago.  

My question to you is, how is it possible for the 10
th

 Circuit Court of Appeals to defend 

the illegal monopolization of healthcare supplies, with disregard for the decreased access to 

healthcare and resulting deaths and why are we forced to seek redress outside the court itself? It 

seems to me this is a chronic illness within our judicial system and reflects the overall outcome 

we have received in our attempt to stop these illegal activities. 

This is a national crisis that affects every business in America and the constituents in 

every state. With your help we will take this fight to the halls of congress and to the constituents 

in your state who are most effected. 

  

Sincerely, 

 
 

Samuel Lipari 

President & CEO 

Medical Supply Chain, Inc. 

1300 NW Jefferson Court  

Blue Springs, MO 64015 

www.MedicalSupplyChain.com 

 

 

cc: US Senate Committee on the Judiciary 

      Senator Kit Bond 

      Senator Jim Talent 

Medical Supply Medical Supply 

ChainChain Empowering Health Systems, 

Optimizing Supply Chain Results!  
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